













EMERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTER NATIONAL BOARD PROGRAM

PHASE 35

RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS MANUAL

Table of Contents

Program Contact Information	
Notice	6
Federal Programs to Help Homeless Individuals	6
Publication Statement	
National Board Members	7
Preamble	8
History	8
Key Changes and Program Clarifications	9
Key Dates for Phase 35	
National Board Responsibilities	16
National Board Administration and Secretariat	16
Grant Payment Process	17
Method of Payment	17
First Payments	17
Second Payments	17
Subsequent Payments	18
State Set-Aside Payments	18
Client Eligibility	18
FEMA Responsibilities	19
State Set-Aside Committee Responsibilities	20
Basis of State Award	20
Deadline	20
Selection of SSA Jurisdictions.	20
Composition	21
Participation of Special Emphasis Groups	21
SSA Committee Function	21
Administrative Allowance	21
Local Board Responsibilities	22
Composition/Roster	22
National Board Affiliates	23
Local Board Membership & Voting	23
Participation by Homeless, Formerly Homeless or Homeless Advocate	24

Native American Participation	24
Local Board Expansion	24
Participation of Special Emphasis Groups	22
Election of Chair	24
Notifications of Changes in Contacts/Addresses	24
Local Board Participation	25
Convening the Local Board	25
Reconvening the Local Board	25
Local Board Meetings	25
Quorum Requirements	25
Meeting Minutes	20
Local Board Plan Deadline	20
Advertising	20
Disaster Recovery Plan	27
Setting Priorities and Selection of LROs	27
Funding of LROs Serving Special Emphasis Groups	28
Coordination of Service	28
Client Eligibility	29
Notification of Changes in LRO Contact/Address	29
Combining Local Boards	30
Communication	30
Technical Assistance	30
Appeals Process	31
Local Resource Coordination	31
Monitoring LROs	31
Interim Report	
Final Report	33
Reallocation of Funds	33
Reallocation to New Agencies	
Returning Funds for Reallocation	
Reporting Fraud, Theft and Criminal Activity	
End-of-Program	35
Record Retention	35
Spending Period Extension	35
Variances and Changes	35
Administrative Allowance	30
Local Recipient Organization (LRO) Responsibilities	37
Criteria for LROs	37
LRO Documentation and Disaster Recovery Plan	38

LRO/Vendor Relationships	38
LRO Requirements	38
Knowledge of Requirements	38
Use of Funds	39
Bank Accounts/Interest Income	39
Payment to Vendors	40
LRO Reporting	40
Final Report	41
Program Compliance Resolution	41
Documentation Retention	42
Lobbying Prohibition and Reporting Requirements	42
Annual Audit Requirement	42
Uniform Guidance of the Office of Management & Budget	43
Audit Confirmation Request	43
Technical Assistance	43
Reallocation of Funds	43
Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit	43
Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Payments	44
Benefitting Agency/Sub Grantee	44
Grant Agreement Articles	45
Financial Terms and Conditions	
Other Terms and Conditions	61
Duplication of Benefits	61
Non-Supplanting Requirement	61
Hatch Act	61
False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies	62
Debarment and Suspension	62
Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990	62
Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII)	
Program Costs	63
Intent of Program	63
Questions	63
Client Eligibility	
No Fee Requirement for Services	
Payment to Vendors	
Selection of Vendor	
Client Confidentiality	64

Eligible Program Costs	65
Food Purchases for Food Banks/Pantries and Other Food Providers	65
Transportation for Food Banks/Pantries and Other Food Providers	65
Equipment and Consumable Supplies for Food Banks/Food Pantries	66
Food Purchases for Mass Feeding	66
Transportation for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding	66
Consumable Supplies for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding as Direct Cost	66
Equipment Purchases for Mass Shelters/Mass Feeding as Direct Cost	67
Minor Emergency Equipment Repairs for Mass Shelters/Mass Feeding as Direct Cost	67
Limited First Aid Supplies for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding	67
Building Code Repairs to Mass Shelter or Mass Feeding Facilities	68
Facility Improvements for the Disabled for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding	68
Mass Shelter Expenses	68
Option 1: Mass Shelter/Direct Cost	69
Option 2: Per Diem Allowance	69
Mass Feeding Expenses	69
Option 1: Mass Feeding/Direct Cost	69
Option 2: Per Meal Allowance	70
Other Shelter Assistance (Off-Site Lodging Hotel/Motel)	70
Rent/Mortgage Assistance/Eviction Prevention	
First Month's Rent Payment	71
Utility Assistance	72
Metered Utility Verification Form	73
Diapers	73
Feminine Hygiene Items	74
Charging Back Expenditures	74
Ineligible Program Costs	75
Administrative Allowance	77
Required Documentation	
•	
Who Must Submit Documentation	
Required Forms	83
Annex 1: Spreadsheets	83
Served Meals	85
Other Food	86
Mass Shelter	86
Other Shelter	87
Supplies and Equipment	88

Rehabilitation (Emergency Repairs/Building Code)	88
Rent/Mortgage	89
Utilities	89
Administration	90
Mileage	91
Annex 2: Local Board Plan Certification	92
Annex 3: Local Recipient Organization (LRO) Certification	93
Annex 4: Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Agency Relationship Certification	
Annex 5: Lobbying Certification	95
Sample Forms, Letters and Guidance	96
Annex 6: Metered Utility Verification Form	97
Annex 7: Sample Rent/Mortgage Documentation	98
Annex 8: Sample Food Voucher	99
Annex 9: Sample Daily Per Diem Schedule	100
Annex 10: Sample Daily Per Meal Schedule	101
Annex 11: Sample Mileage Log	102
Annex 12: Audit/Review and Audit/Documentation Retention Responsibilities	103
Annex 13: Documentation Retention Responsibilities and Other Review/Audit Responsibili	ties 105
Annex 14: Utility Documentation Guidelines	107
Annex 15: Sample Advertisement	109
Publicizing/Advertising Elements	109
Sample Advertisement	109
Annex 16: Sample Application Elements	111
Application Elements	
Glossary of EFSP Terms	112
Index	11/

Program Contact Information

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 701 North Fairfax Street Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Phone: 703-706-9660 Fax: 703-706-9677

Email (Inquiries): efsp@uww.unitedway.org

Email (Document Submission): documentstoefsp@uww.unitedway.org

For all emails, please include your EFSP ID Number.

Website: www.efsp.unitedway.org

Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) No. 97.024

Notice



This manual contains changes from previous manuals issued to guide implementation of the Emergency Food and Shelter Program. This manual must be carefully studied prior to administering the program, giving any information to the public, or making any grant award. Matters of interpretation must be referred to the National Board staff.

This manual is intended for use by Local Boards and Local Recipient Organizations administering and providing services under the Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program. This manual is not intended for individuals seeking services.

Federal Programs to Help Homeless Individuals



For information on other Federal programs to help homeless individuals, including programs funded under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, contact the U.S. Interagency Council on Homelessness, Federal Center SW Building, 409 Third Street, SW, Suite 310, Washington, DC 20024, (202) 708-4663.

Publication Statement



This publication was produced with administrative funds provided under the Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program grant which was awarded to the National Board by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's Federal Emergency Management Agency. While DHS/FEMA supports the Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program, the statements in this publication do not necessarily reflect DHS/FEMA's views.

MICHAEL LEE, CHAIR

Federal Emergency Management Agency
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Supervisory Emergency Management Specialist
500 C Street, SW
Washington, DC 20024

LINDSEY COPELAND

National Council of the Churches of Christ in the USA

Lutheran Services in America Director, Public Policy and Advocacy 100 Maryland Avenue, NE, Suite 500 Washington, DC 20002

BRIAN CORBIN

Catholic Charities USA
Senior Vice President
for Social Policy
2050 Ballenger Avenue, Suite 400
Alexandria, VA 22314

WILIAM DAROFF

The Jewish Federations
of North America
Vice President for Public Policy & Director of the
Washington Office
1720 I Street, NW, Suite 800
Washington, DC 20006

LT. COLONEL ARDIS FUGE

The Salvation Army
National Social Services Secretary
615 Slaters Lane
Post Office Box 269
Alexandria, VA 22313

DAWN LATHAM

American Red Cross
Director, Government Relations
431 18th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

DARLENE SLAUGHTER

United Way Worldwide Vice President Chief Diversity Officer 701 North Fairfax Street Alexandria, VA 22314

Preamble

The Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) was created in 1983 to supplement and expand the work of local social service agencies, both nonprofit and governmental, to help people with **economic** emergencies (not disaster-related [i.e., fires of any kind, floods, tornadoes, etc.] emergencies). Therefore, EFSP funds are not to be used to provide emergency assistance for circumstances that are the **immediate** result of a disaster situation. EFSP funds may be used to provide economic assistance in the long term, even if the current circumstances may have been impacted by an earlier disaster occurrence. The EFSP funding is open to all organizations helping hungry and homeless people. EFSP funds must be used to supplement feeding, sheltering (including transitional sheltering) and rent/mortgage and utility assistance efforts only.

EFSP is governed by a National Board that selects jurisdictions for funding. Local Boards are convened in those qualifying jurisdictions to determine the highest need and best use of funds and to select Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that will provide emergency food and shelter services. Each year, needs are to be assessed to respond to changes in the community.

History

The Emergency Food and Shelter Program was established on March 24, 1983, with the signing of the "Jobs Stimulus Bill," Public Law 98-8. That legislation created a National Board, chaired by the Federal Emergency Management

A webinar providing an overview of the Emergency Food and Shelter Program is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops**.

Agency (FEMA) that consisted of representatives of the American Red Cross, Catholic Charities USA, National Council of the Churches of Christ in the USA, The Jewish Federations of North America, The Salvation Army, and United Way Worldwide.

The EFSP was authorized under the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act (P.L. 100-77 signed into law on July 24, 1987, since renamed the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act and subsequently reauthorized under P.L. 100-628, signed into law on November 7, 1988). Since 1983 the EFSP will have distributed \$4.4 billion to over 14,000 human service agencies in more than 2,500 communities across the country.

The original authorizing legislation (PL 100-77) specifically calls for "sensitivity to the transition from temporary shelter to permanent homes and attention to the specialized needs of homeless individuals with mental and physical disabilities and illness and to facilitate access for homeless individuals to other sources of services and benefits."

Also in accordance with the legislation, the National Board encourages Local Boards, the decision-making local bodies, to place special emphasis on identification of and assistance to the elderly, families with children, Native Americans and veterans. In addition, the authorization as revised (PL 102-550) in 1992 requires that a homeless or formerly homeless person serve on the Local Boards.

Phase 35

Key Changes and Program Clarifications



This Key Changes and Program Clarifications section is provided to assist in your annual reading and review of the EFSP Responsibilities and Requirements Manual (EFSP Manual); it is not a substitute for the EFSP Manual. All State Set-Aside Committee members, Local Board members and all Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) are advised to read the entire Phase 35 EFSP Manual thoroughly for complete guidelines regarding their responsibilities, program operations, acceptable expenditures and documentation requirements as significant changes have been made.

GRANT AGREEMENT ARTICLES, FINANCIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS & OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) is a restricted federal grant. All federal grants have terms and conditions that apply to ALL parties participating in the grant. For the EFSP, all parties means the National Board which is considered the Recipient, State Set-Aside Committees (SSAs), Local Boards, and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that are considered the Sub-Recipients. All parties need to ensure their understanding of the EFSP Manual and the statements on the Certification Forms. By signing the Certification Forms, they are agreeing to specific program requirements of the National Board as well as those mandated by the Federal government, including those that do not appear to apply to the types of programs and activities eligible under the EFSP. All parties will be held accountable for the provisions of the grant.

For further detail, please reference pages 45-56.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES

Starting in Phase 35, all Local Board Plans, Local Recipient Organization Certifications, Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Relationship Certification Forms, Lobbying Certifications, Second Payment Requests, Final Reports and Spending Period End Date Extension Requests must be electronically signed using DocuSign. You do not need a DocuSign account to electronically sign EFSP documents and there is no cost for using DocuSign for EFSP documents. Please review the updated Website User Guide for step-by-step instructions for submitting forms on the EFSP website and electronically signing. The User Guide may be found on the EFSP website, (www.efsp.unitedway.org).

ADVERTISING AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FUNDS

All parties as referenced in the Grant Agreement Articles must acknowledge EFSP funding as Federal funds awarded through the Department of Homeland Security. The acknowledgment must be included in Local Boards' advertisement of funding to the jurisdiction and any printed material, including request for proposals, bid invitations, etc.

For further detail, please reference pages 26-27, 45-46, and 109-111.

COMMUNICATING WITH THE NATIONAL BOARD VIA EMAIL

There are two email addresses for communicating with the National Board. Effective as of July 1, 2016, ALL documents submitted by State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs via email to the Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) office must be sent to documentstoefsp@uww.unitedway.org.

Also, effective as of July 1, 2016, the new email address to send inquiries to the program is efsp@uww.unitedway.org. Only questions concerning the program should be sent to this email address.

For further details, please reference pages 30 and 63.

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS - CHANGE TO THRESHOLDS

LROs must have their records audited by an independent certified or public accountant if receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funds. If an LRO receives from \$50,000 to \$99,999, they must have an annual accountant's review.

Local Boards must ensure that LROs expending \$750,000 or more in Federal funds, comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget.

For further details, please reference pages 37, 42, 59, 80, 92-93, and 103-106.

LOCAL BOARD MEMBERSHIP – HOMELESS PARTICIPATION

Legislation requires all Local Boards to include in their membership a homeless or formerly homeless person. Local Boards must seek recommendations from LROs for an appropriate representative.

Local Boards who are unable to secure a homeless or formerly homeless representative must have a past recipient of food or shelter services or a homeless advocate on their Local Board. A homeless advocacy group may be invited to serve this roll only if those noted previously are unavailable to serve.

For further detail, please reference pages 24-26, and 92.

LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

By signing the LRO Certification Form, each LRO is certifying that EFSP funds will not be used for any type of lobbying activities. Additionally, LROs receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funds must complete and submit the Certification Regarding Lobbying Form. The total of the funds is based on the original allocation to the LRO, plus any combination of subsequent awards to the LRO, including reallocations made by the Local Board.

If the Certification Regarding Lobbying Form is not submitted to the National Board, the funds may be held until it has been provided.

For further detail, please reference pages 42, 49, 60-61, and 95.

SPENDING PERIOD EXTENSIONS

The National Board may determine on an annual basis to exercise the option to extend the spending period when the receipt of funding is delayed in the federal appropriations or award process. The National Board may choose to exercise this option when funds are received after the first quarter of the federal fiscal year. The National Board will determine the dates of the extension option beyond the end of the calendar year. The National Board has exercised this option; the spending period options for Phase 35 are:

October 31, 2017 November 30, 2017 December 31, 2017 January 31, 2018 February 28, 2018 March 31, 2018 April 30, 2018 May 31, 2018 June 30, 2018 July 31, 2018 August 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

October 31, 2018 November 30, 2018 December 31, 2018 January 31, 2019

LOCAL BOARD - LRO CERTIFICATION FORMS

Local Boards are required to have all agencies selected as LROs on the Local Board Plan e-sign and date the LRO Certification Form at the beginning of each funding cycle. A copy of this form must be retained by both the Local Board and the LRO. The certification forms for all funded LROs must be submitted electronically and e-signed by accessing the forms under LRO Plan. Funds will not be issued to any LRO who has not e-signed and dated the LRO Certification Form. Only the LRO Certification Form provided by the National Board for the funding cycle will be accepted. The National Board's LRO Certification Form process has changes from prior phases with the introduction of DocuSign. The National Board's form may not be amended in any way. Local Boards wishing to have appropriate additional requirements regarding the funding of LROs may submit an addendum with the National Board's form. The addendum must also be submitted to EFSP with the Local Board Plan.

For further detail, please reference pages 92 and 93.

LOCAL RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION - LRO CERTIFICATION FORMS

Each Local Recipient Organization (LRO) is required to sign and date the LRO Certification Form at the beginning of each funding cycle. A copy of this form must be retained by the LRO and provided to the Local Board for submission to the National Board. Funds will not be issued to any LRO who has not provided the signed, dated LRO Certification Form. Only the LRO Certification Form provided by the National Board for the funding cycle will be accepted. The National Board's LRO Certification Form has changes from prior phases. The National Board's form may not be amended in any way. Local Boards making appropriate additional requirements regarding the funding of LROs may add an addendum to the National Board's form. The addendum must also be submitted to EFSP by the Local Board with the Local Board Plan.

For further detail, please reference page 93.

STATE SET-ASIDE COMMITTEE (SSA) - MINIMUM AWARD PER JURISDICTION

The minimum award that may be awarded to a jurisdiction by the SSA Committee for Phase 35 is \$2,800.00 and applies to all jurisdictions selected for funding by the SSA. This minimum award applies even if the SSA is giving additional funding to a jurisdiction that was funded by the National Board's formula. SSAs acting as Local Boards must follow the Local Board requirements regarding minimum awards to LROs.

For further detail, please reference pages 20-21.

LOCAL BOARD - MINIMUM AWARD TO A LOCAL RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION (LRO)

The minimum funds that may be awarded to an LRO by a Local Board for Phase 35 is \$500.00 and applies to all LROs selected for funding by the Local Board. If an LRO is receiving only administrative funds; the award amount may be less than the \$500 minimum.

For further detail, please reference pages 22 and 28.

DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS

LOCAL BOARD AND LRO FORMS:

Only EFSP provided forms will be accepted from State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs and must be esigned using DocuSign. EFSP provided forms may not be altered by either Local Boards or LROs. Local Boards making additional appropriate requirements may add an addendum to the National Board's LRO Certification Form for LROs to also sign and date. This addendum must be submitted to the National Board. (Note: LROs may use their own forms for intake and to document expenditures. EFSP provides several sample forms in the Annex section of the Manual. These forms may be copied onto LRO letterhead and the use of these samples should eliminate compliance problems, provided the forms are fully and accurately completed.) For further detail, please reference pages 97-102.

SPREADSHEETS FOR ALL PROGRAM CATEGORIES:

A spreadsheet for each program category (mass feeding, other food, mass shelter, other shelter, supplies/equipment, rent/mortgage, utilities and administration) must be maintained and must be provided when documentation is reviewed for the EFSP. The documentation for EFSP expenditures must support the information on the spreadsheet. Spreadsheets will provide an overview of how EFSP funds were spent and serve as a checklist with which the documentation can be compared. Sample spreadsheets can be found on the EFSP website. Specific information must be provided on the spreadsheets (i.e., check number, date of check, vendor, client name [as needed], amount of check, amount of check attributed to EFSP, etc.). Reference the sample spreadsheets on the website for the required elements for each spending category. Spreadsheets should be in the appropriate order as should the supporting documentation for each individual program category. EFSP will accept spreadsheets/schedules/reports from an LRO's financial system provided the spreadsheets/schedule/report contains the required elements.

IMPORTANT CHANGE: If an LRO pays \$100 or less on a past-due utility bill balance for a client, on the utility spreadsheet in the billing period column, please insert N/A. No billing period is required for the expenditure. Do not leave the column blank. If the column is left blank, it will result in a compliance exception.

For further detail, please reference pages 65-74, 79, and 83-91.

PROOF OF PAYMENT:

EFSP funding is intended to be used as necessary to meet emergency need and expenditures incurred under EFSP must be promptly paid to vendors. Generally, payments should be made to vendors within one accounting cycle (normally 30 days). However, the EFSP will allow payments made not more than 90 days from the invoice or intake date as appropriate. LROs must ensure any amount paid and attributed to EFSP is still due in its entirety at the time payment is made. Payments made more than 90 days following the invoice or intake date will be considered ineligible and funds will be subject to return to the National Board. It is the intent of EFSP that funds received by LROs are used for costs incurred during the program period and that vendors be paid during the program period to the extent possible. It is also the intent of EFSP that goods or services be purchased and used during the program period. Large purchases made at the end of the program period do not meet this intent and may be considered ineligible. For further detail, please reference pages 63-64 and 79.

REMINDER - NO FEE REQUIREMENT FOR SERVICE

No individual, family or household may be charged a fee for service or be required to attend religious/counseling services with relation to assistance received under EFSP. Please note, EFSP does not consider the receipt of donations to an agency to be the same as a fee for service. The receipt of donations does not prevent an agency from participating in the EFSP.

For further details reference page 63.

REMINDER - CHARGING BACK OF ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

LROs may submit expenditures for items and services procured prior to receiving EFSP funds. The expenditures must be incurred during the spending period and be eligible under EFSP program guidelines. All documentation requirements for the category in which the expenditures are reported will apply.

(*Documentation required:* Spreadsheets for the categories, documentation including invoices/receipts and proof of payment.)

For further details reference page 74.

REMINDER – PAYMENT TO VENDOR (NOT MORE THAN 90 DAYS)

Payments must be made to vendors for all eligible expenditures, by an approved method, not more than 90 days after the receipt/invoice date or the date of the client intake form. Payments made more than 90 days following the invoice or intake date will be considered ineligible and funds will be subject to return to the National Board.

For further details reference pages 63-64 and 79.

REMINDER - DOCUMENTATION RETENTION

LROs are to keep their documentation records for three years after each end of program year. Documentation includes but is not limited to: LRO Certification form, application for funding, Local Board approval of funding, Second Payment Request/Interim Report, Final Report, spreadsheets, all expenditure documentation (vendor invoices/receipts and proof of payment).

Since documentation must be retained for three years, all of those years are subject to review/audits at any time, even if the LRO has filed Final Reports and received clearing letters.

For further details, reference pages 35, 42, 58, and 105-106.

REMINDER - MEETING FREQUENCY

The National Board requires Local Boards to select one of the following options for meetings during the Phase and specify such in the required materials (Local Board Plan Certification and Final Report submission). Meetings may be conducted via conference calls.

QUARTERLY MEETINGS: The National Board encourages Local Boards to meet quarterly to monitor the program and ensure LROs are implementing the program according to guidelines.

SEMI-ANNUAL MEETINGS: Local Boards electing to meet semi-annually must also monitor the program and ensure LROs are implementing the program according to guidelines. Local Boards electing to hold meetings semi-annually must

submit copies of their meeting minutes with the jurisdiction's Final Report. Failure to return this information may result in the delay of any future funding to the jurisdiction.

For further detail, please reference page 25.

REMINDER - LOCAL BOARD VOTING - ORGANIZATION AFFILIATION

Local Board membership must have no relationship to funding and is not a guarantee of funding. Local Board members must abstain from voting on award applications for their own agency. Local Board members <u>do not</u> have to abstain from voting on award applications based on religious or other affiliations.

For further detail, please reference page 23.

Key Dates for Phase 35

The National Board sets key program dates during the course of each phase in an effort to ensure funds are released in a timely manner to eligible Local Boards and their LROs. *All dates are subject to change and may be changed unilaterally by the National Board, as needed,* including submission of Local Board Plans, Second Payment Requests, EFT enrollment, and Final Reports. Local Boards will be notified of changes via email, as necessary. *The failure of Local Boards and LROs to adhere to the key program dates may result in the loss of funds.*

ITEM	KEY DATE	
Phase 35 Local Board Plan due to National Board	June 8, 2018 for jurisdictions qualifying via the National Board's funding formula. For <i>State Set-Aside Committee</i> funded jurisdictions, this date will vary and is noted on the individual jurisdiction's Local Board Plan. This date is specified on the Local Board Certification.	
Final Report Due Spending Period End Date (Jurisdiction's end date selection options are listed on the Phase 35 Local Board Plan. The jurisdiction's end date is also printed on each LRO's payment letter notification.) Local Boards failing to select a spending period end date will automatically end on January 31, 2019.	October 31, 2017 Due March 18, 2019 November 31, 2017 Due March 18, 2019 December 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 January 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 February 28, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 March 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 April 30, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 May 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 June 30, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 July 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 August 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 October 31, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 November 30, 2018 Due March 18, 2019 Due March 18, 2019 Due March 18, 2019	
LROs' Interim Report/Second Payment Requests due to <u>National Board</u>	Not later than January 15, 2019	
EFT enrollment form for <u>new</u> LROs	Newly funded LROs must sign up for EFT not later than December 31, 2018	
Adding a new LRO	If an LRO has NOT previously been funded in the current phase, it may not be added for funding after December 31, 2018 . (This also applies when reallocating funds.)	
Local Board's Reallocation Requests of funds due to the <u>National Board</u>	Not later than January 15, 2019	

National Board Responsibilities



The Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) is a restricted federal grant. All federal grants have terms and conditions that apply to all parties participating in the grant. For the EFSP, all parties means the National Board which is considered the *Recipient*, State Set-Aside Committees (SSAs), Local Boards, and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that are considered the *Sub-Recipients*. See Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions and Other Terms and Conditions, pages 45-62 for additional requirements.

The National Board will:

- Select jurisdictions of highest need for food and shelter assistance and determine amount to be distributed to each. The National Board's formula is based upon average unemployment statistics from the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics for the most current 12-month period available and poverty statistics from the U.S. Bureau of the Census. The poverty is based on the data collected in the American Community Survey (5-year estimates, 2011 2015). Poverty and unemployment were selected as the best indicators of need available nationwide at the city or county level. The National Board adopted these combined criteria (i.e., unemployment and poverty) to more effectively target funds for high-need areas and to allocate these funds rapidly and fairly.
- 2. Develop the operational manual and establish criteria for expenditure of funds and distributing funds.
- 3. In jurisdictions that received previous awards, notify the jurisdiction that new funds are available. In areas newly selected for funding, notify the local United Way, or other National Board organization to request that a Local Board be formed. The National Board will notify qualifying jurisdictions of award eligibility within 60 days following allocation by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).
- 4. Provide copies of award notification materials to National Board member affiliates and other interested parties.
- 5. Secure board plan, certification forms and board roster from Local Boards. Secure Second Payment Request and Interim Reports and Final Reports from Local Boards. Ensure Local Boards and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) comply with established guidelines.
- 6. Distribute funds to selected LROs.
- 7. Review and grant requests for program variances submitted by Local Boards.
- 8. Establish an equitable system to accomplish the reallocation of unclaimed or unused funds including hearing special requests from State Set–Aside Communities and Local Boards.
- 9. Ensure that funds are properly accounted for and that funds due are collected.
- 10. Provide consultation and technical assistance regarding the program.
- 11. Compile reports from data received from the Local Boards and submit a detailed accounting of use for all program monies in the form of a report to FEMA.
- 12. Conduct compliance reviews of food and shelter expenditures made under this program for specified LROs. The National Board, DHS/FEMA, the National Board's public accounting firm, or the Office of the Inspector General may also conduct an audit/review of these funds. The National Board is also responsible for monitoring LRO compliance with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance) Item 7, page 54. Site reviews are performed for specific LROs participating in the program as part of monitoring.

National Board Administration and Secretariat

The National Board has selected United Way Worldwide as the Secretariat and Fiscal Agent to perform the necessary administrative duties for the Board. An administrative allowance of one percent of the total award may be used for National Board administration.

Grant Payment Process

United Way Worldwide has been designated as the Fiscal Agent for the National Board and as such will process all Local Board plans and make payments directly to eligible LROs recommended by Local Boards for funding.



The National Board will not issue any payments to a jurisdiction until the previous phase's final report has been received in its entirety. No payments will be issued to any LRO with any known or unresolved compliance problems in any jurisdiction in which they have previously received funds including the previous phase's final report, if reviewed.

Payments will also not be issued to LROs with identified exceptions/findings in any compliance review, audit or assessment conducted which includes EFSP funding.

Method of Payment

All awards will be paid in two equal installments. Except for the first check to newly funded LROs, the National Board will make all payments by electronic funds transfer (EFT) only. If an LRO has received funds subsequent to October 1998 (Phase 17), they are not considered new for payment purposes; therefore, they must have <u>EFT</u> in place to receive payments. This authorization form is

To add/update EFT information, the LRO must log into the EFSP website. On the left-hand menu, there is an option for EFT, where you will find the appropriate form and instructions. This form is specific to each LRO and cannot be generated by the Local Board. There is a webinar with detailed instructions on how to set up an EFT on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

made available to each new LRO with their first payment notice and may be printed from the EFSP website or it may be obtained by contacting the National Board staff for the preprinted authorization form.

First Payments

The National Board will issue first payments upon the acceptance of the Local Board Plan. First payments will be made by EFT to eligible LROs funded in the previous phase. LROs with any known compliance problems from any phase in any jurisdiction in which they received funds are not eligible to be paid until all compliance problems are resolved.

EFSP releases funds in two installments. The first payment is distributed after the Local Board Plan has been processed, accepted and the Final Report from the previous Phase has been received. The second payment is released after the Final Report from the previous Phase has been accepted and an Interim Report/Second Payment Request is submitted and approved.

The National Board will issue checks to newly funded eligible LROs (those not funded prior to the EFT requirement established in October 1998) for the first payment <u>only</u>.

Awards totaling \$100,000 or more will only be paid upon submission of the Certification Regarding Lobbying. See Annex 5, page 95.

Second Payments

Second payments will be made to eligible LROs once the jurisdiction's compliance review of the previous phase is completed and any compliance problems resolved in any jurisdiction in which an LRO has received funds. Compliance resolution after the end of the funded phase does not guarantee that any remaining award will be forthcoming. Notice of second payments will be made to Local Boards and LROs, via email, only upon the submission of each LRO's Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form. See pages 32-32 for further details. This form is available on the EFSP website only after an LRO has received their first payment.

The Interim Report/Second Payment Request submission is a two-step process. The LRO must report on the first payment by indicating how the funds were spent to date in the categories through the online form. If funds were unspent, they must be entered in the unspent category on the form. The Interim Report/Second Payment Request must only reflect the total of the first payment issued to the agency. The LRO will then electronically sign the Interim Report/Second

A webinar detailing the process for submitting an Interim Report and Second Payment Request is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Payment Request Form generated by DocuSign. Then the Local Board will approve and electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form through DocuSign once the Local Board assures the LRO is implementing the program as intended and according to EFSP guidelines or other requirements established by the Local Board.

Second payment requests must be submitted via the website by each funded LRO and both the LRO and Local Board must electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request through the DocuSign process provided by EFSP to complete the submission to the National Board.

The National Board will advise Local Boards and LROs of the deadline to request all second payments under Phase 35. Second payments will be held until <u>all</u> compliance exceptions (if any) are satisfied by the LRO. LROs with unresolved compliance exceptions or compliance exceptions resolved after the end of the funded phase <u>may not be paid</u>.

Subsequent Payments

If an LRO receives additional EFSP funds after the second payment has been made (e.g., through a national reallocation), the National Board will issue a subsequent payment to the LRO once the reallocation is made; notification will be sent via email.

State Set-Aside Payments

State Set-Aside funding will be included either in part with the first and second payment or in whole with the second payment, if the first payment has already been made.

Client Eligibility

The EFSP is a need based program, for which clients must qualify.

The National Board does not set client eligibility criteria. Local Boards may choose to set such criteria. If the Local Board does not set eligibility criteria, the LRO may use its existing criteria or set

EFSP is a need based program. Client qualifications are set locally based on the needs of the community.

criteria for assistance under this award. Any criteria used must provide for assistance to needy individuals without discrimination (age, race, sex, religion, national origin, disability, economic status or sexual orientation), sensitivity to the transition from temporary shelter to permanent homes and attention to the specialized needs of homeless individuals with mental and physical disabilities and illness and to facilitate access for homeless individuals to other sources of services and benefits. In providing assistance under the EFSP, verification of proof of citizenship or qualified alien status of any applicant for assistance is not required. **Note: Funds allocated to a jurisdiction can only be used for permanent residents and transients within that jurisdiction.**

FEMA Responsibilities

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) will:

- 1. Constitute a National Board consisting of individuals affiliated with American Red Cross; Catholic Charities USA; National Council of Churches of Christ in the USA; The Jewish Federations of North America; The Salvation Army; United Way Worldwide; and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).
- Chair the National Board, using parliamentary procedures and consensus by the National Board as the mode of operation.
- 3. Provide policy guidance, monitoring and oversight, Federal coordination and staff assistance to the National Board.
- 4. Award the grant to the National Board.
- 5. Assist the Secretariat and Fiscal Agent in implementing the National Board Program.
- 6. Report to Congress on the year's program activities independently and through the U.S. Interagency Council on Homelessness Annual Report.
- 7. Through the DHS Office of the Inspector General (OIG), and FEMA Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO), monitor the National Board's annual audit of the program.
- 8. Monitor the overall administration and management of the grant expenditures.
- 9. Obtain reports from the Secretariat and Fiscal Agent, which provide detailed accounting of all program monies.

State Set-Aside Committee Responsibilities



The Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) is a restricted federal grant. All federal grants have terms and conditions that apply to all parties participating in the grant. For the EFSP, all parties means the National Board which is considered the *Recipient*, State Set-Aside Committees (SSAs), Local Boards, and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that are considered the *Sub-Recipients*. See Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions and Other Terms and Conditions, pages 45-62 for additional requirements.

The <u>State Set-Aside (SSA)</u> Committee process under the Emergency Food and Shelter Program allows greater flexibility in selection of jurisdictions to target pockets of homelessness or poverty. The SSA Committee should consider jurisdictions which have documented measures of need that are not adequately reflected in unemployment or poverty data, areas experiencing drastic economic changes such as plant closings, and areas with high levels of unemployment or poverty which do not meet the minimum level of unemployment to qualify under the National Board's formula.

Basis of State Award

Funds allocated to SSA Committees will be based on a ratio calculated as follows: each state's average number of unemployed in non-funded jurisdictions divided by the average number of unemployed in non-funded jurisdictions nationwide equals each state's percentage of the total amount available for SSA awards. There will be no SSA award should all jurisdictions in a state qualify for funding except to satisfy a minimum award per state.

Deadline

The National Board will provide SSA Committees with a specific deadline for the submission of award materials. The deadline is approximately 25 working days after award notification. State Set-Aside Committees not meeting this specific deadline risks the loss of these funds.

For technical assistance in administering this program, please contact EFSP staff at 703-706-9660 or efsp@uww.unitedway.org. Please have your 6-digit Local Board ID number ready when you call.

Selection of SSA Jurisdictions

SSA Committees in each state will submit high need jurisdictions and award amounts to the National Board. **SSA** Committees must give priority to and consider the special circumstances of jurisdictions that did not meet criteria for direct funding, including those that qualified in the most recent funding phase or other prior phases. SSA Committees may wish to provide these jurisdictions with an allocation so that the abrupt change in funding status is not too disruptive to local services.

SSA Committees may consider qualifying jurisdictions with extreme need for additional funding. SSA Committees wishing to provide additional funding to qualifying jurisdictions **must** submit a request to the National Board.

SSA Committees must submit a variance request form to the National Board to fund directly qualifying jurisdictions. The required variance form is included in the SSA award packet.

The National Board recommends that SSA Committees consider current state and/or local data in their decision making; however, the National Board does not mandate any particular formula.

These committees are free to act independently in developing their funding formula and in selecting jurisdictions for funding; however, each SSA Committee funding formula is subject to review by the National Board. SSA Committees

must provide the National Board with selection criteria and the formula used to determine jurisdictions to receive funds according to the required process.

The minimum SSA award that may be made to a jurisdiction is \$2,800.

Composition

The National Board will notify the chair or contact of the previous SSA Committee of the award amount available. In a state where there are state-level affiliates of the voluntary organizations represented on the National Board, they <u>must</u> be invited to serve on the SSA Committee. If no single state affiliate exists, appropriate representatives should be invited. The National Board member agencies are the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), American Red Cross, Catholic Charities USA, The Jewish Federations of North America, National Council of the Churches of Christ in the USA, The Salvation Army and United Way Worldwide. **The Governor or his/her representative will replace the FEMA member.**

SSA Committees are encouraged to expand participation by inviting or notifying other nonprofit organizations on the state level. The National Board encourages SSA Committees to include Native Americans, minorities, and other appropriate representatives on the committee. Members of the SSA Committee shall elect a chair each phase.

Participation of Special Emphasis Groups

Additionally, SSA Committees should involve and include the needs of the special emphasis groups identified in the legislation (e.g., elderly, families with children, Native Americans, veterans, and mentally and physically disabled) in convening their committees and selecting areas for funding.

SSA Committee Function

SSA Committees must develop a formula that considers needs and resource gaps in services, to select high-need jurisdictions to determine award amounts (*minimum \$2,800*) within the state. When selecting jurisdictions with demonstrated need, the National Board encourages the consideration of jurisdictions incorporating or adjoining Native American reservations. The SSA Committee will notify the National Board, as required of its selections and the appropriate

contact person for any selected jurisdiction without a previously established Local Board or contact. The National Board will then notify these jurisdictions directly of their awards.

If the selected jurisdictions do not claim awards, SSA Committees may recommend other jurisdictions to receive the unclaimed funds.

SSA Committees may reclaim funds from jurisdictions that do not claim their award in an appropriate amount of time and reallocate those funds to other jurisdictions.

Administrative Allowance

The SSA Committee may use an administrative allowance of one-half of one percent (½%) of the total SSA award for its administrative costs.

Local Board Responsibilities



The Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) is a restricted federal grant. All federal grants have terms and conditions that apply to all parties participating in the grant. For the EFSP, all parties means the National Board which is considered the *Recipient*, State Set-Aside Committees (SSAs), Local Boards, and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that are considered the *Sub-Recipients*. See Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions and Other Terms and Conditions, pages 45-62 for additional requirements.



The National Board assigns each jurisdiction a unique ID number for the program as well as numbers for each LRO. When contacting the National Board for assistance regarding this program, please reference your 6-digit Local Board ID number (example: 1234-56).

Each award phase is new; therefore, the Local Board is a new entity in every phase. The convener of the Local Board must ask each National Board agency to designate or re-designate a representative every program year. Other invited agencies must also designate or re-designate a representative each year. Each agency represented on the Local Board should have an alternate from their agency to attend meetings when the designated board member is unable to attend. If there is more than one representative from an agency/organization present, only one vote is allowed for the agency/organization. To ensure funding, the Local Board chair or staff must submit via the website, and return all required current, updated forms as follows to the National Board by the specified deadline:

- 1. Local Board Plan, including LRO information via the website with designation of dollar amounts [whole dollars only of \$500 or more] awarded;
- 2. Signed Local Board Certification Form,
- 3. Local Board Roster, (the roster information must be updated via the EFSP website prior to submission)
- 4. LRO Certification Form for all funded LROs; and,
- 5. Certification Regarding Lobbying Forms, as needed.

The National Board assigns each jurisdiction a unique ID number under this program as well as numbers for each LRO either new in this phase or previously funded. When contacting the National Board for assistance regarding this program, please reference your Local Board's ID and LRO ID numbers, if needed.

For technical assistance in administering this program, please contact EFSP staff at 703-706-9660 or efsp@uww.unitedway.org. Please have your 6-digit Local Board ID number ready when you call.

Composition/Roster

Each jurisdiction designated by the National Board to receive funds will constitute a Local Board. Local representatives of the National Board member agencies <u>must</u> be invited to serve on the Local Board. The National Board member agencies are the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), American Red Cross, Catholic Charities USA, The Jewish Federations of North America, National Council of the Churches of Christ in the USA, The Salvation Army and United Way Worldwide. An agency's own governing board cannot replace or act as the Local Board.

The highest ranking county government official or his/her designee will replace the National Board's FEMA member.

National Board Affiliates

Each Local Board will provide a roster of current members with their plan. The roster must reflect the status of National Board member agencies. If a National Board member agency does not serve the jurisdiction, this must be noted on the Local Board roster. The National Board requires complete business contact information for all Local Board members. Required information for all Local Board members consists of:

- the name of the agency they are representing;
- the Board Member's name;
- the address including zip + 4;
- the telephone number,
- the fax number; and,
- a current, valid email address.

If an agency is invited but chooses not to participate, the same information must be provided noting that they were "invited but did not participate" on the Local Board roster. The name of the individual invited must be included along with all of the agency contact information.

Local Boards cannot delete a board member from a required National Board affiliate without replacing them with a representative from the same agency. We recommend editing and updating the contact information for required National Board affiliates, instead of adding new members and deleting old members to ensure you have appropriate representation. To do this, select Manage LB Members from the left-hand menu. Then select the board member you would like to change, and click edit. After you have changed the contact information, click save.

If the convener of the Local Board is unsure of the appropriate National Board affiliate to invite, they should check the National Board members' agency's website. In jurisdictions where affiliates of National Board agencies do not exist, other appropriate groups and individuals **must** be invited to sit on the Local Board. For example, if there is no Catholic Charities, a comparable Roman Catholic group or a priest could serve. In the case of The Jewish Federations of North America (JFNA), if no local Jewish Federation exists in a given jurisdiction, each Local Board must first check with JFNA to identify local JFNA-affiliated Jewish organizations to serve. Please check their web site, <u>www.jewishfederations.org</u>, or you may call JFNA at (202) 785-5900. If none are available, then a comparable group or synagogue representative may be asked to serve. The National Council of Churches of Christ (NCCC) is a wide spectrum of Protestant, Anglican, Orthodox, Evangelical, historic African American and Living Peace churches. The NCCC could be represented by a local or regional ecumenical or interfaith council of churches in partnership with the NCCC, or a representative of a congregation of one of the member communions of the NCCC. To establish whether a potential board member is an appropriate representative of the NCCC, contact the Office of the General Secretary at 212-870-3398.

It is not a requirement for either a mandated National Board member agency or other agencies to have a physical site in a jurisdiction in order to be on the Local Board. Any agency providing services to a jurisdiction may be invited to participate on the Local Board and National Board member agencies serving a jurisdiction <u>must</u> be invited even if their primary physical location is in an adjoining jurisdiction.

Local Board Membership & Voting

Agencies are represented on Local Boards and <u>each agency is entitled to one vote</u>. Each agency must name a representative to the Local Board although other individuals may also attend meetings. When voting, only the official representative (or designated alternate) may vote on behalf of the organization.

Local Board membership must have no relationship to funding and is not a guarantee of funding. Local Board members must abstain from voting on award applications for their own agency. Local Board members do not have to abstain from voting on award applications based on religious or other affiliations.

In jurisdictions where multiple organizations exist, the organization still only gets one vote and the agencies must work together and vote as one. For example, United Way of County – North and United Way of County – South are considered to be one organization – United Way. United Way gets one vote. Additionally, no United Way may vote on any United Way award. The same would be true for multiple units of The Salvation Army, Community Action Agency, local government, etc.

Participation by Homeless, Formerly Homeless or Homeless Advocate

Legislation requires all Local Boards to include in their membership a homeless or formerly homeless person. Local Boards <u>must</u> seek recommendations from LROs for an appropriate representative.

Local Boards who are unable to secure a homeless or formerly homeless representative <u>must</u> have a past recipient of food or shelter services or a homeless advocate on their Local Board. A homeless advocacy group may be invited to serve this roll <u>only if</u> those noted previously are unavailable to serve.

Native American Participation

Legislation requires that if a jurisdiction is located within or encompasses a Federally recognized Native American reservation, the Local Board <u>must</u> invite a Native American representative to serve on the Board. In addition, legislation requires that if there is a Native American population in a jurisdiction, they must be invited to serve.

Local Board Expansion

The designated members of the Local Board are encouraged to expand their membership by inviting participation from minority populations and other private nonprofit organizations and government organizations. In addition, all geographic areas within the jurisdiction should be represented. Local Boards may want to expand to broaden community input from other national nonprofit organizations (e.g., Community Action, Feeding America, Volunteers of America) as well as those providing emergency food and shelter services (e.g., food pantries, soup kitchens, domestic violence shelters). In designing the EFSP, Congress created a unique public-private partnership that brings the voluntary sector and the government together to address critical human needs in the areas of hunger and homelessness. When expanding, Local Boards should carefully cultivate this public-private partnership.

Participation of Special Emphasis Groups

In expanding, Local Boards <u>must</u> involve organizations that advocate for or provide services to the special emphasis groups identified in the legislation (e.g., elderly, families with children, Native Americans, veterans, and mentally and physically disabled).

Election of Chair

The members of the Local Board <u>must</u> elect a chair each award Phase. The Local Board chair is not an honorary position. Local Boards may also designate staff and/or a contact person for their jurisdiction. Care <u>must</u> be taken to select individuals who are reliable, accessible and knowledgeable about the program.

Keeping contact information up to date is critical for EFSP communication and DocuSign procedures.

Notifications of Changes in Contacts/Addresses



Local Boards are responsible for maintaining a current roster of members and LRO information via the EFSP website. Local Boards must notify the National Board of changes in Local Board chair, staff contact, or LRO contacts, including complete business addresses, phone numbers, fax numbers and

current, valid email addresses. This information must be submitted via the EFSP website. Board and LRO changes should be updated as they occur throughout the Phase.

Local Board Participation

The National Board will communicate with Local Board chairs, contacts, members and LROs primarily through email. For EFSP purposes only, email addresses and other contact information may be shared, so business information and email is recommended. Local Board membership is not honorary. If a member cannot regularly attend meetings, that member's designated agency must select a replacement. The designated agency must also designate an alternate. If a member must be absent from a meeting, the agency's alternate should attend.

Convening the Local Board

If a locality has not previously received funding and is now designated as being in high need, the National Board has designated the local United Way to constitute and convene a Local Board. In the event there is no local United Way, or the United Way does not convene the Board, a representative from one of the National Board organizations will convene the initial meeting of the Local Board.

Reconvening the Local Board

If a jurisdiction has previously received funds, the National Board will contact the Local Board chair or designated contact person from the previous phase regarding funding. If the previous Local Board chair/contact fails to convene the Local Board for the new award, the process noted above will be followed. If the previous phase's Local Board has failed to comply with National Board guidelines, the National Board will work to find another Local Board convener.

Local Board Meetings

The National Board requires Local Boards to select one of the following options for meetings during the Phase and specify such in the required materials (Local Board Plan Certification and Final Report submission). <u>Meetings may be</u> conducted via conference calls.

1. Quarterly meetings:

The National Board encourages Local Boards to meet quarterly to monitor the program and ensure LROs are implementing the program according to guidelines.

2. Semiannual meetings:

Local Boards meeting twice a year must also monitor the program and ensure that LROs are implementing the program according to guidelines. They must also ensure all program requirements and deadlines are met, including the submission of both online materials and required paperwork.

Local Boards electing to hold meetings semiannually must submit copies of their meeting minutes with the jurisdiction's Final Report. Failure to return this information may result in the delay of any future funding to the jurisdiction.

Quorum Requirements

A quorum of member agencies must be present for meetings to be official and to take any action. (Quorum: According to Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary, the majority of officers or members of a body that when duly assembled is legally competent to transact business.) If there is more than one representative from an agency/organization present, only one vote is allowed for the agency/organization. Meeting minutes must be voted on and approved by the Local Board at the next meeting. Meeting minutes must also be available to the National Board, Federal authorities, and the public upon request.

Meeting Minutes

Meeting minutes must include but are not limited to the following:

- names of members attending;
- members absent;
- notation of participation of homeless or formerly homeless member;
- date, time and location of the meeting;
- approval of previous Local Board meeting minutes;
- agenda action items (decision making items, votes taken [i.e., election of chair, allocation of funds, reallocation]);
- date, time and location of next meeting; and,
- meeting adjournment.

Minutes must include sufficient detail of the Board's discussion and decisions.

Local Board Plan Deadline

The National Board will provide Local Boards with a specific deadline for the submission of the board plan with award materials. The board plan must be submitted via the EFSP website using the instructions provided. Following the online submission, all required paperwork must be received by the National Board for the submission to be complete. The deadline is approximately 25 working days after award notification. Local Boards not meeting the specified deadline risk the loss of these funds.

A webinar detailing the process for submitting a Local Board Plan is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Local Boards that meet semi-annually are

their final report.

required to submit their meeting minutes with

Advertising

Local Boards must publicly advertise in the print media and promote the program to give any agency capable of providing emergency food and shelter services an opportunity to apply for funds. Advertising must take place prior to the Local Board's allocation of funds. Local Boards must ensure their advertisement acknowledges the Federal funding source as required by the Grant Agreement Articles on pages 45-46. Failure to advertise properly will delay processing of the jurisdiction's board plan and subsequent payment of funds. Local Boards must allow at least <u>five business days</u> after publication of the advertisement for interested agencies to apply for funding. The Local Board should retain a copy of the public advertisement in their records and have it available for review, if requested. It is important that the Local Board places the advertisement in the most widely available local print media forum for a jurisdiction since

When a jurisdiction is funded, the Local Board must advertise the availability of funds. Local organizations, whether nonprofit or governmental, may apply. The Local Board is responsible for considering all applications, and for determining which organizations will receive funds. The Local Board also determines which services are funded. To identify your Local Board contact, select Your Community from the EFSP homepage, then select Funded Organizations and enter your state and county. There is no national application process.

any agency providing or capable of providing emergency food and shelter services must have the opportunity to apply for funding. Failure to advertise according to the National Board's requirements will result in a delay in processing the Local Board Plan.

- See Annex 15, pages 109-27 for advertising requirements and a sample advertisement.
- See Annex 16, page 111 for application elements.

Local Boards do not have to re-advertise the availability of funds for additional allocations within the same phase unless specifically required by the National Board.

Disaster Recovery Plan

Local Boards should have a disaster recovery plan ensuring continuity of services under EFSP and records retention. Each Local Board is required to retain EFSP records for a period of three years after submission of the Final Report, <u>unless</u> there are compliance issues which require a longer retention period. Records that should be retained include:

- copies of decision-making minutes;
- Local Board Plans;
- Local Board and LRO Final Reports with documentation as appropriate;
- second payment request forms;
- reallocation forms;
- LRO funding applications;
- LRO Certification Forms;
- Lobbying Certification Forms, if necessary; and,
- administrative expense documentation (vendor invoices and canceled checks or other approved method of payment).

Local Boards must also retain documentation regarding all outstanding compliance problems including those from all prior phases which may not be part of the three-year retention period. Additionally, Local Boards should retain other pertinent information for their jurisdiction that provides background and history of their operations.

The U.S. Department of Homeland Security's website contains business continuity information which may be helpful to LROs. <u>www.ready.gov/business</u>.

Reference Item 5, page 53 and Annexes 12-13, pages 103-106.

Setting Priorities and Selection of LROs



Local Boards must set funding priorities annually prior to the selection of agencies for funding. Local Boards must look at the resources available in the community, the emergency food and shelter needs of the community, gaps in services in the community and focus the dollars to address these needs in the areas of emergency food and shelter. The priorities may vary from year to year, so each award phase must be evaluated individually. Once priorities are set, the Local Board must review the priorities of the jurisdiction and select LROs to help meet the identified needs.

Local Boards may not discriminate in the selection of LROs. Local Board members must strive to use consistent criteria, sound judgment, and fairness in their approach. Local Board membership must have no relationship to funding and is not a guarantee of funding. Local Board members must abstain from voting on award applications for their own agency.



Local Boards cannot select agencies for funding where the agency has received an adverse or no opinion audit in their independent audit.

Any agency, regardless of services offered or populations served, must be given equal opportunity to apply for funding. All applicant agencies must comply with all articles, terms and conditions of this funding and must sign and submit the EFSP provided LRO Certification Form to receive funds. Agencies must have a program in the category for which they are seeking funding.

Local Boards must have a written application process and consider all private voluntary and public agency applicants. In selecting an agency to receive funds, the Local Board must consider the demonstrated ability of that agency to provide food and/or shelter assistance.

The Local Board must select agencies that have the staff and capacity to take on the added responsibility of this program and who can comply with and maintain documentation and accountability Suggested application questions include information that is necessary for the Local Board to submit to the National Board on their Local Board Plan or that comes directly from the LRO Certification Form. See Annex 16, page 111 for suggested Standard Application Elements.

standards. Local Boards must select fully operational agencies to receive funds to supplement and expand eligible on-going services and must not fund agencies in anticipation of a needed service (i.e., fire victims, floods, tornadoes, etc.) nor for singular or special celebratory/holiday events. Local Boards should not select agencies for funding due to budget shortfalls or due to reductions in other funding sources.

See Annex 16, page 111 for Standard Application Elements.

Funding of LROs Serving Special Emphasis Groups

Any agency, including those on Native American reservations, is eligible to receive EFSP funding if they meet LRO requirements. Additionally, Local Boards must consider the needs of agencies serving the special emphasis groups (i.e., elderly, families with children, Native Americans, veterans, and mentally and physically disabled) in their selection of LROs.

The minimum grant per LRO is \$500, unless only receiving administrative funding. Only whole dollar amounts may be allocated. Local Boards should be prepared to justify an allocation of one-third or more of their total allocation to a single LRO.

Any LRO that will receive \$100,000 or more in EFSP funds is required to submit:

- a certification that EFSP funds will not be used for lobbying activities; and
- a disclosure of lobbying activities (if applicable). <u>LROs must submit these items prior to award payment</u>. See Annex 5, page 95 for Certification Regarding Lobbying.

At the beginning of each phase, the Local Board must secure and retain signed LRO Certification Forms from each LRO certifying that program guidelines have been read and understood, and that the LROs will comply with all program requirements including the Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions and Other Terms and Conditions stated on pages 45-62 in addition to the cost eligibility and reporting requirements. (LRO Certification Forms for all LROs must be submitted with the Local Board Plan to the National Board.) Refer to Annex 3, page 93. If after reading the LRO Certification Form, the agency determines that it cannot abide by the EFSP guidelines, they must notify the Local Board immediately and not incur any costs or charge any expenses against the grant.

Coordination of Service



The Local Board <u>must</u> establish a system to ensure that no duplication of payment occurs within the expenditure categories of rent/mortgage assistance or utility assistance. <u>Multiple LROs may not provide assistance to the same client for the same service</u>.

Client Eligibility

The EFSP is a needs based program, for which clients must qualify.

Local Boards may determine client eligibility for EFSP or use established LRO eligibility. Any criteria used must provide for assistance to needy individuals without discrimination (age, race, sex, religion, national origin, disability, economic status or sexual EFSP is a need based program. Client qualifications are set locally based on the needs of the community.

orientation), sensitivity to the transition from temporary shelter to permanent homes and attention to the specialized needs of homeless individuals with mental and physical disabilities and illness and to facilitate access for homeless individuals to other sources of services and benefits. In providing assistance under the EFSP, verification of proof of citizenship or qualified alien status of any applicant for assistance is not required.

A separate needs test for assistance under EFSP may be developed and used by LROs, but must first be approved by the Local Board. The Local Board must inform LROs of any eligibility criteria set by the Local Board.

Notification of Changes in LRO Contact/Address

Local Boards must notify the National Board if there is a change in LRO contact for business purposes, including complete:

- addresses,
- phone numbers,
- fax numbers, and
- valid email addresses.

Keeping contact information up to date is critical for EFSP communication and DocuSign procedures. Most administrative functions will not be able to be completed without an accurate email address on file.



Changes for the jurisdiction's EFSP information should be updated throughout the phase as they occur via the website.

When there is a change in the name of an LRO or a change with an LRO's Federal Employee Identification Number (FEIN) or Data Universal Number System (DUNS), the legal document supporting those changes must be forwarded to the National Board before the changes can be made. There is specific form available on the EFSP website for adding/updating the DUNS number in the database. Ensure the Local Board and LRO ID numbers are included in all correspondence.

To change your Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN), the LRO must send the document from the IRS or state that reflects their full legal name and FEIN number. Legal name, FEIN and DUNs numbers cannot be edited by the LRO or the Local Board on the website. Please do not send the FEIN in the body of an email or letter, as it cannot be accepted. Please send documentation with a cover note for a FEIN change with the LRO ID Number to documentstoefst@uww.unitedway.org or fax to 703-706-9677.

The National Board will communicate with LROs primarily through email. For EFSP purposes only, email addresses and other contact information may be shared, so business contact information and email is recommended.

Combining Local Boards

If a Local Board determines that they can better utilize their resources by merging with neighboring Local Boards, they may do so. The head of government or his/her designee for <u>each</u> jurisdiction must sit on the merged board, along with, at a minimum, National Board agency representatives from <u>each</u> jurisdiction. Voting and DUNS numbers alone are not sufficient for EFSP purposes and neither Local Boards nor LROs can enter this information on the EFSP website. DUNS numbers and associated information are required for all LROs receiving funds in the EFSP. The DUNS information form and instructions are posted under the Local Board and LRO section of the EFSP website. This form (third page under the DUNS tab) must be completed accurately and emailed to documentstoefsp@uww.unitedway.org or faxed to 703-706-9677. Simply providing the DUNS number alone does not fulfill the EFSP's requirements; the form must be completed in its entirety.

decision-making must be limited to <u>only</u> those Local Board members either providing services to the jurisdiction under consideration or representing the jurisdiction. The merged Local Board must ensure that the award amount designated for each civil jurisdiction is used to provide assistance to individuals within that jurisdiction.

Communication

Local Boards are responsible for communicating with Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) and should do so throughout the life cycle of each Phase for which funds are received. Strong communication links are valuable in program administration; constant communication may also help avoid delays in funding/payments and compliance exceptions. Local Boards should develop a communications plan that assists with their responsibility to monitor the EFSP in their jurisdiction. Local Board communications should be ongoing and done as part of technical assistance and monitoring.

Key communication periods are:

- Application for funding
- Awarding of funds
- Requesting second payments
- Making reallocations
- Reporting final expenditures
- Requiring and reviewing documentation
- Notification of deadlines
- Notification of compliance problems

Local Boards may communicate with LROs via email, letters, meetings or webpage created for the EFSP program in the community.

Technical Assistance

Local Boards must read, understand and be familiar with the EFSP guidelines as found in this manual and provide technical assistance to LROs. Local Boards are responsible for the training of all LROs and should ensure new LROs have thoroughly read this manual and are trained before incurring expenses. The Local Board should be familiar with any personnel changes within an agency to ensure that new staff are trained. Questions that cannot be answered by Local Boards must

An overview webinar for new Local Board and LRO contacts is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

be referred to the National Board staff. Any matter of interpretation must be referred to the National Board staff at

<u>efsp@uww.unitedway.org</u>. Please reference your Local Board ID number and LRO number when contacting the National Board staff.



The EFSP website (www.efsp.unitedway.org) has a training feature for Local Boards and LROs to familiarize new staff and board members with EFSP requirements under **Training Workshops**. FEMA's Emergency Management Institute also provides a training opportunity through the following link: (http://www.training.fema.gov/emiweb/IS/IS420.asp).

Appeals Process

Local Boards <u>must</u> establish a written appeals process to address participation or funding and to hear and resolve appeals made by funded LROs or non-funded agencies. **Local Boards must handle appeals promptly**.

Local decision-making is an operating principle of this emergency effort. If the Local Board cannot handle an appeal locally, the case should be referred in writing to the National Board, including details on action that has been taken. Only when there are significant questions on the part of the Local Board concerning misapplication of guidelines, fraud or other abuse on the part of the Local Board will the National Board consider action.

Should anyone have reason to suspect that EFSP funds are being used for purposes contrary to the law and guidelines governing this program, the National Board staff must be notified immediately. A detailed follow-up letter of actions taken should be forwarded as soon as possible to Emergency Food and Shelter Program, 701 North Fairfax Street, Alexandria, VA, 22314. When reports have been made to the DHS OIG, the case number they provide must be included with all correspondence to the National Board. The OIG's preferred method for reporting fraud is to submit their online allegation form from their website www.oig.dhs.gov. The address for mailing information is:

DHS Office of Inspector General/ MAIL STOP 0305 Attention: Office of Integrity & Quality Oversight – Hotline 245 Murray Lane SW Washington, DC 20528-0305

For more details, see pages 34-35.

Local Resource Coordination

The chair of the Local Board or his/her designated staff will be the central coordination point of contact between the National Board staff and the LROs selected to receive EFSP funds. Additionally, the Local Board, if requested by the National Board, should nominate an appropriate feeding organization to receive surplus food from the U. S. Department of Defense commissaries.

Monitoring LROs

Local Boards are responsible for monitoring LROs throughout the phase in their use of EFSP funds. Each Local Board must establish a process for monitoring LROs, including ensuring that LROs have read and understand the manual. Local Boards must review required reports and documentation for completeness, and compliance with program guidelines, including the agency's annual audit/review, if required.

Local Boards must ensure that LROs expending \$750,000 or more in Federal funds, comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance) Item 7, page 54.

Local Boards <u>cannot</u> change National Board cost eligibility, approve expenditures outside of the National Board's guidelines, or approve changes in documentation requirements without National Board permission.

As part of LRO monitoring, Local Boards must investigate complaints made by individuals seeking services under this program. At times, the National Board may request Local Board assistance in investigating client complaints. Local Boards must investigate and report to the National Board, if required.

Interim Report

The interim report of expenditures is due to the National Board as part of each LRO's second payment request. The National Board will advise LROs of the deadline for the submission of the Interim Report/Second Payment Request form to their Local Board. Local Boards may determine and advise their LROs of an earlier due date to ensure the jurisdiction meets the National Board's deadline. A second payment request must be submitted via the website by each

A webinar detailing the process for submitting an Interim Report and Second Payment Request is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

funded LRO. The LRO will then electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form generated by DocuSign. Then the Local Board will approve and electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form through the DocuSign process. Local Boards must electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request by the established deadline. Only electronic signatures created through the DocuSign process provided by the National Board will be accepted.

Second payments will be made to eligible LROs once the jurisdiction's compliance review of the previous phase is completed and any compliance problems resolved in any jurisdiction in which an LRO has received funds. Compliance resolution after the end of the funded phase does not guarantee that any remaining award will be forthcoming. Notice of second payments will be made to Local Boards and LROs, via email, only upon the submission of each LRO's Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form.



The Interim Report/Second Payment Request submission is a two-step process: 1). Web submission and 2). Electronic signature of the Interim Report/Second Payment Request form.

After the LRO(s) complete the form online, they will need to electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request generated by DocuSign. The Local Board chair will approve the request by electronically signing the Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form once assured the LRO is implementing the program as intended and according to EFSP guidelines or

Keeping contact information up to date is critical for EFSP communication and DocuSign procedures. Interim Reports/Second Payment Requests will not be able to be completed without an accurate email address on file.

other requirements established by the Local Board. The LRO must report on the first payment by indicating how the funds were spent to date in the categories. If funds were unspent, they must be entered in the unspent category on the form. The Interim Report/Second Payment Request must balance to the total of the first payment issued to the agency.

Final Report

Local Boards must submit a Final Report (accompanied by financial documentation for specified LROs) approximately 45 days after the end of the jurisdiction's spending period or upon a date determined by the National Board. The National Board will advise Local Boards and LROs of the submission deadline. The National Board will provide forms and instructions for all required reports. Local Boards may request other reports from LROs (e.g., monthly or quarterly updates).

A webinar detailing the process for submitting a Final Report is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

A complete Final Report submission will include the following items collated in numerical order by LRO ID number:

- A signed Local Board Final Report Certification;
- A signed Local Recipient Organization Final Report Certification for each funded LRO;
- Completed spreadsheets for each spending category for each funded LRO;
- All required documentation for each funded LRO, as requested; and
- A copy of the LRO audits, as required.

Reallocation of Funds

Local Boards may decide to reallocate funds within their jurisdiction. Funds may be reallocated locally at any time during the program spending period. When funds are reallocated from one Local Recipient Organization (LRO) to another, the Local Board must inform both the National Board and affected LROs in writing. The National Board will be informed via the website. The Local Board must advise in writing, all concerned LROs of any reallocation of their original award. LROs must be informed in writing.

A webinar detailing the process for submitting a Reallocation is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

When requesting reallocations, please indicate if the funds are being transferred locally or if they are to be issued by the National Board. If a portion of the funds are being reallocated locally and another portion nationally, separate reallocations must be submitted.

Local Reallocation:

If the funds to be reallocated have already been paid to LROs in the jurisdiction, the funds must be transferred locally. In this case, the LRO whose funds are being reallocated must write a check to the LRO(s) receiving the funds.

National Reallocation:

If the National Board has not paid out the funds, payments will be issued to the appropriate LRO as requested by the Local Board.

Important Information About Reallocations:

The Local Board must reallocate funds during the spending period whenever it determines that the original allocation plan does not reflect the actual need for services or if an LRO cannot effectively utilize the full award. Local Boards must reallocate funds if an LRO makes ineligible expenditures or uses funds for items that have clearly not been approved by the Local Board. Local Boards must also reallocate funds because of gross negligence, inadequate use of funds, failure to use funds for purposes intended and any other violation of National Board guidelines or the Local Board plan. LROs must comply with their Local Boards' reallocation decisions.

Local Boards must reallocate funds held for LROs with unresolved compliance exceptions by the date specified by the National Board or they will be forfeited and reclaimed by the National Board. If an LRO has <u>not</u> previously been funded in the current phase, it may not be funded after the deadline established by the National Board.



Local Boards reallocating funds late in the spending period should ensure the LRO(s) receiving the funds can document the full amount of funds received, including any reallocations within the jurisdiction's spending period.

Local Boards may reallocate funds from one service to another (i.e., from food to shelter) without National Board approval if the transfer is within a single LRO.



Local Boards may not reallocate funds to any LRO with a known compliance problem from any phase of funding in any jurisdiction in which the LRO received funds either currently or previously.

Reallocation to New Agencies

Local Boards may reallocate funds to new LROs, which must be approved by the National Board. Reallocations may not be made to new LROs after the National Board's established deadline. This is the <u>last</u> date to add new LROs. Prior to a new LRO receiving funds, the Local Board must provide the Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) and the Data Universal Number System (DUNS) number issued by Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) along with the associated information.

Returning Funds for Reallocation

If funds are returned to the National Board for reallocation, the check must be made payable to United Way Worldwide/Emergency Food and Shelter Program, 701 North Fairfax Street, Alexandria, VA 22314. The LRO ID Number (9 digits) of the agency returning the funds must be printed on the face of the check in the upper right-hand corner. The Local Board or LRO must indicate the funds are being returned for reallocation.

Reporting Fraud, Theft and Criminal Activity

Should anyone have reason to suspect that EFSP funds are being used for purposes contrary to the law and guidelines governing this program, the National Board staff must be notified immediately. A detailed follow-up letter of actions taken should be forwarded as soon as possible to Emergency Food and Shelter Program, 701 N. Fairfax Street, Alexandria, VA, 22314. When reports have been made to the DHS OIG, the case number they provide must be included with all correspondence to the National Board.

The National Board requires that the DHS OIG be contacted immediately when fraud, theft, or other criminal activity is suspected regarding the use of EFSP funds, or the operation of a facility receiving EFSP funds. The OIG's preferred method for reporting fraud is to submit their online allegation form from their website **www.oig.dhs.gov**. The address for mailing information is:

DHS Office of Inspector General/ MAIL STOP 0305 Attention: Office of Integrity & Quality Oversight – Hotline 245 Murray Lane SW Washington, DC 20528-0305

Persons contacting the OIG should include as much information as possible to support the allegation and preferably furnish his/her name and telephone number so that the Special Agents assigned to that office may follow-up. Federal Law protects the confidentiality of any communication made with the DHS OIG.

A person wishing to remain totally anonymous should make a follow-up phone call to the DHS OIG within 30 days from the date of the original contact so that any follow-up questions may be asked. Follow-up calls should be made to (800) 323-8603 during normal business hours, Eastern Standard Time (charges may be reversed). The caller should advise that he/she is making a follow-up call regarding a prior anonymous complaint.



The DHS OIG will appropriately notify both local law enforcement authorities and the National Board concerning the substance of the allegations and the results of the investigation. The person reporting the allegation should also contact local law enforcement authorities.

End-of-Program

After close of program, Local Boards <u>must</u> review the accuracy of <u>all</u> LRO reports and documentation including the agency's annual audit, if required (see pages 79-80). The Local Board then sends reports for all LROs and documentation for specified LROs to the National Board as requested by the due date indicated on the final reports. In the event expenditures violate the eligible costs under this program or cannot be documented (as required), the Local Board must require reimbursement from the LROs to the National Board.

Record Retention

Local Boards must remain in operation until all program and compliance requirements of the National Board have been satisfied. Local Boards (and LROs) must retain their records related to the program for three years following the submission of the Final Report. Local Boards and LROs must also retain documentation regarding all compliance problems until the problem is resolved even when outside the three-year retention period. See Annex 13, pages 105-106.

Spending Period Extension

Each jurisdiction will be granted the option to extend its spending period by one, two or three months. This extension applies to the entire jurisdiction. Should the jurisdiction receive a grant in the next phase, that phase's spending period will begin the day after the chosen end date. If a Local Board does designate a spending period end date, the spending period will default to the end date January 31, 2019. The other options for the spending period to end are October 31, 2017, November 30, 2017, December 31, 2017, January 31, 2018, February 29, 2018, March 31, 2018, April 30, 2018, May 31, 2018, June 30, 2018, July 31, 2018, August 31, 2018, September 31, 2018, October 31, 2018, November 30, 2018, December 31, 2018, and January 31, 2019. The spending period must be selected at the beginning of the phase when submitting the Local Board Plan. The spending period is then noted on each Local Board and LRO payment advisory. Changes in the spending period must be submitted in writing by the Local Board to the National Board. Ensure the Local Board ID number is included in all correspondence.

At its discretion, the National Board may allow for the extension of the spending period should the receipt of funding to the National Board be delayed beyond the first quarter of the Federal fiscal year. The National Board may allow spending period extensions beyond the initially offered dates and will advise Local Boards as necessary.



If the National Board authorizes a spending period extension, the Local Board must request the extension through the designated form available on the EFSP website.

Variances and Changes

Local Boards may receive requests for variances from applicant agencies or for changes in the spending plans they approved for LROs. Local Boards may fund such requests or may allow such changes if the requested items are eligible costs under this program. Requests that do not adhere to the approved cost eligibility section of this manual may not be

approved by the Local Board. If there is any doubt on the part of the Local Board as to cost eligibility, contact the National Board staff for clarification.

The National Board will consider requests submitted via the website for program variances to the approved cost eligibility that meets the intent of the EFSP. The request for any variance from the Local Board must be made **before** any LRO makes the expenditure and must clearly state the need for the variance, approximate costs, timelines, or any other pertinent information necessary for the National Board to make their decision.

Local Boards may also receive requests from LROs for program variances of the agency responsibility or documentation requirements outlined in this manual. Local Boards may not approve such requests or alter the program or documentation requirements in any way. LROs are required to comply with all agency responsibility and documentation requirements as stated in this manual. Agencies that cannot comply with the requirements should not be selected for funding by the Local Board, including those agencies funded through a Fiscal Agent or Fiscal Conduit. In special circumstances, the National Board will hear variance requests from Local Boards on behalf of LROs who have not complied with agency responsibility and documentation requirements.

The National Board will only allow variances for consideration from Local Boards in support of an agency's request. Variances will not be allowed from individual agencies.

The National Board does not consider variances for EFT enrollment.



Local Boards may not grant program variances to the National Board's guidelines including cost eligibility.

Local Boards may not change the National Board's documentation requirements. Only the National Board may grant variances.

If a variance is granted by the National Board, it is for a single phase for the LRO. A variance does not carry forward into the next phase and it cannot be applied to a previous phase. Each phase, if a variance is required, it must be requested by the Local Board.

Administrative Allowance

The Local Board determines the use of the administrative allowance. The Local Board may elect to use, for its own administrative costs, all or any portion of the 2% allowance. Local Boards may award all or part of the administrative allowance to LROs applying for administrative funds. LROs may receive no more than 2% of their own award for administration. Like all EFSP expenditures, the administrative expenses must be documented with appropriate costs for the administration of the EFSP. Documentation of administrative costs must be maintained including appropriate vendor invoices and proof of payment. Spreadsheets documenting the administrative allowance must be submitted with the Final Report.

While the National Board does not require administrative <u>documentation</u>, other than the spreadsheet, to be submitted with the Final Report, this <u>documentation</u> may be requested at any time and must be retained according to EFSP documentation requirements.

The Local Board may elect to apply the administrative allowance toward advertising expense if necessary. Any of the administrative allowance not spent must be put back into program funds for additional services.

Local Recipient Organization (LRO) Responsibilities



The Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) is a restricted federal grant. All federal grants have terms and conditions that apply to all parties participating in the grant. For the EFSP, all parties means the National Board which is considered the *Recipient*, State Set-Aside Committees (SSAs), Local Boards, and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that are considered the *Sub-Recipients*. See Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions and Other Terms and Conditions, pages 45-62 for additional requirements.



The National Board assigns each jurisdiction a unique ID number for the program as well as numbers for each LRO, whether new or previously funded. When contacting the National Board for assistance regarding this program, please reference your 9-digit LRO ID number, which is your Local Board's ID number plus your LRO number (example: 1234-56-789).

Criteria for LROs

For a local agency to be eligible for funding it must:

- Be nonprofit or an agency of government;
- Not be debarred or suspended from receiving Federal funding;
- Have a checking account and sign up for EFT (cash payments are not allowed);
- Have an accounting system or fiscal agent approved by the Local Board;
- Have a Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN);
- Have a Data Universal Number System (DUNS) number issued by Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) and provide along with other required associated information;
- Have a valid email address for program communication and electronic signature processes;
- Conduct an independent annual audit if receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funds; conduct an annual accountant's review if receiving \$50,000 to \$99,999 in EFSP funds. See Annex 12, page 103.
- Conduct annual audit, if expending \$750,000 or more in Federal funds, in compliance with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance);
- Be providing services and using its other resources in the area in which they are seeking funding;
- Practice nondiscrimination (those agencies with a religious affiliation wishing to participate in the program must not refuse services to an applicant based on religion or require attendance

at religious services as a condition of assistance, nor will such groups engage in any religious proselytizing in any program receiving EFSP funds;

- Have a voluntary board if private, not-for-profit; and,
- To the extent practicable, involve homeless individuals and families, through employment, volunteer programs, etc., in providing emergency food and shelter services.

Keeping contact information up to date is critical for EFSP communication and DocuSign procedures.

Contact your local IRS office for more information on securing a FEIN and the necessary form [SS-4] or go to the website: www.irs.gov.

DUNS numbers alone are not sufficient for EFSP purposes and neither Local Boards nor LROs can enter this information on the EFSP website. DUNS numbers and associated information are required for all LROs receiving funds in the EFSP. The DUNS information form and instructions are posted under the Local Board and LRO section of the EFSP website. This form (third page under the DUNS tab) must be completed accurately and emailed to documentstoefsp@uww.unitedway.org or faxed to 703-706-9677. Simply providing the DUNS number alone does not fulfill the EFSP's requirements; the form must be completed in its entirety.



Each award Phase, each LRO must certify to the Local Board by signing the LRO Certification Form for the specific Phase and forwarding it to the Local Board that they have read, understand and agree to abide by the EFSP Responsibilities and Requirements Manual including the LRO Responsibilities section, Financial Terms and Conditions, Program Costs (eligible and ineligible), and Required Documentation. See Annex 3, page 93.

If after reading, electronically signing and submitting the LRO Certification Form, the agency determines that it cannot or can no longer abide by the National Board or Federal requirements, they must notify their Local Board immediately. If funds have already been received, they must be returned in their entirety and no expenses may be incurred or charged against the grant.

The Local Board will receive a copy of the electronically signed LRO Certification Form for each funded LRO in the jurisdiction's Board Plan submitted to the National Board.

The LRO Certification Form will be sent through DocuSign to the contact email of record for the funded LRO once the Local Board Plan has been submitted. The completed LRO Certification form will be emailed to the LRO and is available on the EFSP website under LRO Plan.

Keeping contact information up to date is critical for EFSP communication and DocuSign procedures.

LRO Documentation and Disaster Recovery Plan

LROs should have a disaster recovery plan that ensures continuity of eligible services and records retention under the EFSP. Each LRO is required to retain EFSP records for a period of three years from the submission of the Final Report. Records that should be retained include LRO application and approval of application from Local Board, signed LRO Certification form, documentation of any reallocations approved by the Local Board, completed Interim Report/Second Payment Request form, program exceptions granted by the National Board, and all expenditure documentation for expenses charged to the EFSP. **LROs also need to retain documentation regarding all compliance problems including those outside the retention period until the problem is resolved.** Specific information on documentation is provided in the Program Costs (eligible and ineligible) section of this manual. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security's website contains business continuity information which may be helpful to LROs. www.readv.gov/business.

Reference Item 5, page 53 and Annex 13, page 105-106.

LRO/Vendor Relationships



An LRO may not operate as a vendor for itself or other LROs. Purchases may not be made from or payments made to other LROs except for the shared maintenance fee of food banks.

LRO Requirements

Local agencies selected for funding must adhere to the following 14 requirements:

Knowledge of Requirements

1. LROs must maintain records according to guidelines set forth in this manual. Consult your Local Board chair/staff on matters requiring interpretation or clarification <u>prior to</u> incurring an expense or entering into a contract. It is important to have a thorough understanding of these guidelines to avoid ineligible expenditures and consequent repayment of funds. See pages 65-74 for

A webinar detailing the process for submitting LRO Certifications is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

eligible and ineligible program costs. Questions that LROs have should be directed <u>first</u> to Local Board chairs or staff. National Board staff must be contacted by the Local Board chairs or staff to answer those questions that cannot be answered locally.

Use of Funds

2. LROs must provide services within the intent of the program. Funds are to be used on an ongoing basis to supplement and extend food and shelter services, not as a substitute for other program funds or to start new programs. Funds are not to be held or reserved for future use but spent on an as needed basis to supplement and extend existing services. Agencies must have a program in

A webinar providing background on eligible and ineligible expenditures is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

the category for which they are seeking funding. All funds awarded to an LRO must provide for services within the jurisdiction's spending period. See pages 65-74 for eligible and ineligible program costs.

Bank Accounts/Interest Income

3. LROs must maintain a checking account in the LRO's name in a federally insured bank into which EFSP funds are deposited. (Bank accounts must not be set up with FEMA, EFSP or in the name of the LRO's program.) The National Board does not require funds to be placed in a separate bank account. LROs are required to notify the National Board in writing of any changes in their bank account for EFT purposes. This includes changes such as the closure of bank accounts, opening new bank accounts, and mergers of financial institutions. LROs funded in multiple jurisdictions must provide bank account changes for each jurisdiction individually even if funds are

To add/update EFT information, the LRO must log into the EFSP website. On the left-hand menu, there is an option for EFT, where you will find the appropriate form and instructions. This form is specific to each LRO and cannot be generated by the Local Board. There is a webinar with detailed instructions on how to set up an EFT on the EFSP website under **Trainings Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

deposited into the same account. The EFT authorization form must be used for initial sign-ups and any changes. Local Boards and LROs may also contact the National Board staff for the preprinted authorization form. Copies, faxes, or emails cannot be accepted for EFT processing. For EFT processing, an original LRO voided blank check and form are accepted by mail only by the deadline established by the National Board (mail to: United Way Worldwide/Emergency Food and Shelter Program 701 North Fairfax Street, Alexandria, VA 22314.) EFT ENROLLMENTS CANNOT BE ACCEPTED IN ANY OTHER FORMAT. Failure to notify the National Board of bank account changes will delay the receipt of funds.

LROs must maintain proper documentation for all expenditures under this program according to the guidelines. Any interest income must be used for eligible program expenditures, not administrative expenses. If EFSP funds are placed in an interest-earning account with other LRO funds, interest must be prorated/calculated for the EFSP grant.

LROs that have unspent funds of \$5.00 or more must return the entire unspent amount to the National Board. (<u>Do not</u> send back unspent funds of \$4.99 or less). Checks for funds being returned to the National Board must be made payable to United Way Worldwide/Emergency Food and Shelter Program. The LRO ID number of the agency returning the funds must be printed on the face of the check in the upper right-hand corner.

LROs' expenditures and documentation will be subject to review for program compliance by the Local Board, National Board, the National Board's public accounting firm, DHS/FEMA or the Office of the Inspector

General. Maintain records for a three-year period after phase end unless there is an outstanding compliance problem. (See pages 80-81).

Payment to Vendors

- 4. LROs must pay for all eligible program expenses by an approved method of payment. Approved payment methods are:
 - LRO check,
 - LRO debit card,
 - LRO credit card—vendor issued (i.e., Sam's Club, other stores—vendor issued credit card),
 - LRO credit card—third party (i.e., American Express, Visa),
 - Electronic payment from LRO's bank account.

A webinar providing background on eligible and ineligible expenditures is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

This program does not allow the reimbursement of staff/volunteers, other LROs or any party other than the vendor of services. <u>Cash payments are ineligible</u>. The use of personal debit cards or credit cards is not allowed.



A Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit must pay the vendor directly with an approved method of payment and may not reimburse other agencies for which they are serving as the Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit.

LRO Reporting

5. LROs must submit reports to the Local Board by their due dates. The National Board will make interim report/second payment requests available to each LRO after the first payment notification. When the LRO is ready to request its second payment it must be submitted via the website. The LRO will then electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form generated by DocuSign. Then the Local Board will approve and electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form through the

A webinar detailing the process for submitting an Interim Report/Second Payment Request is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

DocuSign process. Local Boards must electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request by the established deadline. Only electronic signatures created through the DocuSign process provided by the National Board will be accepted.



LROs should retain a copy of their Interim Report/Second Payment Request form and should not wait until their first payment has been exhausted before making the request.

Second payments will be made to eligible LROs once the jurisdiction's compliance review of the previous phase is completed and any compliance problems resolved in any jurisdiction in which an LRO has received funds. Compliance resolution after the end of the funded phase does not guarantee that any remaining award will be forthcoming. Notice of second payments will be made to Local Boards and LROs, via email, only upon the submission of each LRO's Interim Report/Second Payment Request Form.

The Interim Report/Second Payment Request submission is a two-step process. After the LRO(s) complete the form online, they will need to electronically sign the Interim Report/Second Payment Request generated by DocuSign. The Local Board chair will approve the request by electronically signing the Interim

Keeping contact information up to date is critical for EFSP communication and DocuSign procedures. Interim Reports/Second Payment Requests will not be able to be completed without an accurate email address on file.

Report/Second Payment Request Form once assured the LRO is implementing the program as intended and according to EFSP guidelines or other requirements established by the Local Board. The LRO must report on the first payment by indicating how the funds were spent to date in the categories. If funds were unspent, they must be entered in the unspent category on the form. The Interim Report/Second Payment Request must balance to the total of the first payment issued to the agency.

The National Board will advise Local Boards and LROs of the deadline to request all second payments under Phase 35 as part of the Key Dates document. Second payments will be held until <u>all</u> compliance exceptions (if any) are satisfied by the LRO. LROs with unresolved compliance exceptions <u>will not be paid</u>.

Final Report

6. All LROs must complete the Final Report through the web submission process. After the web submission is completed, a copy of the LRO Final Report will be sent to the LRO Contact via email to e-sign. Once the LRO Final Report has been e-signed by the LRO, it will be

A webinar detailing the process for submitting a Final Report is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

sent to the Local Board Contact to approve and e-sign. A copy of the LRO Final Report should be sent to the Local Board, along with the required spreadsheets, and <u>one</u> copy of documentation, if requested. A copy of the e-signed LRO Final Report, spreadsheets and documentation must be retained by the LRO for their records. Complete, accurate, legible documentation must be submitted and must support the expenditures claimed in each category on the initial Final Report. The final LRO report is due to the Local Board 30 days after the jurisdiction's end-of-program date. LROs receiving Phase 35 awards from more than one jurisdiction must keep and submit documentation <u>separately</u> for each <u>when requested</u>.

LROs receiving SSA awards in addition to a regular award or reallocation funds in a single jurisdiction must consider all the awards as though they were one and combine the documentation

Program Compliance Resolution

 LROs must work with the Local Board to quickly clear up any problems related to compliance exception(s) at the end of the program.

A webinar providing background on eligible and ineligible expenditures is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

The National Board requires that all LROs maintain expenditure and proof of payment documentation as expenses are incurred. It is expected that when documentation is submitted with Final Reports or reviewed under other circumstances, that it is complete and accurate initially when reviewed the first time. The National Board will notify Local Boards and LROs of problems should the documentation contain errors.

Failure of an LRO to comply with the National Board's reporting requirements will result in future funds being withheld. The National Board will hold funds until all reporting requirements have been satisfied. If an LRO does not comply in a timely manner to compliance issues, the

A webinar providing background on common compliance issues is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Local Board or National Board may reclaim and reallocate the funds being withheld.



Any LRO, including those serving as a Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit, receiving funds in multiple jurisdictions with a compliance exception in any single jurisdiction from any prior phase will be subject to all funds being withheld. That is, all funds allocated to that LRO from all jurisdictions will be withheld until all problems have been resolved. Funding is not guaranteed when compliance problems have been identified, even if resolved.

Documentation Retention

LROs are to keep their documentation records for three years after each end of program year. Documentation includes but is not limited to: LRO Certification form, application for funding, Local Board approval of funding, Second Payment Request/Interim Report, Final Report, spreadsheets, all expenditure documentation (vendor invoices/receipts and proof of payment).

Since Documentation must be retained for three years, all of those years are subject to review/audits at any time, even if the LRO has filed Final Reports and received clearing letters.

Lobbying Prohibition and Reporting Requirements

- 8. LROs must comply with lobbying requirements. Lobbying is not permitted with EFSP funds. Any LRO receiving more than \$100,000 in EFSP funds is required to submit:
 - certification that EFSP funds will not be used for lobbying activities; and,
 - <u>disclosure of lobbying activities (if applicable).</u>

See Annex 5, page 95 for the certification and disclosure form. This form may be printed from the EFSP manual or website. These forms must be submitted prior to payment of funds.

A webinar detailing the process for submitting Certification Forms is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Annual Audit Requirement

9. LROs must comply with audit requirements. For LROs receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funding, the National Board requires an independent annual audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. For LROs receiving from \$50,000 to \$99,999, the National Board requires an annual accountant's review. For newly funded LROs or LROs funded above the amount requiring an audit or review

A webinar providing background on audit requirements is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

for the first time, the LRO will be eligible to receive funds if it arranges for the audit or review of funds to coincide with the next scheduled annual audit or annual review of its financial affairs. See Annexes 12-13, pages 103-106.

The National Board will accept an LRO's national/regional annual audit if the following conditions are met:

• LRO is truly a subsidiary of the national organization (i.e., shares a single Federal tax exemption).

- The LRO is audited by the national/regional office internal auditors or other person designated by the
 national/regional office <u>AND</u> the national/regional office is audited by an independent certified public
 accountant or public accountant or accounting firm, which includes the national/regional organization's
 review of the LRO in a larger audit review.
- A copy of the local audit review along with a copy of the independent audit of the national/regional
 office will be made available to the National Board upon request.

Uniform Guidance of the Office of Management & Budget

10. Any agency expending \$750,000 or more in Federal funds must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance) Item 7, page 54.



A copy of this report must be forwarded to the National Board annually along with the regular audit.

Audits of units of government shall be made annually unless the state or local government had, by January 1, 1987, a constitutional or statutory requirement for less frequent audits. LROs receiving funds in a single or multiple jurisdictions must identify each award individually by their LRO ID number in each jurisdiction under the Pass-Through Grantors Number on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Audit Confirmation Request

11. LROs requesting audit confirmations of funds received for their external auditors must submit a written request emailed to documentstoefsp@uww.unitedway.org or faxed to 703-706-9677. The request must indicate the LRO ID numbers (9-digits) for each jurisdiction for which a confirmation is needed.

Technical Assistance

12. LRO should contact the Local Board first regarding technical assistance, interpretation of guidelines and resources from other Federal programs as Local Boards are responsible for providing training and technical assistance to LROs.



The EFSP website (www.efsp.unitedway.org) has a training feature for Local Boards and LROs to familiarize new staff with EFSP requirements under **Training Workshops**. FEMA's Emergency Management Institute also provides a training opportunity through the following link: (http://www.training.fema.gov/emiweb/IS/IS420.asp).

Reallocation of Funds

13. LRO must cooperate and comply with Local Board reallocation decisions. Local Boards may reallocate funds at their discretion during the current phase. Reference the Local Board section, pages 33-34.

A webinar detailing the process for submitting Reallocation is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit

14. For National Board purposes, a Fiscal Agent is a LRO that maintains all EFSP financial records for another agency under a single grant. A Fiscal Conduit is a LRO that maintains all EFSP financial records on behalf of two or more other agencies under a single grant.

If anyone LRO in a jurisdiction is making bulk purchases for other agencies not funded directly, it must serve as a Fiscal Conduit and follow all rules noted in this section.

The Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit is the LRO responsible for the receipt of funds, disbursement of funds to vendors, documentation of funds received and maintenance of documentation. The Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit must meet all requirements of a LRO. Only the Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit may pay the vendors, and <u>cannot reimburse other agencies</u> for which they are serving as their Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit.

Local Boards may wish to use a Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit when they desire to fund an agency that does not have an adequate accounting system but still meets all other criteria. The Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit arrangement must be determined and arranged prior to funding decisions. Fiscal Agents/Fiscal Conduits will be held accountable for compliance with program requirements. Any agency being supported through a fiscal agent/fiscal conduit must have its own Federal Employee Identification Number (FEIN). (This IRS form [SS-4] may be obtained on the IRS website, www.irs.gov.) Agencies funded under a Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit must also have or obtain a Data Universal Number System (DUNS) number issued by Dun & Bradstreet (D&B). (This form and instructions may be obtained from the EFSP website.) The DUNS number and other relevant information must be provided on the form.

Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Payments

Fiscal Agents/Fiscal Conduits <u>must</u> issue their payments for LRO expenditures <u>to vendors only</u> by an approved method of payment; may not reimburse other agencies for which they are serving as their Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit, or to agencies/sites under their 'umbrella'. The exception to this is when an LRO is using the per diem allowance for mass shelter or the per meal allowance for served meals.

Benefitting Agency/Sub Grantee

Any agency benefitting from funds received by a Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit must meet all criteria to be a LRO except the accounting system and annual audit requirements and must sign the Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Relationship Certification form. See Annex 4, page 94. For tracking purposes, all agencies funded through Fiscal Agents or Fiscal Conduits must provide an FEIN number and a DUNS number.

Grant Agreement Articles



The Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) is a restricted federal grant. All federal grants have terms and conditions that apply to ALL parties participating in the grant. For the EFSP, all parties mean the National Board which is considered the Recipient, State Set-Aside Committees (SSAs), Local Boards, and Local Recipient Organizations (LROs) that are considered the Sub-Recipients. This section of the EFSP Responsibilities and Requirements Manual (EFSP Manual) provides guidance related to the Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions, and Other Terms and Conditions of the grant. The EFSP Certification Forms for all parties contain statements that incorporate the Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions, and Other Terms and Conditions. All parties must ensure their understanding of this section of the EFSP Manual and the statements on the Certification Forms being signed, as they are agreeing to specific program requirements mandated by the Federal government, including those that do not appear to apply to the types of programs and activities eligible under the EFSP. While some of the articles do not appear to be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded under the EFSP and some state recipient but not sub-recipient, all Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions, and Other Terms and Conditions must be passed on to all parties participating in the EFSP. All parties will be held accountable for complying with the provisions of the grant as well as full compliance with applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, Executive Orders, regulations, and policies governing this program including those not specifically stated in this Manual.

Most SSAs and Local Boards do not receive funds (except administrative funds where they are considered to be an LRO and therefore a *Sub-Recipient*), these parties participating in the EFSP have responsibility for ensuring compliance in their selection of jurisdictions and/or LROs for funding and adhering to all EFSP requirements, including the Grant Agreement Articles, Financial Terms and Conditions, and Other Terms and Conditions. SSAs, Local Boards, and LROs should familiarize themselves with all specific citations noted in the Manual.

Article I - DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances

All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff.

- 1. Recipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance investigations conducted by DHS.
- 2. Recipients must give DHS access to, and the right to examine and copy, records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the federal financial assistance award and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program guidance.
- 3. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports.
- 4. Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.
- 5. If, during the past three years, recipients have been accused of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency (LEP)), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status, recipients must provide a list of all such proceedings, pending or completed, including outcome and copies of settlement agreements to the DHS FAO and the DHS Office of Civil Rights and Civil Liberties (CRCL) by email at crcl@hq.dhs.gov or by mail at U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 Washington, D.C. 20528.
- 6. In the event courts or administrative agencies make a finding of discrimination on grounds of race, color, national origin (including LEP), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against the recipient, or recipients settle a case or matter alleging such discrimination, recipients must forward a copy of the complaint and findings to the

DHS FAO and the CRCL office by e-mail or mail at the addresses listed above. The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.



<u>EFSP Applicability</u>: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The Financial Terms and Conditions of the EFSP Manual speak to items 1 – 4 of this Grant Agreement Article.

Article II - Whistleblower Protection Act

All recipients must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C. Section 2409, U.S.C. Section 4712, 10 U.S.C. Section 2324, 41 U.S.C. Sections 4304 and 4310.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The article speaks to employees and contractors with the Department of Defense and disallowed costs with funding. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article III - Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

All recipients must obtain permission from their DHS FAO, prior to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The use of any organization's marks, including those of DHS, must be approved through proper channels. EFSP does not approve the use of the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials including those of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or those of any other National Board member agency. SSAs, Local Boards or LROs wishing to use the marks of any of these organizations must secure the individual agency's permission. Bank accounts used by agencies funded under the EFSP should be set up in the individual agency's name, not as FEMA.

Article IV - USA Patriot Act of 2001

All recipients must comply with requirements of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act), which amends 18 U.S.C. sections 175-175c.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The statement contained in the Certification Forms—"Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article V - Universal Identifier and System of Award Management (SAM)

All recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide financial assistance award term regarding the System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at 2 C.F.R. Part 25, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions.



EFSP Applicability: SAMS registration in this article applies to the recipient, the EFSP National Board. The EFSP is registered in the SAMS system. Any necessary updates to EFSP information in the system will be made yearly.

The unique identifier statement apply to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. All funded LROs are required to provide their DUNS number to EFSP before payments can be released. The statement contained in the Certification Forms—"Has provided a Data Universal Number System (DUNS) number issued by Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) and required associated information to EFSP" speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article VI - Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance

If the total value of the recipient's currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from all federal assistance offices exceeds \$10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of this federal financial assistance award, you must comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.



EFSP Applicability: The reporting in this article applies to the recipient, the EFSP National Board. The EFSP is registered in the SAMS system. Any necessary updates to EFSP information in the system or required reporting related to the grant will be made appropriately.

Article VII - Rehabilitation Act of 1973

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. section 794, as amended, which provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped individuals in the United States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — 'Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds] and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article VIII - Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the government-wide award term which implements Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000, (TVPA) as amended by 22 U.S.C. section 7104. The award term is located at 2 C.F.R. section 175.15, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article IX - Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) - Title IX

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. section 1681 et seq.), which provide that no person in the United States will, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation

in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The statement contained in the Certification Forms— "Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds]" and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article X - Terrorist Financing

All recipients must comply with E.O. 13224 and U.S. law that prohibit transactions with, and the provisions of resources and support to, individuals and organizations associated with terrorism. Recipients are legally responsible to ensure compliance with the Order and laws.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XI - SAFECOM

All recipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs that provide emergency communication equipment and its related activities must comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable communications.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. With the exception of the administrative allowance, there are no allowable activities that can be funded regarding communication equipment. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XII - Procurement of Recovered Materials

All recipients must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The statement contained in the Certification Forms—"Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XIII - Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements

All of the instructions, guidance, limitations, and other conditions set forth in the Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for this program are incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions. All recipients must comply with any such requirements set forth in the program NOFO.



<u>EFSP Applicability:</u> The requirements stated in this article applies to the recipient, the EFSP National Board. The NOFO and guidance is made available to the National Board via the ND Grants System. All terms and conditions of the award are agreed to when the National Board accepts the award in the ND Grants System.

Article XIV - Patents and Intellectual Property Rights

Unless otherwise provided by law, recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, Pub. L. No. 96-517, as amended, and codified in 35 U.S.C. section 200 et seq. All recipients are subject to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and disposition of rights to inventions and patents resulting from financial assistance awards located at 37 C.F.R. Part 401 and the standard patent rights clause located at 37 C.F.R. section 401.14.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. With the exception of the administrative allowance, there are no allowable activities that would be patented with EFSP funds. Any necessary materials for use in the EFSP would not generally be patented. The statement contained in the Certification Forms—"Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XV - Non-supplanting Requirement

All recipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs that prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non-federal sources.



EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. EFSP is not intended to make up for budget shortfalls or to be considered a line item in an annual budget. EFSP is non-disaster, supplemental funding. The Preamble and the statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Will use funds to supplement/extend existing resources and not to substitute or reimburse ongoing programs and services" speak to this requirement.

Article XVI - Lobbying Prohibitions

All recipients must comply with 31 U.S.C. section 1352, which provides that none of the funds provided under an federal financial assistance award may be expended by the recipient to pay any person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any federal action concerning the award or renewal.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Will not use EFSP funding for any lobbying activities and if receiving \$100,000, or more, will provide the "Certification Regarding Lobbying" and, if applicable, will complete Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in advance with its instructions. The "Lobbying Prohibition and Reporting Requirements" sections in the EFSP Manual also speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XVII - Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI)

All recipients must comply with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national origin, which requires that recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services. For additional assistance and information regarding language access obligations, please refer to the DHS Recipient Guidance https://www.dhs.gov/guidance-published-help-department-supported-organizations-provide-meaningful-access-people-limited and additional resources on http://www.lep.gov.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds]" and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XVIII - Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15 U.S.C. section 2225a, all recipients must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies with the fire prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as amended, 15 U.S.C. section 2225.



EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. Should SSAs, Local Boards, or LROs conduct conferences, meetings, or trainings for EFSP using any administrative funding from the EFSP, they must comply with this requirement.

Article XIX - Fly America Act of 1974

All recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers (air carriers holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. section 41102) for international air transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. section 40118) and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the United States in the March 31, 1981 amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. With the exception of the administrative allowance, there are no allowable activities that can be funded regarding air travel with EFSP funds. Any necessary air travel would be limited to travel necessary for the administration of the EFSP and would not include international travel. The statement contained in the Certification Forms—"Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XX - Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving

All recipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving as described in E.O. 13513, including conducting initiatives described in Section 3(a) of the Order when on official government business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the federal government.



<u>EFSP Applicability:</u> This article applies to the EFSP National Board as the recipient, all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs as subrecipients of funds.

Article XXI - Federal Debt Status

All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. (See OMB Circular A-129.)



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs.

Article XXII - False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies

All recipients must comply with the requirements of 31 U.S.C. section 3729 - 3733 which prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent claims for payment to the federal government. (See 31 U.S.C. section 3801-3812 which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.)



EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. Generally, this act provides for criminal penalties if false claims are filed.

Article XXIII - Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation

All recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide Award Term on Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation located at 2 C.F.R. Part 170, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to the Grantee (National Board) and all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. As information received from State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs are necessary components of the required reports, the statements contained in the Certification Forms regarding the DUNS number, Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN), and reporting requirements also speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXIV - Energy Policy and Conservation Act

All recipients must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. section 6201 which contain policies relating to energy efficiency that are defined in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. With the exception of supplies and equipment purchases, up to \$300 per item, and emergency rehabilitation costs/building code citations for mass shelter and mass feeding sites, there are no allowable activities that can be funded with EFSP funds. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXV - Duplication of Benefits

Any cost allocable to a particular federal financial assistance award provided for in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E may not be charged to other federal financial assistance awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed by

federal statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and conditions, or for other reasons. However, these prohibitions would not preclude recipients from shifting costs that are allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing federal statutes, regulations, or the federal financial assistance award terms and conditions.



EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. EFSP is not intended to make up for budget shortfalls or to be considered a line item in an annual budget. EFSP is non-disaster, supplemental funding. Expenditures charged in full to the EFSP grant may not also be charged to other awards/grants; nor may expenditures paid for with EFSP funding be charged to other awards/grants. The statements contained in the Certification Forms — "Will use funds to supplement/extend existing resources and not to substitute or reimburse ongoing programs and services" and "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" as well as the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this requirement.

Article XXVI - Drug-Free Workplace Regulations

All recipients must comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. section 8101 et seq.), which requires all organizations receiving grants from any federal agency agree to maintain a drug-free workplace. You as the recipient must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B (or Subpart C, if the recipient is an individual) of 2 CFR part 3001, which adopts the Government-wide implementation (2 CFR part 182) of sec. 5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 8101-8107).



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs.

Article XXVII - Debarment and Suspension

All recipients are subject to the non-procurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Orders (E.O.) 12549 and 12689, and 2 C.F.R. Part 180. These regulations restrict federal financial assistance awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs or activities.



<u>EFSP Applicability</u>: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Is not debarred or suspended from receiving Federal funds" and the Financial Terms and Conditions sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this requirement.

Article XXVIII - Copyright

All recipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. sections 401 or 402 and an acknowledgement of U.S. Government sponsorship (including the award number) to any work first produced under federal financial assistance awards.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. With the exception of the administrative allowance, there are no allowable activities that can be funded regarding materials that would be copyrighted with EFSP funds. Any necessary materials for use in the EFSP would not generally be copyrighted. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXIX - Civil Rights Act of 1968

All recipients must comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, which prohibits recipients from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (42 U.S.C. section 3601 et seq.), as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units-i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators)-be designed and constructed with certain accessible features. (See 24 C.F.R. section 100.201.)



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds]" and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXX - Civil Rights Act of 1964 - Title VI

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. section 2000d et seq.), which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations for the Act are found at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds]" and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXXI - Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII)

DHS defines personally identifiable information (PII) as any information that permits the identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked or linkable to that individual. All recipients who collect PII are required to have a publicly-available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of PII they collect. Recipients may also find the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy template as useful resources respectively.



EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. In order to meet the documentation requirements of the EFSP in certain program categories, it is necessary to obtain, retain, and provide, if requested, PII for clients served with EFSP funding. Additionally, there must be a system in place to ensure there is no duplication of service in the specific categories of rent/mortgage and utility assistance which may require the sharing of PII for this purpose. The National Board does not require and does not expect to receive PII beyond what is noted in the EFSP Documentation Requirements as stated in the Manual. Items that should not be submitted to EFSP as documentation include, but are not limited, to driver's licenses, Social Security Numbers or cards, pay stubs, etc.

Article XXXII - Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Titles I, II, and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities. (42 U.S.C. sections 12101-12213).



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds] and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXXIII - Age Discrimination Act of 1975

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Title 42 U.S. Code, section 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Practices non-discrimination [those agencies with a religious affiliation must agree not to refuse service to an applicant based on religion, nor engage in religious proselytizing or religious counseling with Federal funds]" and the Client Eligibility sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXXIV - Activities Conducted Abroad

All recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. The statement contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXXV - Acknowledgment of Federal Funding from DHS

All recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal funds.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The use of the Sample Advertisement in the EFSP Manual complies with this Grant Agreement Article for advertising purposes only. If the Sample Advertisement is not used, the Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS must be included in the advertisement made by the Local Board. Please note: this acknowledgement is not just for the advertisement.

Article XXXVI - Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements

DHS financial assistance recipients must complete either the OMB Standard Form 424B Assurances - Non-Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances - Construction Programs as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents may not be applicable to your program, and the DHS financial assistance office may require applicants to certify additional assurances. Applicants are required to fill out the assurances applicable to their program as instructed by the awarding agency. Please contact the financial assistance office if you have any questions. DHS financial assistance recipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, and adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statements contained in the Certification Forms – "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" as well as those regarding accounting systems, audits, and other financial matters and the Financial Terms and Conditions and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXXVII - Acceptance of Post Award Changes

In the event FEMA determines that changes are necessary to the award document after an award has been made, including changes to period of performance or terms and conditions, recipients will be notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has been made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate recipient acceptance of the changes to the award. Please call the FEMA/GMD Call Center at (866) 927-5646 or via e-mail to ASK-GMD@dhs.gov if you have any questions.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. Should there be changes to the award, the EFSP National Board will communicate changes (as necessary) to State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. Item 2 (Amendments) under Financial Terms and Conditions also speaks to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XXXVIII - Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget

Before making any change to the DHS/FEMA approved budget for this award, you must request prior written approval from DHS/FEMA where required by 2 C.F.R. Section 200.308. For awards with an approved budget greater than \$150,000, you may not transfer funds among direct cost categories, programs, functions, or activities without prior written approval from DHS/FEMA where the cumulative amount of such transfers exceeds or is expected to exceed ten percent (10%) of the total budget DHS/FEMA last approved. You must report any deviations from your DHS/FEMA approved budget in the first Federal Financial Report (SF-425) you submit following any budget deviation, regardless of whether the budget deviation requires prior written approval.



<u>EFSP Applicability</u>: This article applies to the EFSP National Board. The budget submitted with the application in the ND Grant system generally remains the same. The scope and purpose of the program does not change, the guidelines are detailed in the EFSP Manual.

Article XXXIX - Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award

When original or replacement equipment acquired under this award by the recipient or its sub-recipients is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or previously supported by DHS/FEMA, you must request instructions from DHS/FEMA to make proper disposition of the equipment pursuant to 2 C.F.R. Section 200.313.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies. LROs may use up to \$300 to purchase eligible equipment with EFSP funds and would generally fall beneath the \$5,000 threshold. The statement contained in the Certification Forms –"Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" and the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this Grant Agreement Article.

Article XL - National Environmental Policy Act

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA, which requires

recipients to use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with other essential considerations of national policy, to create and maintain conditions under which people and nature can exist in productive harmony and fulfill the social, economic, and other needs of present and future generations of Americans.



<u>EFSP Applicability</u>: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies.

Article XLI - Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations

It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social service programs administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, enabling those organizations to participate in providing important social services to beneficiaries. All recipients must comply with the equal treatment policies and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable statues, regulations, and guidance governing the participations of faith-based organizations in individual DHS programs.



<u>EFSP Applicability</u>: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. EFSP guidelines prohibits discrimination based on age, race, sex, religion, national origin, disability, economic status or sexual orientation.

Article XLII - Buy American and Hire American

All recipients are required to comply with any applicable provisions of the Buy American Act (41 U.S.C. Sections 8301 through 8305), and any other applicable statutes, regulations, or rules that require, or provide a preference for, the purchase or acquisition of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States.



EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. While it may appear the types of programs and activities referenced in this article would not be consistent with the types of programs and activities funded by EFSP, the article still applies.

Financial Terms and Conditions

The National Board requires all participants to meet the requirements stated in this manual regarding program compliance, reporting, documentation and submission of documentation.

1. <u>Definitions</u>

- a. "Jurisdiction" refers to the city, county or combination receiving funds through EFSP.
- b. "Local Recipient Organization" or "LRO" refers to the local private or public agency that will receive any award of funds from the National Board.
- c. "Award" refers to the award of funds made by the National Board to a local private or public agency on the recommendation of a Local Board.
- d. "End-of-program" refers to the jurisdiction's end date, as agreed by Local and National Board, by which all monies must be spent or returned to the National Board.
- e. "Begin Date" is the date LROs may begin expending funds.
- f. "End date" is the date by which all funds must be expended or returned to the National Board.

2. Amendments

An award may be amended at any time by a written modification. Amendments, which reflect the rights and obligations of either party, shall be executed by both the National Board and the LRO. *Administrative* amendments such as changes in accounting data may be issued unilaterally by the National Board.

3. Local Board Authority Related to Local Recipient Organizations

The Local Board is responsible for monitoring expenditures of LROs receiving EFSP funds; authorizing the adjustment of funds between EFSP funded services; and, reallocating funds from one LRO to another.

Local Boards may not alter or change National Board cost eligibility or approve expenditures outside of the National Board's criteria without National Board permission. Local Boards may not alter or change the National Board's documentation requirements.

A Local Board can recall an award to an LRO and reallocate to another LRO in the case of gross negligence, inadequate use of funds, failure to use funds, failure to use funds for purposes intended, for any other violation of the National Board guidelines, or in cases of critical need in the community. **The Local Board must advise, in writing, all concerned LROs of any reallocation of their original award.**

In the event the Local Board discovers ineligible expenditures by an LRO, the Local Board must send to the LRO a written request for reimbursement of the amount. The National Board must also be notified. If the LRO is unwilling or unable to reimburse the National Board for the ineligible expenditure, the Local Board must refer the matter to the National Board. The National Board may ask the Local Board to take further action to see that reimbursement of **ineligible** expenditures is made to the National Board, or the National Board may refer the matter to FEMA.

If the Local Board suspects that fraud has been committed by an LRO, the Local Board must contact the DHS/Office of Inspector General with details of the suspected fraud or misuse of Federal funds. The OIG's preferred method for reporting fraud is to submit their online allegation form from their website www.oig.dhs.gov. The address for mailing information is DHS Office of Inspector General/MAIL STOP 0305, Attention: Office of Integrity & Quality Oversight – Hotline, Murray Lane SW, Washington, DC 20528-0305. See pages 34-35 for more details.

If an LRO received an award under previous phases (Public Laws 98-8, 98-151 and 98-181, 98-396, 99-88 and 99-160, 99-500 and 100-6, 100-71 and 100-120, 100-404 and 101-45, 101-100, 101-467, 102-139, 102-389, 103-124, 103-327, 104-91 and 104-134, 104-204, 105-65, 105-276, 106-74, 106-377, 107-73, 107-294 and 108-7, 108-90, 108-334, 109-90, 109-295, 110-161, 110-329 and 111-5, 111-83, 112-10, 112-74, 113-6 or 113-76), it must not include those funds in any reporting for the current award. Reports should be confined to the amount granted by the National Board under the new appropriations legislation (Public Law 114-4).

4. Cash Depositories

- a. Any money advanced to the LRO under the terms of this award must be deposited in a checking account in a bank with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or Federal Savings & Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) insurance coverage (whose responsibility has been taken over by FDIC), and the balance exceeding the FDIC or FSLIC coverage must be collaterally secured. Interest income earned on these funds must be put back into eligible program costs, not administration.
- b. LROs are encouraged to use minority-owned banks (a bank that is owned at least 51 percent by minority group members). This is consistent with the national goal of expanding the opportunities for minority business enterprises. A list of minority-owned banks can be obtained at the addresses below.
 - i. www.federalreserve.gov/releases/mob/current/default.htm
 - ii. www.fdic.gov/regulations/resources/minority/MDI.html

5. Retention and Custodial Requirements for Records

- a. Financial records, supporting documentation, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the award shall be retained by the LRO for a period of three years from the end-of-program date with the following exceptions: See Annex 13, page 105-106.
 - i. If any litigation, claim, program compliance review, or audit is started before the expiration of the three-year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims, program compliance problems, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved.
 - ii. Records for non-expendable property, if any, acquired in part with EFSP funds shall be retained for three years after submission of the final financial report (Final Report). Nonexpendable property is defined as tangible property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of more than \$300 per unit.
- b. The retention period starts from the date of the submission by the LRO of the final expenditure report (Final Report).
- c. The National Board may request transfer of certain records to its custody from the LRO when it determines that the records possess long-term retention value. The LRO shall make such transfers as requested.
- d. The Director of FEMA, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the National Board, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any pertinent books, documents, papers, and records of the LRO, and its sub grantees, to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.

6. Financial Management Systems

The LRO/Fiscal Agent or Fiscal Conduit shall maintain a financial management system that provides for the following:

- a. Accurate, current and complete disclosures of the financial results of this program.
- b. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for federally supported activities. These records shall contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations, non-obligated balances, assets, outlays, and incomes.
- c. Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property, and other assets.
- d. Procedures for determining eligibility of costs in accordance with this manual.

- e. Accounting records that are supported by source documentation. The LRO must maintain and retain a register of cash receipts and disbursements and original supporting documentation such as purchase orders, invoices, canceled checks or documentation for other acceptable payment methods, sign-in logs and any other documentation that is necessary to support their costs under the program.
- f. A systematic method to assure timely and appropriate resolution of audit findings and recommendations.
- g. In cases where more than one civil jurisdiction (e.g., a city and a balance of county, or several counties) recommends awards to the same LRO, the LRO can combine these funds in a single account. However, separate program records for each civil jurisdiction award must be kept.

7. Audit Requirements

If receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funds, the LRO will be eligible to receive the funds if it arranges for an independent audit of funds to coincide with the next scheduled annual audit of its financial affairs. If receiving \$50,000 to \$99,999 in EFSP funds, the LRO will be eligible to receive the funds if it arranges for an annual accountant's review of funds to coincide with the next scheduled annual

A webinar providing background on audit requirements is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

review of its financial affairs. An original copy of this audit or review will be provided to the National Board upon request. It is not necessary to have a separate, independent audit/review for this award so long as program funds are treated as a separate element in the LRO's regular annual audit/review. If the LRO does not have a certified annual audit/review, that audit/review must be provided by a Local Board designated Fiscal Agent for the LRO willing to account for the funds. The audit submitted must be from the current year or one year prior. See Annex 12, page 103.

All EFSP funded LROs (both governmental and not-for-profit) that expend \$750,000 or more in Federal funds must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance), Audits of States, Local Government, and Nonprofit Organizations, which requires a single organization-wide audit. This \$750,000 could be exclusively EFSP funds or a combination of EFSP and other Federal funds that an agency might be receiving. Note: A copy of the audit report must be forwarded to the National Board annually along with the regular audit. EFSP funds must be clearly identified by ID number in the audit/review and Schedule of Federal Awards.

Audits of units of government shall be made annually unless the state or local government had, by January 1, 1987, a constitutional or statutory requirement for less frequent audits. LROs receiving funds in a single or multiple jurisdictions must identify each award individually by their LRO ID number in each jurisdiction under the Pass-Through Grantors Number on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

8. Payment

A first payment shall be made to the LRO upon recommendation of the Local Board and approval by the National Board. Second payment requests include an interim report to be submitted and signed by each LRO. The request is also signed by the Local Board chair, and submitted to the National Board. For each LRO funded in the previous phase, second installments will be held until the jurisdiction's final Local Board report and documentation for the previous year has been reviewed and found to be compliant.

9. Financial Reporting Requirements

The National Board shall provide the LRO, through the Local Board, with the necessary reporting requirements in advance of report deadlines.

LROs shall submit their final report to the Local Board that will then be forwarded to the National Board approximately <u>45 days</u> after the jurisdiction's program ending date or the date designated by the National Board.

10. Closeout

The following definitions shall apply:

- a. "Closeout" is the process by which the National Board determines that all applicable administrative actions and all required work of the award have been completed.
- b. "Disallowed costs" are those charges that the National Board determined to be unallowable in accordance with the legislation, National Board requirements and applicable Federal cost principles or other conditions contained in the award. The applicable cost principles are contained in the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance.) If you are unsure of where to find this circular check with your local Congressional Representative, contact the National Board staff, or visit the Office of Management and Budget's website: www.omb.gov.

11. Suspension and Termination Procedures

The following definitions shall apply:

- a. Termination termination of this award means the cancellation of EFSP assistance, in whole or in part, under the award at any time prior to the date of completion.
- b. Suspension the suspension of this award is an action by the Local Board or National Board that temporarily suspends EFSP assistance under the award pending corrective action by the LRO or pending a decision by the National Board to terminate the award.
- c. Local Board Authority authority to suspend/reallocate all or a portion of an LRO's award at its discretion for any cause (i.e., inability to deliver services, suspected fraud, violation of eligible costs, changing need in the community, etc.).

12. Lobbying

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. §1352, an LRO is prohibited from using federally appropriated grant funds for lobbying activities. This condition bars the use of Federal money for political activities, but does not in any way restrict lobbying or political activities paid for with non-Federal funds. This condition prohibits the use of Federal grant funds for the following activities:

A webinar detailing the process for submitting Certification Forms is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

- Federal, state or local electioneering and support of such entities as campaign organizations and political action committees;
- Direct lobbying of the Congress and State Legislatures to influence legislation;
- Grassroots lobbying concerning either Federal or state legislation;
- Lobbying of the Executive Branch in connection with decisions to sign or veto enrolled legislation; and,
- Efforts to utilize state or local officials to lobby the Congressional or State Legislatures.

Any LRO that will receive more than \$100,000 in EFSP funds is required to submit:

- a certification form that EFSP funds will not be used for lobbying activities; and,
- a disclosure of lobbying activities (if applicable).

This certification and disclosure must be submitted prior to grant payment. See Annex 5, page 95 for certification and disclosure forms.

13. Debarment and Suspension Regarding Funding

Pursuant to Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, all LROs, including Fiscal Agents, Fiscal Conduits, and agencies benefiting from EFSP funding under the Fiscal Conduit, must certify that they have not been debarred or suspended from receiving funds from or doing business with the Federal government. Each LRO will make this certification by signing the LRO certification Form which states the requirement. Each Local Board must certify they have received the LRO Certification Form from the LRO which state the requirements. Additionally, the Local Board will return each LRO Certification Form with the Local Board Plan.

Other Terms and Conditions

Duplication of Benefits

There may not be a duplication of any Federal assistance by governmental entities, per 2 CFR Part §225 (Uniform Guidance), basic Guidelines Section C.(c), which states: Any cost allocable to a particular Federal award or cost objective under the principles provided for in this Authority may not be charged to other Federal awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed by law or terms of the Federal awards, or for other reasons. However, this prohibition would not preclude governmental units from shifting costs that are allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing program agreements. Non-governmental entities are also subject to this prohibition per 2 CFR Parts §220 and §230 and 48 CFR Part §31.2 (Uniform Guidance.)

EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. EFSP is not intended to make up for budget shortfalls or to be considered a line item in an annual budget. EFSP is non-disaster, supplemental funding. Expenditures charged in full to the EFSP grant may not also be charged to other awards/grants; nor may expenditures paid for with EFSP funding be charged to other awards/grants. The statements contained in the Certification Forms — "Will use funds to supplement/extend existing resources and not to substitute or reimburse ongoing programs and services" and "Will expend monies only on EFSP eligible costs" as well as the Costs Eligibility sections of the EFSP Manual speak to this requirement.

Non-Supplanting Requirement

Grant funds will not replace (supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non-Federal sources. Applicants or grantees may be required to demonstrate and document that a reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds.

EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. EFSP is not intended to make up for budget shortfalls or to be considered a line item in an annual budget. EFSP is supplemental (non-disaster) funding. The Preamble and the statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Will use funds to supplement/extend existing resources and not to substitute or reimburse ongoing programs and services" speak to this requirement.

Hatch Act

The Hatch Act restricts the political activity of individuals principally employed by state or local executive agencies and who work in connection with programs financed in whole or in part by Federal loans or grants. All recipients of financial assistance will comply with the regulations, as applicable, to States and Local Governments, of the Hatch Act, 5 U.S.C. § 1501 – 1508, as amended.

EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs (both governmental and non-profit). These entities are responsible for determining the applicability of this requirement to the employees of their agency/organization as this requirement is fact-dependent and needs to be compared to the work of the individual employee.

False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies

All recipients of financial assistance will comply with the requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 3729 which sets forth that no recipient of Federal payments shall submit a false claim for payment. Further, 38 U.S.C. § 3801 – 3812 contains administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.

EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. Generally, this act provides for criminal penalties if false claims are filed.

Debarment and Suspension

Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 provide protection against waste, fraud and abuse by debarring or suspending those persons/agencies deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the Federal government. The recipient agency must certify that they are not debarred or suspended from receiving Federal assistance. For additional information, see 2 CFR Part \$3000 (Uniform Guidance.) *See also Appendix B. Certifications and Assurances*

EFSP Applicability: This article applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. The statement contained in the Certification Forms — "Is not debarred or suspended from receiving Federal funds" and the Financial Terms and Conditions sections in the EFSP Manual speak to this requirement.

Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15 U.S.C. §2225(a), the recipient agrees to ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space funded in whole or in part with Federal funds complies with the fire prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, 15 U.S.C. §2225.

EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. Should SSAs, Local Boards, or LROs conduct conferences, meetings, or trainings for EFSP using any administrative funding from the EFSP, they must comply with this requirement.

Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII)

DHS recommends that all grantees who collect PII have a publicly-available privacy policy that describes what PII they collect, how they use the PII, whether they share the PII with third parties, and how individuals may have their PII corrected where appropriate. Grantees may also find as a useful resource the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: The Privacy Office Official Guidance and the Privacy Impact Assessment Template (available on the DHS Privacy Office website at:

http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/privacy/privacy pia guidance june2010.pdf and http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/privacy/privacy pia template.pdf.

EFSP Applicability: This applies to all State Set-Aside Committees, Local Boards and LROs. In order to meet the documentation requirements of the EFSP in certain program categories, it is necessary to obtain, retain, and provide, if requested, PII for clients served with EFSP funding. Additionally, there must be a system in place to ensure there is no duplication of service in the specific categories of rent/mortgage and utility assistance which may require the sharing of PII for this purpose. The National Board does not require and does not expect to receive PII beyond what is noted in the EFSP Documentation Requirements as stated in the Manual. Items that should not be submitted to EFSP as documentation include, but are not limited, to driver's licenses, Social Security Numbers or cards, pay stubs, etc.

Program Costs



LROs may not operate as vendors for themselves or other LROs, except for the shared maintenance fee for food banks.

Intent of Program

The intent of this program is for the purchase of food and shelter, to supplement and expand current available resources and not to substitute or reimburse ongoing programs and services or to start new programs.

A webinar providing an overview of the Emergency Food and Shelter Program is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops**.

The intent regarding the use of funds is that goods and services purchased or provided with EFSP funds should be used as necessary on a daily basis to help meet community need <u>during the spending period</u>. Food vouchers and purchased gift certificates/gift cards must be distributed and used during the jurisdiction's spending period. Large purchases made at the end of the spending period do not meet the intent of the program and will be considered ineligible.

Questions

LROs with questions regarding interpretation of the program's guidelines <u>must</u> direct them to the <u>Local Board</u> prior to action. Local Boards unsure of the meaning of these guidelines must contact the National Board staff at <u>efsp@uww.unitedway.org</u> or 703-706-9660 for clarification prior to advising the LRO. Webinars for training on the EFSP program are available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Client Eligibility

The EFSP is a needs based program for which clients must qualify.

The National Board does not set client eligibility criteria. Local Boards may choose to set such criteria. If the Local Board does not set eligibility criteria, the LRO may use its existing criteria or set criteria for assistance under this award. Any criteria used must provide for assistance to needy individuals without discrimination (age, race, sex, religion, national origin, disability, economic status or sexual orientation), sensitivity to the transition from temporary shelter to permanent homes, attention to the specialized needs of homeless individuals with mental and physical disabilities and illness and to facilitate access for homeless individuals to other sources of services and benefits. In providing assistance under the EFSP, verification of proof of citizenship or qualified alien status of any applicant for assistance is not required.



Note: Funds allocated to a jurisdiction may only be used for residents and transients within that jurisdiction.

No Fee Requirement for Services

No individual, family or household may be charged a fee for service or be required to attend religious/counseling services with relation to assistance received under EFSP. Please note, EFSP does not consider the receipt of donations to an agency to be the same as a fee for service. The receipt of donations does not prevent an agency from participating in the EFSP.

Payment to Vendors

Pay for all eligible program expenses by an approved method of payment directly to the vendor not more than 90 days after the invoice date. Approved payment methods are:

- LRO check
- LRO debit card
- LRO credit card vendor issued (i.e., Sam's Club, other store vendor issued credit card)
- LRO credit card third party (i.e., American Express, Visa)
- Electronic payment from LRO's bank account

A webinar providing background on eligible and ineligible expenditures is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

This program does not allow the reimbursement of staff/volunteers, other LROs or any party other than the vendor of services. <u>Cash payments are ineligible.</u>



Note: A Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit must pay the vendor directly with an approved method of payment and may not reimburse other agencies for which they are serving as the Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit.

Selection of Vendor

The LRO must select vendors whose requirements do not conflict with EFSP requirements. If a vendor's requirements conflict, the LRO must either use a different vendor or work with the vendor so EFSP guidelines are followed. LROs must provide a preference of vendors for, the purchase or acquisition of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States. Vendors must be able to provide a vendor originated invoice and must be able to accept an EFSP acceptable method of payment. (If a vendor only accepts cash, they may not be used for EFSP provided services unless they agree to accept an agency check or other EFSP acceptable payment method.)

Client Confidentiality

While the National Board respects the need for confidentiality, required documentation must be maintained.

When client confidentiality is protected by statute, LROs may use a unique identifier in providing and documenting services to clients. When submitting documentation where a unique identifier has been used, the LRO is responsible for providing documentation of the statute that applies to the clients served and services provided by their agency that are protected.

Eligible Program Costs



Special Documentation Note: Spreadsheets are required for all expenditures in all funding categories, including administration and must be submitted with each LRO's Final Report, even if complete documentation is not required. The spreadsheets may be generated from the agency's financial or case management system. The required elements for the spreadsheets are stated in the Required Forms section, page 83. Sample spreadsheets are available on the website under **Forms**.

Eligible program costs include, but are not limited to:

Food Purchases for Food Banks/Pantries and Other Food Providers

For food banks/pantries and other food providers, eligible costs include:

Food, food vouchers, seeds, gift certificates for food (gift certificates must be marked "Food Only", "Food & Diapers Only" or Food, Diapers & Feminine Hygiene Items Only"). Note: Gift Cards are eligible only if they can be marked/encoded "Food

A webinar providing background on eligible and ineligible expenditures is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Only", "Food & Diapers Only" or "Food, Diapers & Feminine Hygiene Items Only". The same applies for food vouchers and gift certificates. There must be an agreement with the vendor that food, food and diapers only or food, diapers and feminine hygiene items only will be allowed and no cash will be returned to clients.

An allowance for maintenance fees charged by food banks may be granted by a Local Board at the prevailing rate. EFSP funds cannot be used to pay such a maintenance fee twice: by a food bank and by the food pantry/LRO it is serving.

Only food banks may operate under EFSP as both vendor and LRO.



EFSP funding is intended to provide for basic, nutritional meals on an ongoing basis not for non-nutritive items. The funding is not intended to be used for a singular event, special celebratory events, holiday baskets, etc. Also, dessert items (i.e., cookies, snack food, candy, etc.) used as part of a daily meal plan may be purchased in limited amounts.



Documentation required: spreadsheets, dated receipts/invoices/completed vouchers for food purchased and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. Vouchers and gift certificates/gift cards must state "food items only" not "groceries or merchandise". Invoices and evidence of payment for the purchase of food gift certificates/gift cards are required. Additionally, a single copy of the gift certificate/gift card indicating restrictions [i.e., food items only, diapers and feminine hygiene items, if approved by the Local Board, no cash back] must be supplied along with the invoice. When using a food voucher, if all three signatures and dates are included, no itemized receipts will be necessary; however, if one or more signatures or the dates are missing, the itemized receipts must be submitted. The signatures must be from the client, caseworker and the vendor of service. See Annex 8 [page 99] for sample of food voucher.

Transportation for Food Banks/Pantries and Other Food Providers

Transportation expenses for picking up, delivery and distribution of purchased and donated food; contracted services or public transportation (e.g., taxi, local bus, subway). A dated mileage log at the Federal rate of \$.545 cents per mile. (**Note**: The reimbursement rate is the rate in existence at the time of publication of this manual. The begin date applies as of January 1, 2018, and is to be used throughout the entire Phase.)



Documentation required: [1] dated mileage log (Note: The mileage log serves as the spreadsheet for the mileage allowance.), with departure, destination and trip purpose noted or [2] spreadsheet, receipts/invoices from contracted services or public transportation, and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. See Annex 11 [page 102] for sample of mileage log.

Equipment and Consumable Supplies for Food Banks/Food Pantries

Purchase of small equipment **not exceeding \$300 per item** and essential to the operation of food bank or pantry (e.g., shelving and storage containers).

Purchase of consumable supplies essential to the distribution of food (e.g., bags, boxes).



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated, itemized receipts/invoices for equipment/supplies purchased and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Food Purchases for Mass Feeding

For mass feeding sites, eligible expenditures include:

Food (hot meals, groceries). Dessert items (e.g., cookies, snack food, candy, etc.) used as a part of a daily meal plan may be purchased in limited amounts. Also allowable are vegetable seeds and vegetable plants cultivated in an LRO's garden on-site and canning supplies.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices for food/seeds/plants purchased and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Transportation for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding

Local transportation expenses for picking up/delivery of food, transporting clients to a mass shelter (five or more beds in one location), or feeding site. (**Note:** The reimbursement rate is the rate in existence at the time of publication of this manual. (The begin date applies as of January 1, 2018 and is to be used throughout the entire Phase.) Limited to a dated mileage log at the Federal rate of \$.545 cents per mile, contracted services or public transportation (e.g., taxi, local bus, subway).



Documentation required: [1] dated mileage log (<u>Note: The mileage log serves as the spreadsheet for the mileage allowance</u>.), with departure, destination and trip purpose noted or [2] spreadsheet, receipts/invoices from contracted services or public transportation, and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. See Annex 11 [page 102] for sample of mileage log.

Consumable Supplies for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding as Direct Cost

Purchase of consumable supplies essential to mass feeding (e.g., plastic cups, utensils, detergent, feminine hygiene items, etc.) and/or mass shelters of five or more beds (e.g., soap, toothbrushes, toothpaste, feminine hygiene items, cleaning supplies, etc.).



Supplies for mass shelter/mass feeding awards are included in per diem/per meal costs. An LRO may not be awarded additional funds for supplies if documenting their expenditures with a per meal or per diem schedule.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices for supplies purchased and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Equipment Purchases for Mass Shelters/Mass Feeding as Direct Cost

Purchase of small equipment **not exceeding \$300 per item** and essential to mass feeding (e.g., pots, pans, plates, utensils, microwave oven, dining table and chairs, toasters, blenders, etc.) and/or mass shelters (e.g., beds, mattresses, cots, blankets, linens, etc.)



Equipment for mass shelter/mass feeding awards are included in per diem/per meal costs. An LRO may not be awarded additional funds for equipment, if documenting their expenditures with a per meal or per diem schedule.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices for equipment purchased and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Minor Emergency Equipment Repairs for Mass Shelters/Mass Feeding as Direct Cost

With prior Local Board approval, minor emergency repair of small equipment essential to mass feeding or sheltering not exceeding \$300.00 in repair costs per item. Equipment eligible for repairs under the EFSP is any that if not repaired would force the mass feeding or mass sheltering site to terminate or curtail services (e.g., stove, refrigerator and hot water heater).

Routine maintenance and service contracts are not eligible.



Minor emergency equipment repair for mass shelter/mass feeding awards are included in per diem/per meal costs. An LRO may not be awarded additional funds for minor emergency equipment repair if documenting their expenditures with a per meal or per diem schedule.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated letter from Local Board indicating approval and dated invoices for equipment repair and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.



Good judgment must be exercised in determining the most cost-effective use of EFSP funds when deciding an equipment purchase against a repair.

Limited First Aid Supplies for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding

Limited amounts of basic first aid supplies (e.g., aspirin, Band-Aids, cough syrup, etc.) for mass shelter providers and mass feeding sites only.



Limited first aid supplies for mass shelter/mass feeding awards are included in per diem/per meal costs. An LRO may not be awarded additional funds for limited first aid supplies if documenting their expenditures with a per meal or per diem schedule.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices for first-aid supplies and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Building Code Repairs to Mass Shelter or Mass Feeding Facilities

Building Code/Accessibility Improvements – Emergency repairs to comply with building code citations for a mass feeding facility or mass shelter only, provided:

- The facility is owned by a not-for-profit LRO (profit-making facilities, leased facilities, government facilities and individual residences are not eligible); and,
- The building code plan and the contract detailing work to be done and material and equipment to be used or purchased is approved in writing by both the National Board and the Local Board prior to the start of the emergency repair/building code project to ensure compliance with program guidelines; and,
 - o The repair is limited to bringing a facility into compliance with local building codes; maximum expenditure: \$2,500.00;
 - o All emergency repair work is completed and paid for by the end of the jurisdiction's spending period;
 - o Facility must be used primarily for mass feeding or mass sheltering programs; and,
 - o No award funds are used for decorative or non-essential purposes or routine maintenance/repairs.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated letters from both the National Board and the Local Board indicating approval and amount approved, copy of contract including cost or invoices for supplies and contract labor, document citing building code violation requiring the repair and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Facility Improvements for the Disabled for Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding

Expenses incurred from accessibility improvements for the disabled are eligible for mass feeding or mass shelter facilities up to a limit of \$2,500.00. These improvements may include those required by the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990. A building code citation is not necessary for accessibility improvements. Both the National Board and the Local Board must approve in advance, any accessibility improvements.



All social service providers are mandated to comply with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA).



Building code repairs and facility improvements are allowable for mass feeding and mass sheltering sites only. These costs must have prior National Board and Local Board approval even if using the per meal or per diem rate.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated copy of contract describing work to be done including cost, letters dated from the National Board and the Local Board indicating approval and amount approved, and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Mass Shelter Expenses

For mass shelter providers, there are two options for eligible costs: Direct Costs or Per Diem Allowances. One option must be selected at the beginning of the program year and continued throughout the entire year.

Note: The documentation requirements for each option are noted with each option.

Option 1: Mass Shelter/Direct Cost

Reimbursement of actual direct eligible costs for supplies/equipment essential to the operation of the mass shelter (e.g., cots, mattresses, soap, linens, blankets, cleaning supplies, etc.). Refer to previous sections for description of direct eligible expenditures.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices from vendor and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Option 2: Per Diem Allowance

Per diem allowance of exactly \$7.50 or \$12.50 per person per night for mass shelter providers (five beds or more in one location), only if:

- Approved in advance by the Local Board; and,
- LRO's total mass shelter award is expended in this manner.



It is the decision of the Local Board to choose between the \$7.50/\$12.50 rates. This rate may vary from agency to agency depending on the level of services provided to the clients. The \$7.50 or \$12.50 rates, if elected, may be expended by the LRO for any cost related to the operation of the mass shelter; it is not limited to otherwise eligible items. The per diem allowance may be used to cover costs such as shelter rent, shelter utilities, and shelter staff salaries if necessary to provide a night of shelter. The per diem allowance does not include the additional costs associated with food or the food per meal allowance.



Documentation required: schedules showing daily rate of \$7.50 or \$12.50 and number of persons sheltered by date with totals. Note: The daily schedule serves as the spreadsheet for the per diem allowance. Supporting documentation must be retained on-site, e.g., invoices, service records and signin logs, proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. See Annex 9 [page 100] for sample.

Mass Feeding Expenses

For mass feeding programs, there are two options for eligible costs: Direct Cost or Per Meal Allowance. One option must be selected at the beginning of the program year and continued throughout the entire year.

Note: The documentation requirements are noted with each option.

Option 1: Mass Feeding/Direct Cost

Reimbursement of actual direct eligible costs for supplies/equipment essential to the operation of the mass feeding program (e.g., food, paper products, cleaning products, pots and pans, etc.). Refer to previous sections for description of direct eligible expenditures



EFSP funding is intended to provide for daily, basic, nutritional meal costs on an ongoing basis. The funding is not intended to be used for a singular event, special events/celebratory events/holiday meals, etc. Basic non-excessive meal costs may be applied towards special/celebratory/holiday meals served only as part of an ongoing program. Also, dessert items (e.g., cookies, snack food, candy, etc.) used as part of a daily meal plan may be purchased in limited amounts.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices from vendor relating to operation of facility and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Option 2: Per Meal Allowance

Per meal allowance of exactly \$2 per meal served if:

- Approved in advance by the Local Board; and,
- LRO's total mass feeding award is expended in this manner.

The \$2 per meal allowance, if elected, may be expended by the LRO for any related cost; it is not limited to otherwise eligible items. The per meal allowance may be used to cover costs such as rent, utilities, and staff salaries for those staff necessary for the preparation and serving of food. The per meal allowance does not include the additional costs associated with shelter or the per diem shelter allowance.



EFSP funding is intended to provide for daily, basic, nutritional meal costs on an ongoing basis. The funding is not intended to be used for a singular event, special events/celebratory events/holiday meals, etc. Basic non-excessive meal costs may be applied towards special/celebratory/holiday meals served only as part of an ongoing program. Also, dessert items (e.g., cookies, snack food, candy, etc.) used as part of a daily meal plan may be purchased in limited amounts.



Documentation required: daily schedule showing meal rate of \$2 and number of meals served by date with totals. Note: The daily schedule serves as the spreadsheet for the per meal allowance. Supporting documentation must be retained on-site, (i.e. invoices, service records and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method). See Annex 10 [page 101] for sample.

Other Shelter Assistance (Off-Site Lodging Hotel/Motel)

For other shelter assistance, eligible program costs include off-site emergency lodging (room and tax only) in a hotel/motel or other off-site shelter facility provided conditions 1 and 2 below are met.

- 1. No appropriate on-site shelter is available; and
- 2. It is limited to 30-days assistance per individual or household during the current program period. (Note: Assistance may be extended in extreme cases with prior Local Board written approval. A copy of this approval must accompany the LRO's documentation.)



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated vendor receipts/invoices from off-site shelter [hotel/motel/etc. on their stationery] and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. Receipts/invoices must include client's name, length of stay and charge per night. Note: If using a unique identifier when submitting documentation for clients served, the LRO is required to provide documentation of the statute which applies to the protecting of clients and the services provided.

Rent/Mortgage Assistance/Eviction Prevention

For rent/mortgage assistance, eligible program costs include:

Limited emergency rent or mortgage assistance <u>principal and interest only (P&I)</u>, for individuals or households provided conditions "a" through "f" below are met:

- a) Payment is in arrears or due within 10 calendar days.
- b) other resources have been exhausted;
- c) The client is 1) a resident of the home or apartment and 2) responsible for the rent/mortgage on the home or apartment where the rent/mortgage assistance is to be paid;

- d) Payment is limited to a maximum of one month's assistance for each individual or household; assistance can be provided 1) for a full month's rent/mortgage (P&I) all at one time, or 2) in separate payments over a period of up to 90 consecutive days so long as the total amount paid does not exceed one month's cost and is paid by a single LRO;
- e) Assistance is provided only once in a jurisdiction by a single LRO in each award phase for each individual/household (with exception of item d [2] above);
- f) The month paid is the current amount or part of the arrearage that is still owed at the time of payment and is from the current award phase and,
- g) Payment must guarantee an additional 30 days service.

Notes: Late fees, legal fees, deposits, and condo fees are ineligible.

If a client has two mortgages, assistance may only be given for the first mortgage for the client's residence on the principal and interest.

Payments for mobile homes and lots are eligible and can be paid to a mortgage company or to a private landlord.

If the bill is <u>not</u> in the client's name, documentation must be provided to prove that it is the client's responsibility to pay the bill.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated and signed letters from landlords [must include amount of one month's rent and <u>due date</u>] mortgage company's letter and/or copy of mortgage loan coupon showing monthly mortgage amount and date due and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. Payments must be made to the landlord ONLY, not to both client and landlord. <u>Documentation must support the payment made and is limited to a maximum of one month's assistance</u>. A copy of the client's lease is only accepted when paying the first month's rent. See Annex 7, page 98.

First Month's Rent Payment

First month's rent may be paid when an individual or household:

- a) Is transient and plans to stay in the area for an extended period of time; or
- b) Is moving from a temporary shelter to a more permanent living arrangement; or
- c) Is being evicted because one-month's payment will not forestall eviction in current housing.

First month's rent:

- a) <u>Cannot</u> be provided in addition to emergency rent/mortgage assistance under item 1 above.
- b) May be provided in addition to assistance provided for off-site or mass shelter.
- c) May only be provided by a single LRO in a jurisdiction each award phase for an individual/household.
- d) <u>Cannot</u> be paid more than **30** calendar days before occupancy.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated and signed letters from landlords or current lease [must include amount of first month's rent and due date] and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.) See Annex 7, page 98.

<u>Documentation must support the payment made which is limited to a maximum of one month's assistance.</u>

Note: First month's rent is the only situation in which the lease is acceptable documentation.

Rent/Mortgage Assistance Special Note



EFSP will allow a one-time payment of \$250 or less for rent/mortgage assistance where the past due balance is \$250 or more without the verification of the monthly rent/mortgage amount. Verification of an outstanding balance, month covered, and due date for the rent/mortgage is still required.

Utility Assistance

For utility assistance, eligible program costs include:

Limited metered utility assistance (includes gas, electricity, water, and sewer service) for individuals or households. The client must be 1) a resident of the home or apartment and 2) responsible for the utility on the home or apartment for which utility assistance is to be paid provided conditions "a" through "f" below are met:

- a) Payment is in arrears or due within 10 calendar days;
- b) All other resources have been exhausted (e.g., State's Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program);
- c) Payment is limited **to a maximum of one month's** billed **usage** cost for each utility (e.g., gas, electric and water) for each individual or household;
- d) The month paid is the current amount, budget amount <u>or</u> part of the <u>arrearage that is still owed at the time of payment</u> and that is either from the current award phase or for continuous service prior to award phase that remains past due;
- e) Each utility is paid only once in each award phase for any individual or household; and
- f) Payment guarantees an additional 30 days service.



Note: If paying from a past due notice, a breakdown of the monthly usage charges must be obtained (a copy of current client billing and payment history by month from the utility provider). The highest one month amount from the phase/year may not be paid unless it is part of the amount currently owed at the time of payment. Where clients have made a partial payment, the payment is generally applied to the oldest past due amount. The entire EFSP amount paid may only be a maximum one month amount that is all still past due. Documentation must clearly indicate which month is being paid from the breakdown of monthly charges and must be part of the past due amount still owed at the time of payment.

Reconnect fees are eligible. Required fees that are included on the bill are eligible. Level billing or budget payments are eligible. Elective fees/items are not eligible.

Late fees and deposits are not eligible. Repayment agreements beyond the one month billing are not eligible.

Limited non-metered utility assistance (includes oil, firewood, coal, propane) for individuals or households provided conditions "a" through "c" below are met:

- a) All other resources are exhausted (e.g., State's Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program).
- b) Payment is limited to a <u>one-time delivery</u> (e.g., the minimum amount of delivery for firewood, minimum gallons of fuel oil, propane).
- Each utility is paid only once in each award phase for any individual or household.

The intent of non-metered utility assistance, like metered utility assistance, is to provide 30 days of service.



Note: A maximum of a one month's utility bill may be paid for a client/household by a single LRO in a jurisdiction. Multiple LROs may not join together and each pay a portion of a single utility bill. Rental fees for propane tanks or other equipment are not eligible.

If the bill is <u>not</u> in the client's name, documentation must be provided to prove that it is the client's responsibility to pay the bill.



Documentation required: (1) spreadsheet, metered utilities [e.g., electricity, water], the most recent copy of past due or current utility bill with a breakdown which <u>clearly identifies the one month's charges being paid</u> including due date and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method; (2) spreadsheet, non-metered utilities [e.g., propane, firewood], receipts/invoices for fuel including due date or delivery date and canceled checks or documentation for other acceptable payment methods. (Estimated delivery quotes are not acceptable.)



EFSP allows a payment of \$100 or less on a utility bill with a past due amount or shut-off notice of \$100 or more without the monthly breakdown showing the client's monthly billing amount. A bill is still required to show the outstanding balance, but a service period is not required.

Note: Utility disconnects and termination notices often do not show the amount owed by month. The monthly information must be verified with the utility company (a copy of current client billing and payment history by month from the utility provider) and written onto the notice or metered utility verification form. If one month's service cannot be verified from the bill or with the utility company, the LRO may pay up to \$100 per individual or household provided at least \$100 is owed on the bill. This \$100 is not a cap. If an LRO wishes to pay more than \$100, the one month amount paid must be verified.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated copy of utility bill, disconnect, termination, final or shut-off notices with one month verification, if necessary, and proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method. Documentation must state which month's usage is being paid from the breakdown of monthly charges as well as the due date.

For additional information on utility assistance guidelines, see Annex 14 [page 107].

Metered Utility Verification Form

The National Board encourages the use of the Metered Utility Verification Form (along with a copy of the current utility bill or the client's billing and payment history from the utility company) as the preferred method for verifying eligible utility assistance. The bill must be attached to the metered utility verification form and the information on the bill must support the information completed on the form. Documentation must state which month' usage is being paid from the breakdown of monthly charges as well as the due date. The form must be completed in its entirety and proof of payment must be provided with the form and supporting documentation. See Annex 6, page 97 for sample metered utility verification form.

Diapers

For <u>all</u> service providers, the purchase of diapers is eligible as described below:

- For direct distribution to individuals.
- For residents of mass shelters.
- For vouchers to grocery stores.



Note: Local Boards must use discretion in selecting LROs to provide this service, taking into consideration the cost effectiveness of bulk purchasing.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices for diapers purchased and/or proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Feminine Hygiene Items

For <u>all</u> service providers, the purchase of limited, basic feminine hygiene items is eligible as described below:

- For direct distribution to individuals.
- For residents of mass shelters.
- For vouchers to grocery stores.



Note: Prior Local Board approval is required. Local Boards must use discretion in selecting LROs to provide this service, taking into consideration the cost effectiveness of bulk purchasing.



Documentation required: spreadsheet, dated receipts/invoices for feminine hygiene items purchased and/or proof of payment to vendor by an acceptable payment method.

Charging Back Expenditures

REMINDER: LROs may submit expenditures for items and services procured prior to receiving EFSP funds. The expenditures must be incurred during the spending period and be eligible under EFSP program guidelines. All documentation requirements for the category in which the expenditures are reported will apply.

Ineligible Program Costs

The following purposes for which funds cannot be used include, but are not limited to:

- CASH PAYMENTS of any kind, including checks made out to cash, petty cash expenditures, money orders or cashier checks purchased with cash.
- Payments made in any form other than LRO check, LRO credit card, electronic payment from the LRO's bank account or LRO debit card to vendor. (Payments may not be made to clients.)

A webinar providing background on eligible and ineligible expenditures is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

- 3. Advances or reimbursements to staff, volunteers, or clients for program purchases. Cash back to client from gift certificates/vouchers.
- 4. Payments made more than 90 days after the receipt/invoice or client intake date.
- Reimbursement to other LROs or agencies including those agencies under an LRO serving as a Fiscal Agent or Fiscal Conduit.
- 6. Fees: No bank fees, membership fees to food banks, shopping clubs, etc.
- 7. Deposits of any kind.
- 8. Administrative cost reimbursement to state or regional offices of governmental or voluntary organizations.
- 9. Use of administrative funds for purposes other than administering EFSP.
- 10. No meals/food or beverages may be purchased for EFSP Local Board meetings with the administrative funding.
- 11. Lobbying efforts.
- 12. Expenditures made outside jurisdiction's spending period. All award funds must be expended within the current phase begin and end dates.
- 13. No pre-payment for expenses or services not yet rendered or incurred (i.e., where no goods or services have been provided prior to payment during program period).
- 14. Telephone costs, salaries, or office equipment by LRO, except as administrative allowance authorized by the Local Board, and limited to the total allowance (2%) of the LRO's award.
- 15. Rental security deposit or revolving loan accounts.
- 16. Payments of more than one month's mortgage, first month's mortgage, or down payment on mortgage. Payment on home equity loan or home equity line of credit.
- 17. Purchase/lease of real property (land or buildings) of any kind.
- 18. Property taxes of any kind, escrow accounts, insurance, legal fees, or condo fees.
- 19. Late fees for rent, mortgage, or utility assistance.
- 20. Payment of more than one month's rent.
- 21. Payment of more than one month's portion of a utility bill.
- 22. Payment of more than \$300 per item of essential equipment.
- 23. Lease-purchase agreement or equipment leases.
- 24. Routine maintenance of LRO facilities, routine maintenance or service contracts on equipment.
- 25. Construction, rehabilitation or remodeling for expansion of service.
- 26. Repairs of any kind to an individual's home or apartment.
- 27. Supplies or equipment purchases for an individual's home or private use.
- 28. Transportation of people <u>not</u> related to the direct provision of food or shelter (e.g., to another agency, another city, etc.). Also transportation to a relative's or friend's home.
- 29. Gas or repairs for client-owned vehicles, maintenance or repairs to LRO-owned vehicles (e.g., oil, tires, etc.). Also, insurance for LRO-owned or client-owned vehicles.
- 30. Emergency assistance for disaster victims, supplies bought for or in anticipation of a disaster (i.e., fires of any kind, floods, tornadoes, etc.).

- 31. Prescription medication, medical supplies, or vitamins.
- 32. Clothing (except underwear/diapers for clients of mass shelters, if necessary).
- 33. An LRO may not operate as a vendor for itself or other LROs, except for the shared maintenance fee for food banks.
- 34. LROs may not charge fees for services provided with EFSP funds.
- 35. Direct expenses associated with new or expanded services or to prevent closing.
- 36. Encumbrance of funds; that is, no pre-payments for goods or services not received or not rendered which are paid for prior to the end of the jurisdiction's program.
- 37. No payments on account. Funds cannot be placed on deposit with a vendor and drawn down.
- 38. Meal costs in excess of the normal daily basic meal cost.
- 39. Reserving or withholding funds in anticipation of a future need (e.g., holiday events, holiday baskets, special programs, celebratory events).
- 40. Staff events/functions/meals of any kind.
- 41. Supplementing foster care costs, where an LRO has already received payment for basic boarding and feeding of a client. Comprehensive foster care costs beyond food and shelter.

Administrative Allowance

By law, there is an administrative allowance limitation of two percent (2%) of total funds received by the Local Board excluding any interest earned. This allowance is a part of the total award — not in addition to the award.

The local administrative allowance is intended for use by Local Boards and/or LROs and not for reimbursement of program or administrative costs to an LRO's national organization (its state or regional offices) which might be incurred as a result of this additional funding. LROs wishing to use part of their grant for administration must include this request in their application for funding.

Distribution of the allowance among LROs is decided by the Local Board. No LRO may receive an allowance greater than 2% of that LRO's award amount unless the LRO is providing the administrative support for the Local Board and is approved by the National Board. The administrative allowance may only be allocated in whole dollar amounts.

The Local Board may elect to use, for its own administrative costs, all or any portion of the 2% allowance. The Local Board may apply the administrative allowance toward advertising expenses, if necessary.

Administrative costs incurred in the processing of Final Reports are allowable from the date the Final Reports are made available from the National Board until the due date of the jurisdiction's Final Report. The day the jurisdiction's Final Report is due would be the last day administrative expenditures would be considered eligible. Any administrative costs incurred after the due date would be considered ineligible.

The administrative allowance for the Local Board and the other LROs cannot exceed 2% of the jurisdiction's total allocation, rounded to the nearest whole dollar. Any amount less than fifty cents is rounded down and fifty or more cents is rounded up. The maximum administrative allowance is noted on the Local Board plan. Any of the administrative allowance not spent must be put back into program funds for additional services.



Documentation required: Spreadsheets must be submitted along with the final report. LROs receiving funds for administration must retain supportive documentation that the funds were spent on the direct administration of EFSP.

FOR A MORE COMPREHENSIVE LIST AND FURTHER EXPLANATION OF THESE CATEGORIES, SEE PAGES 63-77 SAMPLE ELIGIBLE AND INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES; NOT LIMITED TO THESE ITEMS

CATEGORY	SAMPLE ELIGIBLE ITEMS	SAMPLE INELIGIBLE ITEMS
SERVED MEALS	Any food used in served meals (cold or hot); costs of transporting food to site or client; daily per meal schedule (\$2/meal).	Any items not related to actual feeding of a client. Excessive meal costs. Excessive snack food items. Staff events/functions.
OTHER FOOD	Food vouchers, food boxes, grocery orders, restaurant vouchers, etc., food purchased for food banks and/or food pantries, vouchers, gift certificates (limited), transportation costs.	Tobacco, alcohol, paper products. Any non-food item. Excessive meal costs. Excessive snack food items. Staff events/functions.
MASS SHELTER	Direct expenses associated with housing a client (e.g., supplies, linens, etc.); transportation costs; daily per diem schedule (\$7.50 or \$12.50).	Year-round ongoing operational costs (rent, pest-control, garbage pick-up, utilities); salaries of employees.
OTHER SHELTER	Any <u>reasonable</u> hotel/motel or non-profit facility acting as a vendor; SRO; actual charge by vendor, per night; 30 day limit	An LRO receiving funds <u>may not</u> act as a vendor for themselves or another funded LRO. Stay beyond 30 days per phase. Prepayments for hotel/motel.
SUPPLIES/ EQUIPMENT	\$300 per item maximum. Mass feeding: pots, pans, toasters, blenders, microwave, utensils, paper products, any item essential to the preparation of food, shelving. Diapers. Mass shelter: cots, blankets, pillows, toilet paper, soap, toothpaste, toothbrushes, cleaning materials, limited first-aid supplies, underwear/diapers. Emergency repair of essential small equipment (\$300 limit for both mass feeding and mass shelter.)	Decorative curtains, carpet, clothing, TVs, computer systems, office equipment, bedroom furniture other than beds (nightstand, lamps, etc.).
REHABILITATION/ EMERGENCY REPAIRS	Building code violations, handicap ramp, etc. (\$2,500 limit), Emergency repairs are only allowed in support of per meal schedule or per diem schedule for mass feeding sites or mass shelters. All expenditures require prior approval by both the National Board and Local Board.	tine
RENT/MORTGAGE	ayment lar days; to one	Payment for rent/mortgage exceeding one month's cost, deposits; down-payment for purchase of home; late fees; legal fees; taxes, insurance & escrow accounts.
UTILITIES	Past due bills, or current bills due within 10 calendar days, for gas, electricity, oil, water; reconnect fees. May pay budgeted or actual amount. Limited to one-month's amount that is part of the arrearage at the time of payment or current one month amount. One-time delivery of frewood, coal, propane.	Payments for utilities exceeding one month's cost, deposits; cable, or satellite TV bills; phone bills; internet service; late fees.
ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOWANCE	Limited to 2% of total funds received by jurisdiction; any expenses associated with administering this program (telephone costs, stamps, etc.).	Administrative expenses <u>not</u> related to the BFSP program.

• Phase 35

28

Required Documentation



All EFSP documentation must be obtained and retained as noted in this manual. Documentation may be requested at any time, even if not required initially with the Final Report. Documentation for all program areas, including administration, must be provided when requested.

Spreadsheets are required to be submitted along with documentation for all expenditure categories. The spreadsheets may be generated from the agency's financial or case management system. The required elements for the spreadsheets are stated in the Required Forms section, page 83. Sample spreadsheets are available on the website under Forms.

Documentation refers to those accounting records that support payments for EFSP expenditures. Each payment re-quires two basic accounting records.

First, a copy of the LRO's proof of payment made not more than 90 days following the invoice/purchase date or date of intake is required. Proof of payment would include as necessary: LRO's canceled check returned from the bank payable to the vendor; LRO's bank statement showing electronic payment

A webinar providing guidance on preparing spreadsheets is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

or debit card payment to vendor; or LRO's canceled check payable to the credit card company. Do not copy either side of a check that has **not** been canceled by the bank unless submitting with bank statement for which cancelled checks are not returned.

Note: When a check goes through the bank, it is generally encoded on the bottom of the check. These numbers represent the amount for which the check was processed. The front of the check shows the date of payment and the payee. The bank statement verifies that the check was debited from the LRO's account.

For electronic checks and debit purchases, the bank statements must clearly identify the payee by name for each transaction (not a string of codes).

When checks are converted electronically at the time of purchase, it is similar to the use of a debit card. The money is immediately placed on hold in the account by the bank. EFSP requires copies of the bank statement to support expenditures paid with agency's electronically converted check and debit card payments.

If an LRO cannot provide copies of both sides of the canceled check because the LRO's bank does not return checks, the following items are acceptable alternatives:

- Facsimile copies/images of canceled checks (front) from the LRO's checking account statements. <u>If submitting facsimile</u> copies/images of checks, the copies must be large enough to read and be clearly legible. (Please enlarge prior to photo copying.)
- Substitute bank generated checks from the LRO's checking account statements. Copies of checks may be available via your bank's website. Copies of bank generated checks must be large enough to read the check date and to whom the check is written. (Please enlarge prior to photo copying.) If the bank generated checks do not show a cancellation on the front, then the bank statement must also be submitted.
- LRO's checking account statements along with a copy of the front of the check when it was issued by the LRO.

Second, a copy of the vendor's itemized invoice. All copies of documentation must be clearly legible. An acceptable invoice has the following characteristics:

- It must be vendor-originated and have name of vendor.
- It must have name of purchaser and have date of purchase.

- It must be itemized (description of each item, number of each item and cost of each item).
- It must have total cost of purchase.

Documentation may also include:

- Credit card statement showing purchase and payment along with itemized receipt of purchase.
- Vouchers with detailed description of goods or services provided,
- Daily per diem shelter allowance schedule. (See Annex 9, page 100),
- Daily per meal allowance schedule. (See Annex 10, page 101).
- Per trip mileage logs at the allowed rate of \$0.545. (See Annex 11, page 102).

Client Confidentiality in Documentation Submitted:

- In submitting documentation to the National Board with their Final Report, LROs providing services to clients where confidentiality is protected by statute may use a unique identifier.
- If using a unique identifier when submitting documentation for clients served, the LRO is required to provide documentation of the statute which applies to the clients served and services provided that are protected.

Note: The National Board reserves the right to request additional documentation as deemed necessary to support expenditures under the EFSP (e.g., landlord letters, billing and payment histories, sign-in logs).

All documentation submitted for review must be complete, clear and completely legible. Please enlarge prior to copying to ensure readability, if necessary.

A webinar providing background on common compliance issues is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

All LROs must:

- Have records audited by an independent certified public accountant if receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funds; have an annual accountant's review if receiving from \$50,000 to \$99,999;
- Keep their documentation records for three years after each end of program year. Documentation includes but is not limited to: LRO you had Certification form, application for funding, Local Board approval of funding, Second Payment Request/Interim Report, Final Report, all expenditure documentation (vendor invoices/receipts and proof of payment);
- A webinar providing background on audit requirements is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.
- 3. Be subject to review and/or audit by the National Board, FEMA and/or the DHS Office of Inspector General during those three years (Note: Documentation must be retained longer than the three-year period if compliance problems are identified. Once compliance problems are resolved, the three-year retention period begins.);
- 4. Complete and return to the National Board the interim and final LRO reports;
- 5. Return any unused award funds to the National Board at the end of the spending period (\$5.00 or more). Checks must be made payable to United Way Worldwide/Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program, 701 North Fairfax Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314 and include Local Board ID and LRO ID numbers on the face of the check in the upper right corner; and,
- 6. All award funds must be expended during the current phase begin and end dates.

The ending date for the spending period in each jurisdiction for all award types is selected by the Local Board. The jurisdiction's spending period start and end dates are noted on the Final Report.

A webinar detailing the process for submitting a Final Report is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Who Must Submit Documentation

All LROs will be required periodically to submit documentation to the National Board to ensure continued program compliance.

Any LRO not funded in the previous phase will be considered new for compliance purposes and will be required to submit documentation. LROs having major compliance exceptions or those not clearing in a timely fashion will be required to submit documentation for the next phase. Any LRO having ineligible costs will be required to submit documentation.

A webinar detailing the process for submitting a Final Report and common compliance issues is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

LROs whose audits have reported findings will, at the discretion of the National Board, submit documentation.

Copies of all documentation (from LROs required to submit) must be submitted to the Local Board when requested after the end of the jurisdiction's spending period. The Local Board is then required to review and submit all documentation to the National Board after the end of the jurisdiction's spending period by the specified deadline.

Each LRO is responsible for ensuring that the copies of documentation submitted are **legible** and **organized** as indicated in the Final Report instructions.

Poorly copied or unorganized documentation <u>may</u> be returned to the Local Board for correction, and <u>may</u> result in a delay in receiving additional funding for the LRO and/or the jurisdiction.

Note: In certain instances, the National Board may request submission of documentation to comply with outside audit requests.

- The audit firm selected to review National Board records will review a statistically valid random sample of agencies which were NOT required to submit documentation under normal procedures.
- National Board staff will conduct periodic site reviews in funded jurisdictions. In each jurisdiction selected, several LROs will be chosen.
- FEMA staff will conduct site reviews in several randomly selected jurisdictions.
- The DHS/OIG will continue its practice of random site audits.
- FEMA's Office of Chief Financial Officer may also conduct reviews including, but not limited, to compliance with the Improper Payments Elimination and Recovery Act (IPERA).

Reminder: Local Boards and LROs must submit complete, accurate, legible documentation when requested in a timely manner. Failure to comply promptly with any documentation request <u>may</u> jeopardize a jurisdiction's or LRO's funding.















EMERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTER NATIONAL BOARD PROGRAM

PHASE 35

ANNEXES

701 North Fairfax Street Alexandria, Virginia 22314 p. 703-706-9660f. 703-706-9677

efsp@uww.unitedway.org www.efsp.unitedway.org

Required Forms



The following pages include samples of the required forms that must be used by participants of the EFSP. *These forms may not be altered.* Copies of the spreadsheet templates are available under Forms on the EFSP Website. All certification forms will be sent to the required signers as part of the e-signing process. Please direct any questions regarding the forms to the National Board staff.

Annex 1: Spreadsheets

Spreadsheets are required as part of the documentation requirements to support all expenditures made with EFSP funds. Samples of the required spreadsheets and elements for each category are included in this manual and can be found on the EFSP website under **Forms**. The following is a list of the elements required for the spreadsheets.

A webinar providing guidance on preparing spreadsheets is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

Required Elements with Explanation

- Billing Period Covered with Payment: service period paid for client's utility bill; if a non-metered utility bill is paid, indicate not applicable (N/A) on the spreadsheet. The required date format is MM/DD/YY-MM/DD/YY. If an LRO pays \$100 or less for a client from a past due balance of disconnect/cutoff/shutoff notice from the utility company, the "billing period covered" information is not required on the spreadsheet. Enter "N/A" in the column labeled "billing period covered".
- Building Code Citation Date: date the agency (feeding or shelter site) received the citation from the local city/county
 government indicating required work needed on building where services are provided. The required date format is
 MM/DD/YY.
- 3. **Client First Name**: legal name of the individual seeking assistance (this only applies to other shelter, rent/mortgage and utility categories.)
- 4. Client Last Name: legal name of the individual seeking assistance (this only applies to other shelter, rent/mortgage and utility categories.)
- 5. **Client Street Address**: the physical residence of the individual seeking assistance; the individual must be responsible for the service at the address (this only applies to rent/mortgage and utility categories.) P.O. Boxes are not allowed.
- 6. **Dates of Stay**: for assistance made in the Other Shelter category, indicate the dates the clients stayed in the motel, hotel, etc. The required date format is MM/DD/YY-MM/DD/YY.
- 7. **Due Date**: date the client's rent/mortgage and/or utility bills had to be paid (this only applies to rent/mortgage and utility categories.) For rent please use the due date per the lease, not the due date listed on the eviction notice. The required date format is MM/DD/YY.
- 8. **Delivery Date**: if a non-metered utility bill (propane, firewood, coal, kerosene) is paid, indicate the date of delivery to the client. The required date format is MM/DD/YY.
- 9. **EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount**: portion of the purchase paid with EFSP funds; the column must be totaled on each page if multiple pages are required for the category. The total amount must be provided for the category on the last page, if multiple pages are required.
- 10. Invoice/Receipt Amount: total cost of purchase as listed on the invoice or receipt.
- 11. Invoice/Receipt Date: date the vendor prints on the invoice or receipt. The required date format is MM/DD/YY.
- 12. **Invoice/Receipt Number**: preprinted number on the invoice/receipt from vendors; if there is no invoice number, indicate not applicable (N/A) on the spreadsheet.

- 13. Landlord/Mortgage Company Name: individual or company that a client is required to pay their rent or mortgage payment to each month
- 14. **Member Agency Name**: food banks must provide the name of the agency(ies) that received food when using a shared maintenance fee.
- 15. **Month Covered with Payment**: service period paid for client's rent/mortgage or utility (month paid.) The required date format is MM/DD/YY-MM/DD/YY, should indicate the month of coverage provided by the payment.
- 16. **Monthly Rent/Mortgage**: a client's regular/usual rent or mortgage (principal and interest only) (<u>no deposits, late fees</u> <u>or other fees</u>) for one month as listed on the client's lease or mortgage papers.
- 17. Page Numbers: number all pages of the spreadsheets, when multiple pages are required for a category.
- 18. Payment/Check Clear Date: date the payment/check goes through banking system (also known as cancellation date of a check); EFSP generally references the check or the bank statement for this information. If an agency's debit/credit card is used, the date will be the same as the purchase date. The required date format is MM/DD/YY.
- 19. Payment/Check Date: date the payment/check is issued (date printed on the check, money order, etc.) to pay vendors; if an agency's credit/debit card is used, indicate the date of the purchase (do <u>not</u> include the card number.) The required date format is MM/DD/YY.
- 20. **Payment/Check Number**: preprinted number on check, money order, etc. used to pay vendors for service; if an agency's credit/debit card is used, indicate credit card or debit card in the spreadsheet (**do not include the card number.**)
- 21. **Payroll Registers**: payroll registers from the LRO's system for all employees who worked on the EFSP and the percentage of time charged to EFSP.
- 22. **Phase and LRO Identification (Name and Number)**: provide the Phase number and the LRO's name and 9-digit ID number.
- 23. **Total Check Amount**: cost paid to vendors for services provided for agency or clients (can include partial or total EFSP payment.)
- 24. Type of Repair: for expenditures made in the REHABILITATION category, briefly explain the type of repair.
- 25. **Type of Service**: for utility payments, indicate if the assistance was for gas, electric, water, propane, kerosene, firewood or coal.
- 26. Vendor Name: company or individual that provided services for agency or clients.

Served Meals

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Served Meals** category (when not using the per meal allowance) with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in order by payment/check number. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in payment/check number order following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

Ensure that your agency's name is included on the page along with your LRO 9-digit ID number and the Phase number.

A spreadsheet is required when not using the per meal allowance. The per meal schedule replaces the spreadsheets.

Phase Number:	35										
LRO Name:	Sample LRO				Spreadsheets alone are not sufficient. Documentation must be obtained, maintained, retained as submitted to EFSP (if required) to support all expenditures made with EFSP funds.						
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789										
					URES - DIRECT COST						
		(A spreadsheet is	s required when <u>not</u> usi	ng the per meal allo	wance. The per meal log repl	ces the spreadsh	eet.)				
Payment/Check Number	Payment/Check Date (MM/DD/YY) Payment/Check Clea Date (MM/DD/YY)		Invoice/Receipt Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Number (If no number, enter N/A)	Vendor Name	Invoice/ Receipt Amount	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount			
1234567	06/01/18	06/05/18	05/12/18	INV123	Sample Vendor	150.00	150.00	150.00			
7654321	07/01/18	07/08/18	06/15/18	INV155	Other Vendor	850.00	850.00	500.00			
							Total	650.00			
		Sample Spreadsheets	and Guidance are availal	ole on EFSP website u	under Forms and listed on the da	shboard under Fina		00000			

Sample Daily Per Meal Log

Phase Number:	35				
LRO ID Number:	123456789				
(9 digits)	Sample	LRC)		
	LRO Na	me			
	123 Sample				
	Street Ad				
	City, State	e, Z	ip		
	City, State				
Date (Month/Date/Year)	Number of Meals Served		Per Meal Rate (\$2.00)		Total
06/01/18	100	\$	2.00	\$	200.00
06/02/18	75	\$	2.00	\$	150.00
06/03/18	80	\$	2.00	\$	160.00
06/04/18	90	\$	2.00	\$	180.00
Total Number of Meals	345		Grand Total	Ś	690.00

Other Food

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Other Food** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>order by payment/check number</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in payment/check number order following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

Phase Number:	35				Spreadsheets alone are not sufficient.						
LRO Name:	Sample LRO				retained and submitted to EFSP (if required) to support all expenditures made with EF						
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789				funds.						
			0	THER FOOD EXPENI	DITURES						
Payment/Check Number	Payment /Check Date (MM/DD/YY)	Payment /Check Clear Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Number (If no number, enter N/A)	Vendor Name	Invoice/ Receipt Amount	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount			
963	08/05/18	08/28/18	08/01/18	INV12345	Other Food Supplier	895.00	895.00	895.00			
1012	10/04/18	12/13/18	08/01/18	ABC985	Sample Vendor	594.00	594.00	235.00			
	Total 1,130.00 Sample Spreadsheets and Guidance are available on EFSP website under Forms and listed on the dashboard under Final Report										
		•				•					

Mass Shelter

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Mass Shelter** category (when not using a per diem allowance) with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in order by payment/check number. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in payment/check number order following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

A spreadsheet is required when not using the per diem allowance. The per diem schedule replaces the spreadsheets.

Phase Number:	35				Caracdebaste along	a move the spherical				
LRO Name:	Sample LRO				Spreadsheets alone maintained, retaine	d and submitted to				
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789				expenditures made	with EFSP funds.				
				ER EXPENDITURE						
			ed when <u>not</u> using t	he per diem allowanc	e. The per diem log	replaces the spr	eadsheet.)			
Payment/Check Number	Payment / Check Payment / Check Date Clear Date (MM/DD/YY) (MM/DD/YY)		Invoice/Receipt Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Number (If no number, enter N/A)	Vendor Name	Invoice/ Receipt Amount	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount		
145	09/15/18	10/04/18	07/29/18	INV951	Sample Vendor	847.00	847.00	450.00		
Credit Card	10/04/18	10/04/18	10/04/18	284539	Sample Supplier	975.00	975.00	975.00		
	Sample Spre	adsheets and Gui	dance are available c	on EFSP website under	Forms and listed on t	he dashboard unde	Total er Final Report.	1,425.00		

Sample Daily Per Diem Log

Phase Number:	35		
LRO ID Number:	123456789		
(9 digits)	220130103		
(5 digits)	Sam	ple LRO	
	LRC		
	123 Sa		
	Street	t Address	
	City, S		
	City, S	State, Zip	
Date (Month/Date/Year)	Number of Clients Served	or \$12.50 as approved by	Total
		Local Board)	
03/01/18	25	12.50	312.5
03/02/18	24	12.50	300.0
03/03/18	24	12.50	300.0
03/04/18	25	12.50	312.5
Total Number of Clients	98	Grand Total	1,225.0

Other Shelter

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Other Shelter** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>alphabetical order by the clients' last names</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in order by clients' last names following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

Phase Number:	35								Spreadsheets al			
LRO Name:	Sample LRO				must be obtained, maintained, retail EFSP (if required) to support all expe							
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789								EFSP funds.			
				ОТНЕ	R SHELTER	EXPEND	ITURES					
Client Last Name (In Alphabetic Order)	Client First Name	Start Date of Stay (MM/DD/YY)	End Date of Stay (MM/DD/YY)	Vendor Name	Invoice Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice Amount	Invoice Number (if no invoice number, enter N/A)	Check	Payment/ Check Date (MM/DD/YY)	Payment/ Check Clear Date (MM/DD/YY)	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount
Doe	Jane	05/02/18	05/13/18	Sample Hotel	05/13/18	935.00	45636	Credit	05/13/18	05/13/18	935.00	935.00
Smith	John	07/25/18	07/28/18	Sample Motel	07/28/18	225.00	964735	Credit	07/28/18	07/28/18	255.00	255.00
											Total	1,190.00
	Sa	mple Spreadsl	heets and Guid	dance are available o	n EFSP websit	e under F	orms and listed	d on the da	shboard under	Final Report.		
If the client	's name can	not be provide	d because of c	onfidentiality, please	provide the si	<i>upport</i> ing	statute and pro	vide the u	nique identifier	on the spread	sheet for eac	h client.

Supplies and Equipment

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Supplies and Equipment** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>order by payment/check number</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in payment/check number order following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

Phase Number:	35				C						
LRO Name:	Sample LRO					ned and submitt	ufficient. Documentation must be ed and submitted to EFSP (if required) to				
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789				Support an experience made with Libr fullus.						
			SUPPLIES A	ND EQUIPMENT E	XPENDITURES						
Payment/Check Number	Payment /Check Payment /Check Date Clear Date (MM/DD/YY) (MM/DD/YY)		Invoice/Receipt Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Number (If no number, enter N/A)	Vendor Name	Invoice/ Receipt Amount	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount			
Credit	11/02/18	11/02/18	11/02/18	8825473	Sample Vendor	625.00	625.00	625.00			
3358	11/18/18	11/20/18	11/18/18	INV774	Sample Supplier	1,565.00	1,565.00	1,075.00			
	Sample Spreads	heets and Guidan	ice are available o	on EFSP website under	Forms and listed on the dash	board under Fin	Total al Report	1,700.00			

Rehabilitation (Emergency Repairs/Building Code)

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Rehabilitation (Emergency Repairs/Building Code)** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>order by payment/check number</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in payment/check number order following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

Phase Number:	35					Spreadsheets alor	ne are not sufficier	nt. Docume	entation mus	t be
LRO Name:	Sample LRO					obtained, maintai	ned, retained and	submitted	to EFSP (if re	
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789					support all expen	ditures made with	EFSP fund:	5.	
		REHABI	LITATION (EME	RGENCY RI	EPAIRS/BUILI	DING CODE) EX	PENDITURES			
Payment/Check Number	Payment/ Check Date (MM/DD/YY)	Payment/Check Clear Date (MM/DD/YY)	Building Code Citation Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/ Receipt Date (MM/DD/YY)		Type of Repair	Vendor Name	Invoice/ Receipt Amount	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount
8547	02/15/18	03/01/18	02/05/18	02/14/18	99824	Emergency Exit	Sample Vendor	450.00	450.00	250.00
									Total	250.00
S	ample Spread	Isheets and Guid	lance are availabl	e on EFSP we	bsite under Fo	rms and listed o	n the dashboard	under Fin	al Report.	
these items must	be obtained a	nd retained per do	oard and National ocumentation reten- ies, these document	tion requireme	nts in the EFSP I	Responsibilities and	d Requirements Ma	anual. If de	ocumentation	is required

Rent/Mortgage

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Rent/Mortgage** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>alphabetical order by the clients' last names</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in order by clients' last names following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

	35 Sample LRC 123456789)					Spreadsheets alone are not sufficient. Documentation must be obtained, maintained, retained and submitted to EFSP (if require to support all expenditures made with EFSP funds.				
	RENT/MORTGAGE EXPENDITURES										
(In Alphabetic Name (No PO Box) Company Name (EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount		
Brown	Jane	777 Sample Street, City, State Zip	John Landlord	950.00	07/01/18	07/2018	564	06/30/18	07/01/18	950.00	950.00
Doe	llohn	9501 Sample Street, City, State Zip	Mary Landlord	880.00	08/10/18	09/2018	958	08/20/18	08/21/18	880.00	880.00
										Total	1,830.00
	Samp	le Spreadsheets and G	iuidance are availal	ole on EFSP web	site under Fo	orms and list	ed on the	dashboard u	nder Final Rep	ort.	

Utilities

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Utilities** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>alphabetical order by the clients' last names</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in order by clients' last names following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

35							Spreadsheets al	one are not suff	icient. Documenta	tion must be	obtained,
Sample LRO							maintained, retained and submitted to EFSP (if required) to support all				oport all
123456789							expenditures m	ade with EFSP fu	ınds.		
	UTILITY EXPENDITURES										
Client First Name	Client Street Address (No PO Box)	Vendor Name	Type of Serivce	Due Date/ Delivery Date* (MM/DD/YY)	Billing Period Begin Date (MM/DD/YY)	Billing Period End Date (MM/DD/YY)	Payment/ Check Number	Payment / Check Date (MM/DD/YY)	Payment / Check Clear Date (MM/DD/YY)	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount
Jane		Electricity Company	Electric	05/15/18	03/01/18	03/31/18	539	05/20/18	06/01/18	245.00	245.00
John	467 Sample Street, City, State Zip	Gas Company	Gas	06/01/18	04/01/18	04/30/18	852	05/30/18	06/01/18	185.00	185.00
										Total	430.00
	Sample Sprea	dsheets and o	Guidance ar	e available on EF	SP website unde	r Forms and listed	on the dashboar	d under Final Re	port.		
RED UTILITI	IES (propane, firewo	ood, coal, kei	rosene), pro	vide the date of t	delivery to client.	If paying from d	isconnect/shutof)	f notice, enter th	e date from the no	tice.	
LRO pays \$10	00 or less for a clien	t from a pasi	t due baland	e of disconnect/	cutoff/shutoff not	ice from the utilit	company, the "	billing period co	overed" informatio	n is not requ	uired on the

*For NON-METERED UTILITIES (propane, firewood, coal, kerosene), provide the date of delivery to client. If paying from disconnect/shutoff notice, enter the date from the notice.



Reminder - If an LRO pays \$100 or less for a client from a past due balance of disconnect/cutoff/shutoff notice from the utility company, the "billing period covered" information is not required on the spreadsheet. Enter "N/A" in the column labeled "billing period covered".

Administration

Below is a sample spreadsheet of the elements that must be included in the spreadsheet provided to the National Board to support ALL expenditures made in the **Administration** category with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds. The spreadsheet must be presented to the National Board in <u>order by payment/check number</u>. The documentation provided to support the expenditures attributable to EFSP should also be in payment/check number order following the schedule, if required to be submitted.

Phase Number:	35				Spreadsheets alone are no	sufficient Decu		ust ba
LRO Name:	LRO Sample				obtained, maintained, reta support all expenditures m	ed to EFSP (if		
LRO ID (9 digits):	123456789				support all expellultures in	aue with Ersp iui	ius.	
		A	DMINISTRAT	ION EXPENDITURE	S - DIRECT COST			
Payment/Check Number	Payment/Check Date (MM/DD/YY)	Payment/Check Clear Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Date (MM/DD/YY)	Invoice/Receipt Number (If no number, enter N/A)	Vendor Name	Invoice/ Receipt Amount	Total Check Amount	EFSP Portion of Invoice Amount
87364	04/15/18	04/15/18	04/15/18	842086	Local Newspaper	250.00	250.00	250.00
Credit Card	06/01/18	06/01/18	06/01/18	789134	Office Supplies	50.00	50.00	50.00
							Total	300.00
	Sample Spreads	heets and Guidan	ce are available o	on EFSP website under I	Forms and listed on the dash	nboard under Fina	al Report	
					EFSP comliance review. Docu ties and Requirements Man			

Note: Submit the following in a separate schedule if payroll information (from LRO's system) is provided to support EFSP expenditures.

Phase Number: 35 LRO Name: Sample LRO LRO ID (9 digits): 12345678			Spreadsheets alone are not sufficient. Documentation must be obtained, maintained, retained and submitted to EFSP (if required) to support all expenditures made with EFSP funds.	
			required to support an experialtures made with ersp fullus.	
	ADMI	NISTRATION EXPEN	DITURES - PAYROLL	
Payroll re	gisters for all employe	es who worked on the I	EFSP and the percentage of tim	e charged to EFSP
Employee Name	Payroll Date (MM/DD/YY)	Percentage	Payroll Amount	EFSP Portion of Payroll Amount
Smith, Mary	04/01/18	5.00%	2,000.00	100.00
Smith, Mary	04/15/18	5.00%	2,000.00	100.00
			Total	200.00
Sample Spreadshe	eets and Guidance are av	ailable on EFSP website	under Forms and listed on the da	ashboard under Final Report
administrative costs mu	st be maintained and re		trative expenses for EFSP comliar on retention requirements in the E e.	•

Mileage

Below is a sample mileage log provided to the National Board to support mileage expenditures made in the **Served Meals, Other Food, or Mass Shelter** categories with Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) funds.

	MILEAG	E LOG		
Phase Number	35			
LRO ID Number	123456789			
(9 digits)	Sample LRO			
	LRO Name			
	123 Sample Str	eet		
	Street Addres	5		
	City, State, Zi	City, State, Zip		
	City, State, Zip			
Date (Month/Date/Year)	Departure, destination, purpose of trip (each roundtrip)	Number of Miles	Mileage Rate (per mile)*	Total
05/01/18	Shelter, Church, Client Transportation	15.00	0.55	8.18
05/03/18	Shelter, Church, Client Transportation	15.00	0.55	8.18
05/02/18	Shelter, Church, Client Transportation	15.00	0.55	8.18
	Total Number of Miles	45.00	Grand Total	24.53

^{*} Reference the EFSP Responsibilities and Requirements Manual/Addendum to the Manual for the approved mileage rate.

Sample mileage log and guidance are available on EFSP website under Forms and listed on the dashboard under Final Report.

Annex 2: Local Board Plan Certification

A webinar detailing the process for submitting the Local Board Plan is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

lecuSign Envelope IC: C9995857-D	Emerge 70	ency Food and Shelter Program 01 North Fairfax Street Alexandria, VA 22314 03-706-9660 Fax 703-706-9677	35-0000-00 Direct
	Phase 35	Local Board Plan	1
	Due date for s	ubmission: April 23, 201	8
Jurisdiction: Bample County, Phase 35 start date: 02/01/	2018 The admini	ard ID# 0000-00 istrative allowance of \$1,186 is i	Award Amount: \$59,313 included in the award amount.
Spending Period Extension 10/31/2017.		at Board ID: 000000 ate is not selected, the end date for	this spending period will be
October 31, 2017	November 30, 201	7 December 31, 2017	January 31, 2018
February 28, 2018	March 31, 2018	April 30, 2018	May 31, 2018
June 30, 2018	July 31, 2018	August 31, 2018	September 30, 2018
October 31, 2018	November 30, 201	8 December 31, 2018	Z January 31, 2019
included with the Phase 35 Our Local Board do Board (select one). As the chair of the Local 56 Certification Form and that website are correct. Our Lic of the grant as well as the	quarterly. We understand Final Report. to (copy attached) & d sid, I certify that the Local the above information and rail Board understands that dempliance with applicable with applicable.	that if meeting semiannually, copie loss not have additional requirement Board meets the requirements as a all information provided on the atta- all parties will be held accountable and requirements or all other Federal law	is of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National tated on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions st, Encourty Orders, regulations,
The Local Board will meet: included with the Phase 35 Our Local Board do Board (select one). As the chair of the Local Bo Certification Form and that website are correct. Our Loc the grant as well as hill of the grant as well as hill.	quarterly. We understand Final Report. to (copy attached) & d sid, I certify that the Local the above information and rail Board understands that dempliance with applicable with applicable.	that if meeting semiannually, copie loss not have additional requirement toard meets the requirements as a all information provided on the atta all parties will be held accountable in	is of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National tated on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions st, Encourty Orders, regulations,
The Local Board will meet: included with the Phase 35 Our Local Board of Board of Board of Court Local Board (select one). As the chair of the Local Bo Certification Form and that website are correct. Our Loof the grant as well as full and policiose governing this and policios governing this	quarterly. We understand Frinal Report. ss (copy attached) a discovery that the Local the above information and care above understands that the above information and program, including those in Chair Francisco.	that if meeting semiannually, copie loss not have additional requirement Board meets the requirements as a all information provided on the atta- all parties will be held accountable and requirements or all other Federal law	is of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National tated on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions st, Encourty Orders, regulations,
The Local Board will meet not included with the Phase 35 Our Local Board	quarterly. We understand: Final Report. In Final Report. In Copy attached) In Cartily that the Local the above information and anomalian and anomalian and anomalian anomalian and policiable incomplete. Chair Fear Lawrence Chair Fear La	that if meeting semiannually, copie toes not have additional requirement toard meets the requirements as a binformation provided on the atta all parties will be held accountable of other locations Date: 3/3/2018 I signature which is acceptable for th quests, etc., to be used in the abox and or the Locat Board context. Sub	as of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National taxast on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions rs, Executive Orders, regulations, and the accompanying Phase 35 the processing of your jurisdiction's note of the Local Board Chair.
The Local Board will meet included with the Phase 33 Our Local Board and Board (select one). As the Chair of the Local Board (select one). As the Chair of the Local Board of Local Board of Delivery of the Local Board of Delivery of Local Board of NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwark, i.e., Local Board of	quarterly. We understand Final Report. so (copy attached) & decrease of the above information and rail Board understands trust morphisms with applicable to program, including those of Chair Farry Chair Board Chair stone alternate authorized Finan, Second Reyment Research Chairs sound in the control of the	that if meeting semiannually, copie toes not have additional requirement toard meets the requirements as a binformation provided on the atta all parties will be held accountable of other locations Date: 3/3/2018 I signature which is acceptable for th quests, etc., to be used in the abox and or the Locat Board context. Sub	as of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National taxast on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions rs, Executive Orders, regulations, and the accompanying Phase 35 the processing of your jurisdiction's note of the Local Board Chair.
The Local Board will meet included with the Phase 33 Our Local Board and Board (select one). As the chair of the Local Board (select one). As the chair of the Local Board of the grant as well as fur in the grant of the grant as well as fur in the grant of the grant as well as fur in the grant of Local Board Order. Signature of Local Board Order (see Local Board Court of the grant of Local Board Court of the grant of the g	quarterly. We understand Final Report. Is (copy attached) is described by the solver intermediate and compliance with applicable program, including those recognized with a consideration of the solver intermediate and chair at one alternate authorized Finan, Second Reyment Reference and the solver intermediate authorized signer will not be	that if meeting semiannually, copie toes not have additional requirement toosid meets the requirements as a all information provided on the atta all parties will be held accountable. Board meets the requirements of the all parties will be held accountable. Date: 3/5/2018 Date: 3/5/2018 I signature which is acceptable for the quests, etc., to be used in the absence processed.	as of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National taxast on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions rs, Executive Orders, regulations, and the accompanying Phase 35 the processing of your jurisdiction's note of the Local Board Chair.
The Local Board will meet included with the Phase 35 Our Local Board and Board Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lea paperwork, i.e., Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate below at lease and Local Board Con NOTE: Indicate Board Con NOTE: In	quarterly. We understand Final Report. ss (copy attached) a did to copy attached) a did to copy attached a did color to copy attached a did color to copy attached a did color to copy and	that if meeting semiannually, copie toos not have additional requirement board meets the requirements as a bill information provided on the ana requirements of all other Federal Iss or specifically stated in the Manual of Date: 3/5/2018 I signature which is acceptable for 8 quests, etc., to be used in the abse- processed.	as of meeting minutes must be ts beyond those of the National tasker on the Local Board ched forms and via the EFSP for complying with the provisions rs, Elencutive Orders, regulations, and the accompanying Phase 35 the processing of your jurisdiction's nice of the Local Board Chair.

EMERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTE	R NATIONAL BOARD PROGRAM
PHASE 35 LOCAL BOARI	D PLAN CERTIFICATION
It spaces to first four Completion From, our Land Board completion is here descriptly and all for Emporary Flat and Land Proposed Efficiently on empiric difficulties, so emply that the land primes Recognity of the Completion of Completion (Completion Completion). The agents in the Completion of Emporary exposures, the agents of the Completion of Emporary exposures. The agents is sufficient to the Completion of the Completi	overprify or generational agencies solvend on LDV reflected on the Lord Based Pion times and the property of the control of confidence, and Other Dense and Conditions as well as the Eightic and Lordgelia condition of position will be talk amountable for complying with the previous of the gave is well as followed provided as the property of the position of the gave is well as followed provided as the control of the Based District the complete days in the Manual District the talks are designed by the Lord Agent Pional Conduit Agent Pional Orabitation of Confidence, on someoners. This from the lower former than the control of the Confidence of the Confi
The found from of worthers have selected agreement for a serie for FFF representation, and the series of the serie	representation including quoted supplies proper to g., delity, funding with children, seek and content, content of a state of proper part of the children of t

Annex 3: Local Recipient Organization (LRO) Certification

A webinar detailing the process for submitting LRO Certifications is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.



Annex 4: Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Agency Relationship Certification

A webinar detailing the process for submitting LRO Certifications is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.



Annex 5: Lobbying Certification

A webinar detailing the process for submitting LRO Certifications is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

EMERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTER NATIONAL BOARD PROGRAM PHASE 35 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING		
Certification for Contra	scts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements	
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or h	ner knowledge and belief, that	
person for influencing or attempting to in an officer or employee of Congress, or an of any Federal contract, the making of ar	in paid or will be paid by or on the behalf of the undersigned, to any influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, a employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding my Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of trusion, contribution, renewal, amendment, or modification of any we agreement.	
or attempting to influence an officer or er of Congress, or an employee of a Membe	ated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing imployee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee er of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to instructions.	
	agoage of this certification be included in the award documents for all tracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative all certify and disclose accordingly.	
ntered into. Submission of this certification is a	f fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made of a perrequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Tith the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less that such failure.	
This form must be completed in its entirer hould be directed to EFSP staff.	 Please do <u>not</u> alter this form; any questions regarding the form 	
Sample Shelter	000000-001	
LRO Name	LRO ID Number (9 digits)	
Sample Contact		
Representative Name		
Sangle Coulail		
Representative Signature	3/7/2018 Date (month/day/year)	
	and familiary and (family	
NOTE: 0. 1.15	LLL and instructions are available at www.grants.gov	
NOTE: Standard Form		

Sample Forms, Letters and Guidance

The following sample forms and letters are included for your convenience. Copies of all sample forms are available at efsp.unitedway.org, under **Forms** after logging in with your User ID and password. The samples are all approved documentation which may be duplicated on your agency's letterhead. The use of these forms is strongly recommended, but not mandated. <u>If these forms are used, each form must be completed in its entirety in order to be acceptable.</u> Whatever documentation is used <u>must</u> contain all appropriate elements of EFSP requirements.

As further proof of amount owed, the LRO should obtain from the vendor, the billing and payment history of the client. This will help verify which month's bill has not been paid and is still part of the total amount owed. <u>Any payments made to landlords, mortgage holders or utility companies must guarantee an additional 30 days of service/residence.</u> Direct any questions regarding the forms to the National Board staff.

METERED UTILITY VERIFICATION FORM

Places complete this form in its entirety, as all information is required, for each utility payment made with Emergency Food and Shelter Program funds. Metered utility assistance includes gas, electric and water for individuals or households. (The individual utility bill which shows the one month must due amount must be attached alone with a conv of the need of navment to this form to verify elicibility of extenditures.) Fallure to provide complete, required information will result in a compliance exception.

The anached willing bill or client's billing and payment history from the render charged to the Emergency Food and Shelter Program suggests the information growled below:

Clic	rt Information (required):
25	mac
c	stomer Account Number:
C	mplete Address:
	Street/City/Same/Zity
C	mplete Service Address:

	ty Payment Type (Circle One): Electric Gas Water
	e attached bill covers to to and it a one month billing period.
	e attached bill tu'was due on (month/dep/pasr).
I	e one month amount charges being gold from this bill are for (check ane):
	□ current month's utilities □ past due utilities.
T	e amount being guid of S is for the month of (mount/year), which was due or
-	(wavefeldap/year) and does not exceed one month's billing.
_	e payment being made by this agency is still entirely past due <u>and is most of the total amount oved at the</u> se this agency is providing payment.
	SP guidelines allow for the payment of utility assistance up to 10 calendar days before it is due. No posits, late feet or other service feet are eligible.

	gency/LRO Use:
	locause this information was not clearly stated on the ettached bill, the information has been verified with he willing company and nated by service dates and one month amounts on the ettached bill history.
	he following information must be completed:
	Verified on (worth/day/year):
	Verified with (name of utility company)
	Verified with (name of unity campany maff)
	Name of LRO staff conducting verification:
	Signature of LRO staff conducting verification:

A COPY OF THIS FORM IS AVAILABLE ON THE EFSP WEBSITE UNDER FORMS AFTER YOU LOGIN WITH YOUR USER ID AND PASSWORD.

		GAGE DOCUMENTATION DOWN LEO name and address kern)
information is regul	red, for each rend/mortgage pay	cal Reciplent Organization (LRO) providing service, as all ment made with Emergency Food and Shelter Program ion will result in a compliance exception.
Client Information: Client Name:	D.	zie (month/day/year):
Client Address:		lists aircent address:
	,—	
	1-16	terentes:
Type of Audatance:	Rent (check end)	Mortgage (check and)
THE R. LEWIS CO.	DiPart due rent	DPart due morteage
	DCurrent month's rent	DCurrent month's mortgage
	DiFirst month's next (effective	e'move in date) (monthiday/year)
The monthly rent/	nortgage payment is S	
_	duding the amount above) is S	
	ount being paid by this agency is S	
The amount being	noid is for the month of (wavek/tee	F)
The one month am	ount being noid in was due on (see	nik (dan/hazar)
		elieute at time of navement (check out): Effet Effe
	ists feet, etc. are eligible when p	eith's rest may be gald up to 30 days prior to move-in dats. No coviding assistance to individuals/households. First month's
mortgager are not allow		_
mortgager are not allow	********	*********
mortgager are not allow LEO Verification (To b	444 444444 a completed by the LEO staff;	************
mortgager are not allow	444 444444 a completed by the LEO staff;	***********
mortgaget are not allow LRO Verification (To b LRO Staff Name:_	444 444444 a completed by the LEO staff;	
mortgaget are not allow LRO Verification (To b LRO Staff Name:_	++++++++++ e commissed by the LEO staffs: no:	
nortgaget are not allow LRO Verification (To b) LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Date (worstA-tdap-ju)	++++++++++ e commissed by the LEO staffs: no:	
nortgaget are not allow LRO Verification (To b) LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Date (worsthidapi) Landlard Marticasa Ro	444 4444444444444444444444444444444444	
nortgaget are not allow LRO Verification (To b) LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Date (sconth-litapia Landlard-Mariance Ho	######################################	by the landlard/mortrage holder); (name of individual or family) with
nortgages are not allow LRO Verification (To b) LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Data (worst) (dap); Landlard Merizaca Ho This is to confirm to	444 4444444 a commission by the LEO staffic re:	by the landlard/morture balder);
LEO Verification (To be LEO Staff Name:_ LEO Staff Signatu Date (worst-kidapiya Lendlard Martizaca Ho This is to confirm to at	######################################	by the landlard/mortrage holder); (name of individual or family) with
LRO Verification (To be LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Data (worst-ldap)a Landlard Marizaca Bo This is to confirm to at	######################################	by the landlard/mortrace bolder): (name of individual or family) with the sections, sits, sits, sits ends) sucheder no deposite, less fam, or other charger) or with a principal and increase only; no secrets papearese or other fact) amount currently over it 5 The individuality out in(s) of
LRO Verification (To be LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Data (worst-ldap)a Landlard Marizaca Bo This is to confirm to at	100 100 100	by the landlard mortrare holders: So the property (name of individual or family) with for and name, nig, nine, nig ands) solution so deposite, less fam, or other charges) or with a principal and increase only; so survey payments or other family amount correctly oved is 5 The individuals
LEO Verification (To be LEO Staff Name: LEO Staff Signatu Date (month/dap/ja Landlard Marizace Ho This is to confirm to at	######################################	by the landlard/mortrace bolder): (name of individual or family) with the sections, sits, sits, sits ends) sucheder no deposite, less fam, or other charger) or with a principal and increase only; no secrets papearese or other fact) amount currently over it 5 The individuality out in(s) of
LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Date (worsthiday)a Landlard Martizana Ho This is to confirm t at a monthly rent am mortgage with a m in/was due on	488 488 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 4	by the landland/mortrace holder): [have of individual or family] with the need name, also while, signate) suchder no deposite, less face, or other charges) or with a relative no deposite, less face, or other paperses or other face) amount correctly oved is 5 The individuality outlies of
LRO Verification (To be LRO Staff Name: LRO Staff Signatu Data (worst-ldap)a Landlard Marizaca Bo This is to confirm to at	488 488 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 4	the the landland mortrare holders: [See the property [name of individual or family] with the and name, edg, while, edg ands] suchedor no disposite, less face, or other charges) or with a principal and increase only; no secrets papearess or other face) amount correctly oved in 5

A COPY OF THIS FORM IS AVAILABLE ON THE EFSP WEBSITE UNDER FORMS AFTER YOU LOGIN WITH YOUR USER ID AND PASSWORD.

SAMPLE FOOD VOUCHER
LRO's Name and Address
,
to purchase up to \$of food items only. (Client's/Purchaser's Name) (Dollar Amount)
The will reimburse you upon receipt of a voucher signed by (LRO's name)
client/purchaser and store representative with an itemized register tape attached.
No alcohol. No lottery tickets. No cigarettes. No non-food items (except diapers and feminine hygiene items, if marked below). No cash back.
Diapers: YES NO Feminine Hygiene Items: YES NO
\$(Actual Amount Purchased)
(Signature, Purchaser/Client) (Date - month/day/year)
(Signature, Store Representative) (Date - month/day/year)
(Signature, LRO Representative) (Date - month/day/year)
Note: When submitting documentation to the National Board, if the voucher is filled out completely and all 3 signatures are present and dated, an itemized food receipt is not required. If not filled out completely or all 3 signatures are not present, then the itemized food receipts must be included with the voucher.)

A COPY OF THIS FORM AVAILABLE ON THE EFSP WEBSITE UNDER FORMS AFTER YOU LOGIN WITH YOUR USER ID AND PASSWORD.

Annex 9: Sample Daily Per Diem Schedule

SAMPLE DAILY PER DIEM SCHEDULE Local Board ID Number: LRO ID Number: (Viame of the LRO mass shelter) (Complete Address of shelter)				
DATE (mande/day/year) Number of elients Per dism rate (mande 87.50 or \$12.50 as approved by Local Evand) Evand				
GRAND TOTAL: \$ Per diem schedule must show a daily ovunt.				

A COPY OF THIS FORM IS AVAILABLE ON THE EFSP WEBSITE UNDER FORMS AFTER YOU LOGIN WITH YOUR USER ID AND PASSWORD.

Annex 10: Sample Daily Per Meal Schedule

SAMPLE DAILY PER MEAL SCHEDULE Local Board ID Number: LRO ID Number:				
	(Name of the LRO x	kass firedoug sute)		
	(Complete Address	of feeding rite)		
DATE (mando/day/year)	Number of meals served	Per meal rate (\$2)	TOTAL	
GRAND TOTAL: \$ Per meal schedule must show a daily count				
Per most reasons made more a <u>same</u> counce				

A COPY OF THIS FORM IS AVAILABLE ON THE EFSP WEBSITE UNDER FORMS AFTER YOU LOGIN WITH YOUR USER ID AND PASSWORD.

Annex 11: Sample Mileage Log

Coal Board ID Number: (Name of LRO) (Address) Date (Month/day/year) Departure, destination, purpose of Number of Mileage rate as of 10/1/2014 (sash round trip) (8.54/mi.)	
(Name of LRO) (Address) Date Departure, destination, purpose of Number of Mileage rate (month/day/year) Date of 10/1/2014	
(Address) Date Departure, destination, purpose of Number of Mileage rate (month/day/year) Dity miles as of 10/1/2014	
(Address) Date Departure, destination, purpose of Number of Mileage rate (month/day/year) Departure destination, purpose of miles as of 10/1/2014	
Date Departure, destination, purpose of Number of Mileage rate (month/day/year) trip miles as of 10/1/2014	
Date Departure, destination, purpose of Number of Mileage rate (month/day/year) trip miles as of 10/1/2014	
(month/day/year) trip miles as of 10/1/2014	
(FEIR FOUND OUD)	Total
GRAND TOTAL: \$_	
he mileage rate published in this manual and noted above is the only acceptable mile	

A COPY OF THIS FORM IS AVAILABLE ON THE EFSP WEBSITE UNDER FORMS AFTER YOU LOGIN WITH YOUR USER ID AND PASSWORD.

Annex 12: Audit/Review and Audit/Documentation Retention Responsibilities

Audit/Review Requirements

The EFSP annual audit requirement allows for two different levels of review depending on the LRO's level of funding. This change took place in Phase 23 (FY2005) and is noted on pages 37 and 42 of this manual. The EFSP audit requirements are:

A webinar providing background on audit requirements is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

For LROs receiving \$100,000 or more in EFSP funding, the National Board requires an independent annual audit in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards. For LROs receiving from \$50,000 to \$99,999, the National Board requires an annual accountant's review. For newly funded LROs and LROs funded above the amount requiring an audit or review for the first time, the LRO must arrange for the audit or review of funds to coincide with the next scheduled annual audit or annual review of its financial affairs.

The National Board will accept an LRO's national/regional annual audit if the following conditions are met:

- LRO is truly a subsidiary of the national organization (i.e., shares a single federal tax exemption).
- The LRO is audited by the national/regional office internal auditors or other person designated by the national/regional office AND the national/regional office is audited by an independent certified public accountant or public accountant or accounting firm, which includes the national/regional organization's review of the LRO in a larger audit review.
- A copy of the local audit review along with a copy of the independent audit of the national/regional office will be made available to the National Board upon request.

Any agency expending \$750,000 or more in Federal funds must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR 200 of the Office of Management and Budget (Uniform Guidance.) Note: A copy of this report must be forwarded to the National Board annually along with the regular audit. The \$750,000 threshold is a combination of all Federal funds, not just EFSP funding.

Audits of units of government shall be made annually unless state or local government had, by January 1, 1987, a constitutional or statutory requirement for less frequent audits.

All audits/reviews must clearly identify EFSP funding by ID number and include EFSP funds in the Schedule of Federal Awards. Note: EFSP funding is a direct Federal grant to the LRO; it is not pass through from some other organization (i.e. local government, United Way).

The changes in these requirements are specific to the EFSP and meeting any other local, state, or federal audit requirements or those required by any other funding source are the responsibility of the LRO.

Audit/Review Terminology

Audit – A formal examination of financial statements intended to assess the accuracy and thoroughness of financial records. An independent auditor performs this procedure on a set of financial statements in order to render an opinion based on the accounting records provided. An unqualified audit opinion states that the financial statements are in conformity with the General Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the United States. Audits are performed according to General Accepted Accounting Principles

(GAAP) in the United States. An audit is more expensive than a review or compilation because an opinion on the accuracy of financial statements requires significantly more work than that involved in either a review or a compilation. *Under EFSP, an audit is required for any LRO receiving \$100,000 or more in funding.*

Review – Accountants perform limited procedures as a basis for expressing limited assurance on financial statements. Although not as comprehensive as an audit, a review provides more assurance than a compilation. A review report states that: 1) the accountants do not express an opinion on the financial statements and, 2) based on their review, they are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements. A review is less expensive than an audit but more expensive than a compilation. *Under EFSP, a review is required for any LRO receiving from \$50,000 to \$99,999*.

Annex 13: Documentation Retention Responsibilities and Other Review/Audit Responsibilities

EFSP requires all LROs to maintain documentation for three years from the end-of program date as noted on pages 10 and 35 of this manual. The documentation to be retained includes financial records, supporting documentation, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the award. The exceptions to the three-year rule are noted on page 58 and include litigation, claim, program compliance issues, or audits started before the three-year period and records for non-expendable property acquired either wholly or partially with EFSP funds.

A webinar providing background on audit requirements is available on the EFSP website under **Training Workshops** on the left-hand menu after you login.

The documentation must be accessible should there be reason for your agency to produce the documentation for review. This review might include the audit of these expenditures after you have reported to the National Board for the spending period. Please reference pages 27 and 38 guidelines for documentation disaster recovery plans.

Site Reviews: The National Board staff conducts site compliance reviews of LROs funded through the EFSP. These site reviews are conducted at the LRO's offices and original documentation supporting expenditures of EFSP funds are required. The original documentation would include all canceled checks or other approved method of payment and vendor invoices for expenditures charged to EFSP. If an LRO is using the per meal allowance or per diem allowance, the documentation would include sign-in sheets, case records, as well as the supportive documentation for actual expenditures (i.e., proof of payment, vendor invoices). Very often, multiple phases are reviewed during the site compliance review of the LRO.

Independent Audit: Annually EFSP undergoes an independent annual audit as required by the Federal government. During this audit, EFSP's independent auditors review documentation submitted by LROs that has already been reviewed by EFSP staff. Additionally, they request documentation from a sample of LROs that were not required to submit documentation with their Final Report. LROs must comply with the request from EFSP's independent auditors including the resolution of compliance problems noted by the independent auditors in their review.

Other Audits: Staff from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) may also conduct site audits of funded LROs. Additionally, as EFSP funding is Federal funding, the U. S. Department of Homeland Security Office of Inspector General or Office of Chief Financial Officer may also conduct site audits. This includes the Improper Payments Elimination and Recovery Improvement Act (IPERIA) assessment.

How are the site compliance reviews determined: The National Board has given the staff guidance for conducting site compliance reviews which includes, but is not limited to, reviewing LROs in jurisdictions where there are ongoing compliance problems, reviewing LROs who have failed to submit documentation to the National Board or the Board's independent auditors, findings in the independent audits submitted by LROs, concerns regarding operations from the Local Board or others, reviewing LROs funded in certain categories or areas of the country, alleged or suspected fraud, and at the request of the DHS Inspector General.

Generally, when site compliance reviews are conducted, several LROs in a jurisdiction or in surrounding jurisdictions are reviewed and multiple phases of each LRO's EFSP funding is reviewed.

Please note that since documentation must be retained for three years (see text used in other place in the manual for consistency), all of those years are subject to reviews/audits at any time. Even if an LRO has filed Final Reports and received clearing letters, they are still subject to any of the reviews/audits noted above as well as requests for submission of documentation.

Audit Confirmation Requests: LROs requesting confirmations of funds received for external auditors must indicate the LRO ID number (9-digits) for each jurisdiction for which a confirmation is requested.



SPECIAL NOTE: DOES MY LRO HAVE TO HAVE AN AUDIT OR A REVIEW?

To determine what type of review is required for an LRO, the LRO must know the total amount of funding it is receiving from EFSP in all jurisdictions in which it is funded. The TOTAL EFSP funding is used to determine the type of review. For example, LRO ABC is funded in only one jurisdiction and receives \$55,000 – a review would be required since LRO ABC is receiving more than \$50,000 but less than \$100,000. LRO XYZ is funded in three jurisdictions, in jurisdiction #1 \$49,000 is received, in jurisdiction #2 \$17,000 is received, and in jurisdiction #3 \$36,000 is received. LRO XYZ would be required to have an audit. They are receiving a total of \$102,000, which is greater than the \$100,000 threshold for requiring an audit even though in each jurisdiction they are receiving less than \$50,000.

Annex 14: Utility Documentation Guidelines

These guidelines provide a general overview regarding utility assistance provided to clients. Please refer to pages 72-73 and 89 of this manual for complete guidelines on using EFSP funds for utility assistance.

When using EFSP funds to provide utility assistance remember that only one month, approximately thirty days of service may be paid of each bill for an individual or household per award cycle. Billing cycles of more than one month must be divided by the number of months in the cycle to get the one-month amount that may be paid. For example, if the cycle consists of two months, divide the total cost of the bill by two to get the amount that may be paid. If the client is on a budget plan and has the option of paying the actual usage cost or the budgeted amount an agency may select either amount. Only one can be paid, not both. The minimum amount required by the vendor to keep service on cannot be paid, if it is more than one month's bill. When a utility payment is made, it must guarantee an additional thirty days of service for the client. If the vendor will not grant the additional thirty days of service for the payment, then EFSP funds cannot be used to assist the client. A reconnect fee to restore service may be paid with EFSP funds. However, late fees, deposits and other service charges are not eligible as part of the utility payment. If these charges are required to maintain service for the client an agency will need to use another funding source to cover the cost of the items.

Documentation of utility payments must always include a copy of the canceled check or an approved method of payment dated no more than 10 calendar days before the bill's due date, made payable to the vendor along with the utility bill from the vendor for metered utility services (gas, electric, water) that clearly verifies the one-month amount paid. The utility bill from the vendor must include the client's information (name, address, account number, etc.). A copy of the receipt from the vendor showing the date of delivery and cost of service for the minimum delivery or fill-up is required for non-metered utility payments (propane, coal, firewood). The most current utility bill available must be provided. Old bills will not be accepted. Payments must be made no more than 90 days after the receipt/invoice or client intake date. The **Metered Utility Verification Form** found in the manual, Annex 6, page 97 may be useful in documenting the one-month amount paid, if completed correctly. A Metered Utility Verification Form I required when LROs are paying more than \$100 from a past due balance, and metered utility bill or shut off notice does not clearly identify the one-month billed amount and the dates of service. The form must be completed to show the dates of service covered with the payment made. The Metered Utility Verification form cannot be submitted along with the canceled check in lieu of the utility bill. Also, an agency's internal paperwork cannot be submitted in place of the utility bill. A utility bill from the vendor must be submitted to support each payment made.

The following are the most common types of bills that are submitted with documentation for review from agencies. They are current utility bills that may include a budget amount and past due or disconnect notices covering multiple months. Clients may also present similar bills from the utility vendors serving the community. Please read the following carefully for paying and documenting utility expenditures.

- Current Utility Bill This bill is not yet past due. An agency may pay the current one month's bill no more than 10 calendar days before it is due. The one-month amount and service dates are verified. The amount covered by EFSP funds are still outstanding at the time of payment. If the bill is paid more than 10 calendar days prior to the due date, the payment is considered ineligible under EFSP guidelines.
- Current Utility Bill with Budget Amount This bill should include the amount of the actual usage for the month in addition to the budget amount the client is required to pay. An agency may pay either the actual usage or budget amount of the bill no more than 10 calendar days before it is due. The one-month amount and service dates are verified. The amount covered by EFSP funds are still outstanding at the time of payment. If the bill is paid more than 10 calendar days prior to the due date, the payment is considered ineligible under EFSP guidelines.
- Past Due Bill or Disconnect Notice These bills are overdue and often will include other service fees. An agency has two options in paying these bills. The options are 1) verify and pay one month's portion of the past due balance the full

amount paid must still be due in its entirety at the time of payment the Metered Utility Verification form may be used or 2) pay up to \$100 of the past due balance, if at least that amount is owed, without the one-month verification.



If the past due bill has a balance that is more than \$100 and an agency wishes to pay as much as possible to assist the client, as long as it does not exceed one month's assistance, the utility company must be contacted to get a billing and payment history of the client's utility usage that may be covered in the past due or disconnect notice. Once the detail has been received from the utility company, up to the highest one-month bill that is still owed (part of the past due balance on the notice, and the service dates are within the spending period) at the time the agency is making payment may be paid. For example, if the client's May and June bills are still past due when the July bill is received and May is the highest one month of the three, the agency can pay the services for that month. If a portion of May has been paid, only the balance remaining can be paid or one of the other two months that are due on the bill (June or July).

Annex 15: Sample Advertisement

The following advertisement elements and sample advertisement are approved and provided for your convenience. Locals Boards are encouraged to use the information in their required advertisement of EFSP funds, but not mandated. Advertisements must acknowledge that EFSP funds are Federal dollars from the Department of Homeland Security (DHS).

Publicizing/Advertising Elements

Local Boards <u>must</u> publicize/advertise in the local print media the availability of funds to inform and solicit applications from <u>all</u> agencies (including those on Native American reservations) providing or capable of providing emergency food and/or shelter assistance. Advertisement must appear in paper at least 5 business days prior to the Local Board's allocation of EFSP funds. See below for sample advertisement.

Advertisements must include:

- Area funded/Local EFSP Board
 - (Note: The National Board selects only jurisdictions for funding and advertisement must not state that a specific agency has been awarded the grant.);
- Source of funding;
 - (Note: EFSP funds are Federal funds made available through the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's Federal Emergency Management Agency.)
- Award amount;
- Purpose of funding;
- Priorities/needs that Local Board will address;
- Criteria for eligible agencies;
- Contact name, address and/or phone number for application; and
- Deadline for applying (Local Boards must allow at least five business days after publication for interested agencies to apply and before funding decisions are made.)

Note: All Local Boards must publicly advertise in the most broadly distributed local newspaper covering the jurisdiction. Failure to advertise properly will delay processing of the jurisdiction's board plan and subsequent payment of funds. (A press release is not sufficient unless publication can be verified.) When a news article cannot be obtained, a legal advertisement is acceptable.

In addition to the news article or legal advertisement, Local Boards may also directly notify agencies. Cable access television and radio may only be used to supplement the printed advertisement.

Sample Advertisement

(Name of jurisdiction) HAS BEEN AWARDED FEDERAL FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY (DHS)/FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY UNDER THE EMERGENCY FOOD AND SHELTER NATIONAL BOARD PROGRAM.

(Name of jurisdiction) has been chosen to receive \$(award amount) to supplement emergency food and shelter programs in the county.

The selection was made by a National Board that is chaired by the U. S. Department of Homeland Security's Federal Emergency Management Agency and consists of representatives from American Red Cross; Catholic Charities, USA; National Council of the Churches of Christ in the USA; The Jewish Federations of North America, The Salvation Army; and, United Way Worldwide. The

Local Board was charged to distribute funds appropriated by Congress to help expand the capacity of food and shelter programs in high-need areas around the country.

A Local Board made up of (the Mayor, United Way, et al.) will determine how the funds awarded to (name of jurisdiction) are to be distributed among the emergency food and shelter programs run by local service agencies in the area. The Local Board is responsible for recommending agencies to receive these funds and any additional funds made available under this phase of the program.

Under the terms of the grant from the National Board, local agencies chosen to receive funds must: 1) be private voluntary non-profits or units of government, 2) be eligible to receive Federal funds, 3) have an accounting system, 4) practice nondiscrimination, 5) have demonstrated the capability to deliver emergency food and/or shelter programs, and 6) if they are a private voluntary organization, have a voluntary board. Qualifying agencies are urged to apply.

(Name of jurisdiction) has distributed Emergency Food and Shelter funds previously with (Names of LROs) participating. These agencies were responsible for providing (number) meals and (number) nights of lodging.

Public or private voluntary agencies interested in applying for Emergency Food and Shelter Program funds must contact (<u>Local Board chair or staff name, address and/or phone number</u>) for an application. The deadline for applications to be received is (<u>application deadline date</u>).

Annex 16: Sample Application Elements

Below are recommended application elements for your convenience. Locals Boards are encouraged to use the information in their application process. All written material used by Local Boards must acknowledge EFSP funds are Federal funds made available through the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's Federal Emergency Management Agency.

Application Elements

Local Boards must have a written application process but EFSP does not mandate a standard application to be used by all Local Boards. However, the National Board advises there is key information that Local Boards should obtain from all applicant agencies. The information gleaned from agency applications should provide the Local Board with the information necessary to make the best funding decisions possible.

Noted below are sample questions that Local Boards might ask of applicant agencies to aid them in their funding decisions. Each Local Board will create their own application form to include information the Local Board deems necessary to evaluate the agency's services and ability to administer the EFSP as a supplemental program.

Local Boards must ensure that their application provides every agency that meets the requirements on the LRO Certification Form the opportunity to apply for funding. See pages 27-28.

Sample Questions:

- **Agency's Legal Name
- **Agency Principal
- **Agency Contact for Application Questions
- **Agency Contact for EFSP, if funded
- **Agency physical address
- **Congressional district where agency is physically located
- **Agency mailing address
- **Agency address for Place of Performance (where the EFSP funded services are provided)
- **Congressional district where agency's EFSP funded services are provided (Place of Performance)
- **Agency phone/fax/email (for individuals above)

Agency website

- **Agency Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN)
- ** Agency's DUNS number
- **Amount of EFSP funding requested by program area (food, rent, utilities, etc.)

Agency operating budget (total)

- **Agency budget for the program area requested (food, rent, utilities, etc.)
- **Copy of agency's most recent annual audit
- **Deadline (date and time) for applications to be received (including contact, mailing address, location for delivery)
- **Is agency non-profit or unit of government?
- **If non-profit, a roster of the agency's volunteer board should be requested
- **Is agency debarred or suspended from receiving funds or doing business with the Federal government?

**Denotes required questions. Most of the required questions provide information that is necessary for the Local Board to submit to the National Board on their Local Board Plan or that comes directly from the LRO Certification Form. All addresses must be complete - street number and name, city, state and Zip Code plus 4.

Note: Local Boards should discuss their application and funding process. They should ensure the process is open and that all agencies are provided the same opportunity in the application process. Local Board member agencies must follow the same process as other applicant agencies.

Glossary of EFSP Terms

Award: the dollar amount granted to either a jurisdiction as a whole or an individual LRO.

Begin Date: the date the LRO can start charging expenses to the program; one day after the prior Phase ended.

Closeout: the process by which the National Board determines that all applicable administrative actions and all required work of the award have been completed.

Documentation: proof of payment, invoices, per diem schedules, vouchers, letters, mileage logs or schedules, etc. to support expenditures.

DocuSign: an e-signature and workflow solution. All Local Board Plans, Local Recipient Organization Certifications, Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Relationship Certification Forms, Lobbying Certifications, Second Payment Requests, Final Reports and Spending Period End Date Extension Requests must be electronically signed using DocuSign.

Eligible Costs: charges made against EFSP funds that the National Board determines to be allowable in accordance with the legislation.

End Date: the date by which all funds must be expended; this date is selected annually by the Local Board.

Final Report: annual report filed by each Local Board and LRO of expenditures of program funds.

Fiscal Agent: an LRO that maintains all EFSP financial records for another agency.

Fiscal Conduit: an LRO that maintains all EFSP financial records for more than one agency under a single award.

Ineligible costs: charges made against EFSP funds that the National Board determines to be disallowed in accordance with the legislation.

Jurisdiction: city, county or combination receiving funds through EFSP.

Local Board: decision-making body for each jurisdiction.

Local Board ID Number: the unique 6-digit number which identifies each Local Board.

Local Board Chair: elected head of the Local Board authorized to sign documents on behalf of the jurisdiction.

Local Board Contact: person in a jurisdiction serving as the primary point of contact.

Local Recipient Organization (LRO): refers to the local private or public agency that will receive any award of funds from the National Board.

LRO ID Number: the unique 9 digit number which identifies each LRO within a jurisdiction.

Manual (Responsibilities and Requirements): the written rules and regulations for the Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program.

Mass Feeding: A facility that prepares and serves congregate meals for clients in a program operated by an LRO.

Mass Shelter: A facility that has the capacity to provide accommodations for at least 5 clients per night at a single site operated by the LRO.

National Board: the governing body responsible for the administration of the EFSP.

Phase: the grant cycle.

Phase Spending Period: the period of time in which a jurisdiction has to spend its entire EFSP award. The spending period may vary for each jurisdiction. (See Begin Date, End Date.)

Second Payment/Interim Report: the form necessary for the LRO to submit to the Local Board and National Board for release of their second half of an award which reflects their program spending of the first payment.

State Set-Aside (SSA) Committee: the decision-making body for each state receiving funds to award to jurisdictions with a need not reflected or greater than reflected in the statistics used by the National Board in the funding formula.

Index

\boldsymbol{A}	Disaster Assistance
Accessibility Improvements	Disaster Recovery Plan
Address Changes	Discrimination
Administrative Allowance21, 36, 75, 77, 78, 90	Documentation Requirements 12-14, 32, 36, 79-80
Advertising Requirements21, 30, 73, 77, 70, 90	Dun & Bradstreet (DUNS) Number 29, 34, 37, 44, 4
Appeals Process	E
Application Elements111	TITED : /D
Audit Requirements	EFT Processing/Payments
•	Elderly
В	Election of Chair
Bank Accounts	Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT)
Begin Date, End Date	Electronic Payments
Board Plan Deadline	Eligible Program Costs
Building Code51, 68, 78, 88	End-of-Program
C	Equipment/Repairs
	Equipment/Supplies
Canceled Checks27, 59, 73, 79, 105, 107	F
Cash Depositories	Facility Improvements
Cash Payment	Families with Children
Certification Regarding Lobbying10, 22, 28, 49, 95	Fee for Service
Change of Address Notice24, 30	FEMA Responsibilities 1
Chargeback of Expenditures	Feminine Hygiene Items
Client Confidentiality	Final Report
Client Eligibility	Financial Management System58, 41, 72, 80, 81, 11.
Closeout	•
Combining Local Boards	Financial Reporting Requirements
Communicating with National Board Staff9, 31, 39, 63	Financial Terms and Conditions
Compliance Resolution41	First Aid
Composition of Local Board	First Payments
Composition of State Set Aside Committee21	Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit37, 40, 42, 43–44, 58, 61, 64, 94
Consumable Supplies	112
Coordination of Service	Fiscal Agent/Fiscal Conduit Form
Credit Card Payments	Food Purchases
Criteria for LROs37, 109	Food Voucher
D.	Fraud
D	Funding Formula
Debarment & Suspension	Funding Source
Debit Card Payments	G
Diapers65, 73	Cift Cards / Voyahors (2 / 5 72 74 75 70 0)
Disabilities	Glean of FESD Towns 112 11
Disallowed Costs	Grant Agreement Articles 9 26 28 45–50
	VIDADE (ASIECHICHI ATHUES). 9 /0 /A 40=0

Grant Payment Process	Mileage
H	Mileage Rate/Log65–66, 66, 80, 102
11	Monitoring of LROs
History 8	Mortgage Assistance70, 75, 78, 89, 98
Homeless Representation	N
I	National Board Affiliates
Ineligible Expenditures33, 40, 57, 63, 64, 71, 75–76	National Board Members
Intent of Program	National Board Responsibilities16–18
Interest-Earning Account	Native Americans
Interim Report	No Fee Requirement for Service
J	Notification of Changes in Contacts
Jurisdiction ID NumberSee Local Board ID Number	0
K	Off-Site Lodging
	Other Shelter
Key Changes and Program Clarifications9–14	Other Terms
Key Program Dates	P
L	Payment to Vendor
	Payments to LROs59, See Second Payments, See Firs
Lobbying	Payments
Local Board Authority Related to LROs57–58	Per Diem Allowance
Local Board Certification Form22, 92	Per Meal Allowance
Local Board Communications	Personal Identifiable Information53, 62
Local Board Composition23–25	Physically Disabled21, 24, 28, 68
Local Board Disaster Recovery Plan27	Preamble
Local Board Expansion	Pre-Payments75, 70
Local Board ID Number22, 37, 112	Program Compliance Resolution41
Local Board Meetings25, 26, 75	Program Costs63–70
Local Board Membership & Voting23, 25, 27	Proof of Payment 12, 41, 79
Local Board Responsibilities22–36	Publicizing/Advertising Elements109
Local Board Roster22–25	
Local Recipient Organization57, 112	Q
Local Recipient Organization Responsibilities37-44	Questions on Guidelines 65
LROSee Local Recipient Organization	Quorum Requirements25
LRO Certification Form 11, 22, 27, 28, 38, 42, 61, 80, 93	n.
LRO ID Number	R
M	Reallocation of Funds
	Record Retention
Mass Feeding-Direct Cost	Rent Assistance
Mass Shelter/Mass Feeding 66–70, 86–87, 99–102, 113	Reporting Fraud, Theft and Criminal Activity .31, 34–35, 51
Mass Shelter-Direct Cost	57, 105
Meeting Frequency	Required Documentation. See Documentation Requirements
Meeting Minutes	Required Forms83–95
Metered Utility Verification Form73, 97	Returning Funds
Method of Payment17, 40, 44, 64	

S
Sample Advertisement
Sample Eligible and Ineligible Expenditures
Sample Forms, Letters and Guidance96–111
Second Payments
Selection of LROs
Served Meals
Site Audits
Special Emphasis Groups8, 21, 24, 28
Specialized Needs
Spending Period Extension
Spreadsheets12, 33, 36, 41, 65, 79–80, 83–91
State Set-Aside Committee Responsibilities20-21
Submitting Documentation
Supplies/Equipment
Suspension & Debarment See Debarment & Suspension
T
Technical Assistance

Transportation
U
Uniform Guidance (OMB) . 10, 16, 31, 43, 54–55, 59, 60, 61,
62, 103
Unique Identifiers22, 37, 47, 112
Unspent Funds
Use of Funds 39
Utility Assistance72–73, 73, 75, 78, 89, 97, 107–8
V
Variances
Veterans
Voting on Awards
Vouchers
W
Website
Who Must Submit Documentation